
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

HUMBLE CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING PACKET 

MARCH 26, 2015  



 

 

 

Mayor Council Members  

Donald McMannes Allan Steagall 

City Manager Ray Calfee 

Darrell Boeske Andy Curry 

City Secretary Norman Funderburk 

Jason Stuebe   

     

 

Agenda 

Humble City Council 

Regular Meeting 

Thursday, March 26, 2015 6:30 P.M. 

City Hall Council Chamber, 114 West Higgins 

Humble, Texas 

 

Call to order. 

 

1. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

2. Consent agenda items which consist of ministerial or “housekeeping” items as required 

by law.  Items may be removed from the consent agenda and discussed by majority vote 

of the Council. 

 

a. Minutes – Regular Meeting March 12, 2015 

b. Financial Statement 

c. Current Invoices 

d. Monthly Department Reports 

e. Correspondence. 

 

3. Ordinance No. 15-754 providing for the vacating, abandonment, and closing of a portion 

of a twenty foot (20’) Right-of-Way Easement lying west of North Houston Avenue out 

of the C. Bender Sr. North Addition and situated in the Wherry B. Adams Survey, A-95, 

Harris County, Texas. 

 

4. Resolution No. 15-745 appointing election officials for the May 9, 2015 Humble ISD and 

City of Humble General and Special Election. 

 

Resolucion No. 15-745 aprovando el contrato de los servicios electorales para mayo, 9, 

2015 Humble ISD y la eleccion general y especial de la Ciudad de Humble. 

 

5. Adjourned. 

 



Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Humble, Texas 

will be held on Thursday, March 26, 2015 at 6:30 P.M. at the City Hall Council Chamber, 114 

West Higgins, Humble, Texas.  The following subjects will be discussed, to wit: See Agenda. 

 

Posted this 23rd day of March, 2015 at 5:00 P.M. 

 

 

 

      

City Secretary 

 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the Governing Body of 

the City of Humble, Texas, is a true and correct copy of said Notice and that I posted a true and 

correct copy of said notice on the bulletin board at City Hall, 114 West Higgins, Humble, Texas 

and the City’s website, www.cityofhumble.com.  The Agenda and Notice are readily accessible 

to the general public at all times.  Said Notice and Agenda were posted on March 23, 2015 at 

5:00 P.M. and remained so posted continuously for at least 72 hours proceeding the scheduled 

time of said meeting. 

 

This public notice was removed from the official posting board at the Humble City Hall on the 

following date and time:       by                   

 

Subscribed and sworn to before me on this the  , day of    , 2015. 

 

 

      

Notary Public – Harris County, Texas  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS FACILITY IS WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE AND ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES 

ARE AVAILABLE.  REQUESTS FOR ACCOMODATIONS OR INTERPRETIVE SERVICES 

MUST BE MADE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THIS MEETING.  PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY 

SECRETARY’S OFFICE AT (281) 446-3061 OR FAX (281) 446-7843 FOR FURTHER 

INFORMATION. 

 

 

http://www.cityofhumble.com/


 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

3-26-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #2A 

 

MARCH 12, 2015 MINUTES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Minutes 02-26-2015 

HUMBLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING 
 

MARCH 12, 2015 – 6:30 P.M. 
 

HELD AT CITY HALL, 114 WEST HIGGINS, HUMBLE, TEXAS 
 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
   § 
COUNTY OF HARRIS § 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor Donnie McMannes, Presiding 
    Council Member Allan Steagall 
    Council Member Ray Calfee 
    Council Member Andy Curry 
    Council Member Norman Funderburk 
    City Manager Darrell Boeske 
    City Secretary Jason Stuebe 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Police Chief Gary Warman 
    Fire Chief Gary Outlaw 
    Public Works Director Barry Brock 
    Captain Jay Wrobliske 
    Lt. Delbert Dawes 
 
VISTORS PRESENT:  Kathy Funderburk  
    Dee Walters     
 
 Mayor Donnie McMannes called the Regular Meeting to order with a quorum present at 6:30 P.M.   

 
1. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

Council Member Funderburk led the Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA. 
2a.  Minutes – February 26 Regular Meeting 
2b.  Monthly Department Reports 
2c.  Correspondence 
Upon a motion made by Council Member Funderburk, the City Council voted five (5) for and none 
(0) opposed to approve the Consent Agenda.  
 

3. ORDINANANCE 15-753 PROVIDING FOR THE VACATING, ABANDONMENT, AND CLOSING OF A 
PORTION OF TWO SEPARATE TWENTY FOOT (20’) RIGHT-OF-WAY EASEMENTS LYING NORTH OF 
F.M. 1960 OUT OF THE C. BENDER SR. NORTH ADDITION. 
City Manager Boeske reminded the Council that the City vacating the Right-of-Way Easements on 
the west side of the TxDOT ditch several months ago and that this was for similar Right-of-Way 



Minutes 02-26-2015 

Easements on the east side of the ditch; Mr. Boeske further stated that there are no other 
contingent land owners.   
 
Upon a motion made by Mayor McMannes, the City Council voted five (5) for and none (0) opposed 
to adopt Ordinance 15-753 vacating, abandoning, and closing the portions of the two separate 
Right-of-Way Easements. 
 
Upon a motion made by Council Member Steagall, the City Council voted five (5) for and none (0) 
opposed to adopt Ordinance 15-751 amending Chapter 12 of the City of Humble Code of Ordinances 
establishing a maximum building height of 65 feet for any Type I Building. 

 
There being no further business before the City Council, Mayor McMannes adjourned the Regular 
Meeting of the City Council at 6:32 P.M. on Thursday, March 12, 2015.   

 
 
    
             

       D.G. McMannes 
       Mayor 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
       
 Jason Stuebe 
 City Secretary 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

3-26-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #2B 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Humble
Balance on Deposit, All Funds
For the Month February 2015

General Fund:

Fiscal YTD 
Earnings

Balance as of 
02/28/2015

Cash 320.50$            3,205,101.75$         
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 40,933.54         14,240,815.67         
Cash - METRO 396.61              3,013,006.12           
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs - METRO 21,614.56         13,615,668.18         

Total 63,265.21         34,074,591.72         

Water & Sewer Operating Fund:
Cash -                    5,368,450.21           
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 19,529.57         4,338,341.94           

Total 19,529.57         9,706,792.15           

Photo Traffic Safety Fund:
Cash 142.37              2,282,495.10           
Brokerage CDs 2,016.44           500,237.50              

Total 2,158.81           2,782,732.60           

Hotel Tax Fund:
Cash -                    692,762.47              

Total -                    692,762.47              

Capital Projects Fund:
TexStar- Water Well Construction 0.93                  4,154.13                  
Brokerage CDs- Water Well Construction -                    144,989.56              

Total 0.93                  149,143.69              

Sewer Plant Construction Fund:
Cash -                    153,364.00              
Brokerage CDs 377.26              120,009.96              

Total 377.26              273,373.96              

Total All Funds:
Cash 859.48              14,715,179.65         
TexStar 0.93                  4,154.13                  
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 84,471.37         32,960,062.81         
Total 85,331.78$      47,679,396.59$       



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

3-26-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #2C 

 

MONTHLY INVOICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECKS

Water & Sewer Special Red Light Beautification

Date General Fund Operating Fund Revenue Camera TOTAL

2/5/2015 96,137.57           26,006.00                537.87              5,060.00          127,741.44$        

2/10/2015 300.00                300.00$               

2/11/2015 100.00                100.00$               

2/20/2015 536,817.33 22,182.84                11,193.26         1,734.63          300.00             572,228.06$        

2/27/2015 5,000.00$           5,000.00$            

638,354.90$       48,188.84$              11,731.13$       6,794.63$        300.00$           705,369.50$        

JANUARY CREDIT CARDS

102,316.98$          44,607.65$                 329.30$               401.35$             1,711.43$          149,366.71$           





















Allbright, Garrett 1/7/2015 1/9/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 194.79

Barrere, Matthew 1/4/2015 1/5/2015 Wal-Mart #1837 Humble, TX 19.61

Barrere, Matthew 1/4/2015 1/5/2015 Academy Sports #21 Humble, TX 23.96

43.57

Baucom, Billy 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Fastenal Company01 Humble, TX 24.4

Baucom, Billy 1/20/2015 1/22/2015 M D N  Enterprises New Caney, TX 270

Baucom, Billy 1/19/2015 1/20/2015 Moore Supply Company Humble, TX 197.41

491.81

Blake, Scott 1/20/2015 1/21/2015 Inspect Connect Inc Humble, TX 14.5

Blake, Scott 1/14/2015 1/15/2015 Samsclub #6367 Humble, TX 213.25

227.75             

Boeske, W 1/26/2015 1/27/2015 Mister Car Wash #9 Qps Humble, TX 10

Boeske, W 1/19/2015 1/20/2015 Mister Car Wash #9 Qps Humble, TX 10

20

Bradshaw, Melinda 1/27/2015 1/29/2015 Star Cleaners Humble, TX 6

Bradshaw, Melinda 1/23/2015 1/26/2015 Davis & Stanton Inc Garland, TX 190

Bradshaw, Melinda 1/19/2015 1/21/2015 Star Cleaners Humble, TX 12

208

Brown, Damian 1/6/2015 1/7/2015 Vitalpet 1 Humble, TX 258.23

Brown, Damian 1/2/2015 1/5/2015 Petco 2427    63524276 Kingwood, TX 44.99

303.22

Burt, Jack 1/7/2015 1/8/2015 Fedex 772480257284 Memphis, TN 9.47

Campbell, Jason 1/24/2015 1/26/2015 Dx Service 281-457-4825, TX 1600.87

Campbell, Jason 1/7/2015 1/7/2015 Dx Service 281-457-4825, TX 533.63

2134.5

Cantu, Stephen 1/23/2015 1/26/2015 Autozone #1472 Humble, TX 25

Cantu, Stephen 1/14/2015 1/15/2015 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 21.96

Cantu, Stephen 1/14/2015 1/16/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 83.88

Cantu, Stephen 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 5.95

Cantu, Stephen 1/2/2015 1/5/2015 Sears Roebuck   1417 Humble, TX 86.97

223.76

Chambers, Vera 1/17/2015 1/19/2015 Comcast Of Houston 713-341-1000, TX 15.52

Chambers, Vera 1/16/2015 1/19/2015 Minuteman Press Humble, TX 178.19

Chambers, Vera 1/13/2015 1/15/2015 Quill Corporation 08007898965, IL 59.98

Chambers, Vera 1/12/2015 1/14/2015 Publicdata.Com 800-839-7245, TX 75

Chambers, Vera 1/8/2015 1/8/2015 Comcast Houston Cs 1x 800-266-2278, TX 15.52

344.21

Coats, Carolyn 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Kroger #190 Humble, TX 84.32

Coats, Carolyn 1/21/2015 1/23/2015 Big Lots Stores - #419 Humble, TX 56.53

Coats, Carolyn 1/19/2015 1/21/2015 Big Lots Stores - #419 Humble, TX 90.43

Coats, Carolyn 1/19/2015 1/21/2015 Party City 175 Humble, TX 222.34

453.62

Coombs, Clint 1/18/2015 1/20/2015 Animal Emerg Clinic Ne Humble, TX 143.7

Coombs, Clint 1/13/2015 1/15/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 14.9

Coombs, Clint 1/7/2015 1/9/2015 Harbor Freight Tools 4 Humble, TX 68.91

227.51



Cuellar, Angel 1/27/2015 1/28/2015 Direct Grass Services Humble, TX 24.5

Cuellar, Angel 1/26/2015 1/28/2015 M D N  Enterprises New Caney, TX 1232.78

Cuellar, Angel 1/26/2015 1/28/2015 M D N  Enterprises New Caney, TX 307.05

Cuellar, Angel 1/23/2015 1/26/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 115.99

Cuellar, Angel 1/5/2015 1/6/2015 Ferguson Ent #2725 281-446-3869, TX 30.09

1710.41

Culp, Joseph 1/13/2015 1/15/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 81.45

Davis, Ray 1/13/2015 1/14/2015 Ferguson Ent #2725 281-446-3869, TX 2.18

Davis, Ray 1/13/2015 1/14/2015 Suncoast Learning Syst Acworth, GA 235

Davis, Ray 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Ferguson Ent #2725 281-446-3869, TX 16.74

Davis, Ray 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Ferguson Ent #2725 281-446-3869, TX -2.18

Davis, Ray 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Ferguson Ent #2725 281-446-3869, TX 27.8

Davis, Ray 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Ferguson Ent #2725 281-446-3869, TX -13.53

266.01

Diaz, Theresa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Www.Logmein.Com 888-326-2642, MA 105.53

Diaz, Theresa 1/21/2015 1/22/2015 Kroger #190 Humble, TX 16.84

Diaz, Theresa 1/9/2015 1/12/2015 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 28.98

Diaz, Theresa 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 43.98

195.33

Elliott, Sandra 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Www.Logmein.Com 888-326-2642, MA 105.53

Elliott, Sandra 1/10/2015 1/12/2015 Wal-Mart #0744 Humble, TX 29.96

Elliott, Sandra 1/5/2015 1/7/2015 Lexisnexis Risk Mgt 08883328244, FL 50

Elliott, Sandra 1/1/2015 1/2/2015 Ds Services Standard C Atlanta, GA 54.31

239.8

Emerson, Kevin 1/23/2015 1/26/2015 State Chemic State Che 800-782-2436, OH 804.76

Fillmore, Steve 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Besco Electric Supply Houston, TX 28.44

Flores, Teodulo 1/7/2015 1/8/2015 Moore Supply Company Humble, TX 89.47

Flynt, Michael 1/24/2015 1/26/2015 Life Fitness 800-7353867, IL 3733.71

Folsom, Cindy 1/27/2015 1/28/2015 In  Elegant Beginnings 281-8129587, TX 785

Forbes, Steve 1/26/2015 1/27/2015 Best Buy      00002550 Humble, TX 59.97

Forbes, Steve 1/5/2015 1/7/2015 Astro Lock And Safe Humble, TX 37.5

Forbes, Steve 12/31/2014 1/2/2015 Mister Car Wash #19qps Humble, TX 15

112.47

Franks, Joe 1/27/2015 1/28/2015 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 59.58

Franks, Joe 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Usps 48419003331404999Humble, TX 7.19

66.77

Ganyo, Mark 1/28/2015 1/30/2015 Bound Tree Medical Llc Tel6147605227, OH 1995.82

Ganyo, Mark 1/26/2015 1/28/2015 Bound Tree Medical Llc Tel6147605227, OH 11.39

Ganyo, Mark 1/20/2015 1/22/2015 Bound Tree Medical Llc Tel6147605227, OH 71.58

Ganyo, Mark 1/19/2015 1/21/2015 Bound Tree Medical Llc Tel6147605227, OH 736.74

Ganyo, Mark 1/15/2015 1/19/2015 Bound Tree Medical Llc Tel6147605227, OH 51.95

Ganyo, Mark 1/10/2015 1/14/2015 Bound Tree Medical Llc Tel6147605227, OH 1127.42

Ganyo, Mark 1/8/2015 1/12/2015 Bound Tree Medical Llc Tel6147605227, OH 686.4

Ganyo, Mark 1/7/2015 1/9/2015 Bound Tree Medical Llc Tel6147605227, OH 62.36

Ganyo, Mark 1/7/2015 1/9/2015 Bound Tree Medical Llc Tel6147605227, OH 139.96

4883.62

Gauntt, Aaron 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Hampton Inn Pearland Pearland, TX 223



Gauntt, Aaron 1/26/2015 1/27/2015 Aka Sushi House Houston, TX 34.24

Gauntt, Aaron 1/25/2015 1/27/2015 Buffalo Wild Wings Pearland, TX 13.8

271.04

Gill, Patricia 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Great Southwest Paper 713-223-5050, TX 304

Gill, Patricia 1/27/2015 1/28/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 488.41

Gill, Patricia 1/26/2015 1/27/2015 Great Southwest Paper 713-223-5050, TX 1292.43

Gill, Patricia 1/9/2015 1/12/2015 Greensheet-Douglass Mg07133713500, TX 267.4

Gill, Patricia 1/6/2015 1/7/2015 Great Southwest Paper 713-223-5050, TX 579.61

Gill, Patricia 1/2/2015 1/5/2015 Great Southwest Paper 713-223-5050, TX 346.8

3278.65

Gonzalez, Victor 1/16/2015 1/19/2015 Academy Sports #21 Humble, TX 81.21

Gonzalez, Victor 1/4/2015 1/6/2015 Haggar Clothing Co #12 Texas City, TX 174

Gonzalez, Victor 1/4/2015 1/6/2015 Ralph Lauren #171 Texas City, TX 207.96

463.17

Green, Christine 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Nat Org Victim Assista Alexandria, VA 50

Green, Christine 1/27/2015 1/28/2015 National Night Out 8006483688, PA 35

Green, Christine 1/26/2015 1/27/2015 Keep Texas Beautifu 512-4788813, TX 100

Green, Christine 1/23/2015 1/26/2015 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 132.98

Green, Christine 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Humble Sign Co. Humble, TX 622

Green, Christine 1/7/2015 1/8/2015 Cvs/Pharmacy #06761 Humble, TX 83.9

1023.88

Gunn, Kevin 1/22/2015 1/23/2015 Ferguson Ent #2725 281-446-3869, TX 154.92

Gunn, Kevin 1/19/2015 1/20/2015 Moore Supply Company Humble, TX 18.17

Gunn, Kevin 1/14/2015 1/16/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 23.79

196.88

Hastings Jr, Tommy 1/13/2015 1/14/2015 Lone Star Uniforms Houston, TX 155.85

Hogan, Betty 1/6/2015 1/7/2015 Italianos Restaurant Humble, TX 368

Hosler, Thomas 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Sq  William Crawford I Humble, TX 2700

Hosler, Thomas 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Sq  William Crawford I Humble, TX 4700

Hosler, Thomas 1/21/2015 1/22/2015 Wm Supercenter #1837 Humble, TX 56.88

Hosler, Thomas 1/21/2015 1/22/2015 Sq  William Crawford I Humble, TX 2450

Hosler, Thomas 1/16/2015 1/19/2015 American Patriot Indus Cypress, TX 857.5

Hosler, Thomas 1/14/2015 1/15/2015 Office Max Humble, TX 1379.94

Hosler, Thomas 1/14/2015 1/15/2015 State Chemic State Che 800-782-2436, OH 262.99

Hosler, Thomas 1/14/2015 1/16/2015 Bio-Aquatic Testing, I Carrollton, TX 1700

Hosler, Thomas 1/13/2015 1/14/2015 Office Max Humble, TX 333.91

Hosler, Thomas 1/9/2015 1/9/2015 Scotty Plumbing Co 832-651-5259, TX 1025

Hosler, Thomas 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Eurofins Eaton Analyti 717-6562300, PA 685.77

Hosler, Thomas 1/7/2015 1/8/2015 Ww Grainger 877-2022594, PA 14.88

Hosler, Thomas 1/7/2015 1/8/2015 Ww Grainger 877-2022594, PA 991.83

Hosler, Thomas 1/6/2015 1/7/2015 Office Max Humble, TX 9.37

Hosler, Thomas 1/5/2015 1/6/2015 Golf Cars Of Houston Kingwood, TX 878

Hosler, Thomas 1/5/2015 1/7/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 160.53

18206.6

Johnson Iii, Louis 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Fort Bend Services  In Stafford, TX 1473

Johnson Iii, Louis 1/28/2015 1/30/2015 Teex 979 458 6903 College Stati, TX 375

Johnson Iii, Louis 1/28/2015 1/30/2015 Teex 979 458 6903 College Stati, TX 375

Johnson Iii, Louis 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Aqualsol Controllers I Houston, TX 102.11

2325.11

Kellar, Chancey 1/27/2015 1/28/2015 Small Engine Supply Humble, TX 29.99

Kellar, Chancey 1/16/2015 1/19/2015 Total Rental Center Houston, TX 161



Kellar, Chancey 1/6/2015 1/7/2015 Small Engine Supply Humble, TX 74.97

265.96

Kellum, Dixie 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Www.Logmein.Com 888-326-2642, MA 105.53

Kellum, Dixie 1/22/2015 1/23/2015 Www.Logmein.Com 888-326-2642, MA 105.53

211.06

Killian, Elanna 1/7/2015 1/9/2015 Laz Parking 110185 Houston, TX 10

Killian, Elanna 12/31/2014 1/2/2015 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 4.29

Killian, Elanna 12/30/2014 1/2/2015 Ampco Parking 1311 Pre Houston, TX 8

22.29

Killion, Ryan 1/22/2015 1/23/2015 Oreilly Auto  00004192 Humble, TX 53.99

Killion, Ryan 1/16/2015 1/19/2015 In  Adaptive Driving A 281-4871969, TX 126.4

Killion, Ryan 1/16/2015 1/19/2015 Industrial Disposal Su 2102273441, TX 2141.9

Killion, Ryan 1/13/2015 1/14/2015 Wm Supercenter #1837 Humble, TX 229.99

Killion, Ryan 1/9/2015 1/12/2015 Best Buy      00002550 Humble, TX 59.98

2612.26

Lee, Daniel 1/27/2015 1/29/2015 Hobby-Lobby #0160 Humble, TX 3.99

Lee, Daniel 1/27/2015 1/29/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 18.59

Lee, Daniel 1/5/2015 1/7/2015 Astro Lock And Safe Humble, TX 60

82.58

Legoudes, Melissa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 120.42

Legoudes, Melissa 1/27/2015 1/28/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 29.99

Legoudes, Melissa 1/27/2015 1/28/2015 Office Depot #5101 800-463-3768, AZ 3.99

Legoudes, Melissa 1/23/2015 1/26/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 124.98

Legoudes, Melissa 1/22/2015 1/23/2015 Icpc 08506549736, FL 125

Legoudes, Melissa 1/20/2015 1/22/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX -254.04

Legoudes, Melissa 1/20/2015 1/21/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 29.98

Legoudes, Melissa 1/20/2015 1/21/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 147.93

Legoudes, Melissa 1/20/2015 1/21/2015 Hallmark Office Pr Houston, TX 205.18

Legoudes, Melissa 1/20/2015 1/21/2015 Thomson West Tcd 800-328-4880, MN 166.9

Legoudes, Melissa 1/20/2015 1/21/2015 Thomson West Tcd 800-328-4880, MN 277.08

Legoudes, Melissa 1/16/2015 1/19/2015 Hallmark Office Pr Houston, TX 205.18

Legoudes, Melissa 1/13/2015 1/14/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 699.97

Legoudes, Melissa 1/13/2015 1/14/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 16.15

Legoudes, Melissa 1/13/2015 1/14/2015 Gih Globalindustrialeq 800-645-2986, FL 407.86

Legoudes, Melissa 1/13/2015 1/14/2015 Show Me Cables 06365199505, MO 76.24

Legoudes, Melissa 1/13/2015 1/14/2015 Afp&Cc/Nacop 03212640911, FL 60

Legoudes, Melissa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Lindsey'S Office Furni Houston, TX 2585

Legoudes, Melissa 1/9/2015 1/12/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 99.98

Legoudes, Melissa 1/9/2015 1/12/2015 Thyssenkruppelevator W 07707990400, GA -2278.14

Legoudes, Melissa 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 95.8

Legoudes, Melissa 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 259.98

Legoudes, Melissa 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 10.2

Legoudes, Melissa 1/7/2015 1/8/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 233.97

Legoudes, Melissa 1/7/2015 1/8/2015 Hallmark Office Pr Houston, TX 198.66

Legoudes, Melissa 1/7/2015 1/8/2015 Thyssenkruppelevator W 07707990400, GA 2278.14

Legoudes, Melissa 1/7/2015 1/8/2015 Thyssenkruppelevator W 07707990400, GA 2278.14

Legoudes, Melissa 1/7/2015 1/9/2015 Fbi National Academy A 703-6321990, VA 105

Legoudes, Melissa 1/6/2015 1/7/2015 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 13.99

Legoudes, Melissa 1/6/2015 1/7/2015 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 376.79

Legoudes, Melissa 1/6/2015 1/7/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 2553.7

Legoudes, Melissa 1/6/2015 1/8/2015 Cuevas Distribution In Fort Worth, TX 348

Legoudes, Melissa 1/6/2015 1/7/2015 Pulmolab 818-3687217, CA 49.86

Legoudes, Melissa 1/5/2015 1/7/2015 Lexisnexis Risk Mgt 08883328244, FL 211

Legoudes, Melissa 1/2/2015 1/5/2015 Office Depot #1079 800-463-3768, TX 84.89

Legoudes, Melissa 1/1/2015 1/2/2015 Adtsecurity Myadt.Com 800-238-2455, FL 139.47



Legoudes, Melissa 12/31/2014 1/2/2015 Blk 100 Club 7139520100, CA 150

12237.24

Legoudes, Michael 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Zoll Medical Corp 978-421-9655, MA 760.5

Legoudes, Michael 1/27/2015 1/28/2015 Stericycle 08667837422, IL 69.79

Legoudes, Michael 1/20/2015 1/21/2015 Zoll Medical Corp 978-421-9655, MA 665.34

Legoudes, Michael 1/20/2015 1/22/2015 Apco International Inc 386-944-2422, FL 92

Legoudes, Michael 1/19/2015 1/20/2015 Pac Sales Kitch/Home 2 Humble, TX 379

Legoudes, Michael 1/16/2015 1/19/2015 Apco International Inc 386-944-2422, FL 30

Legoudes, Michael 1/13/2015 1/14/2015 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 412.53

Legoudes, Michael 1/9/2015 1/12/2015 Ferno Washington Inc Wilmington, OH 74

Legoudes, Michael 1/9/2015 1/12/2015 Apco International Inc 386-944-2422, FL 30

2513.16

Love, Kenneth 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Mcc Elite Auto Paintin Humble, TX 2508

Love, Kenneth 1/26/2015 1/27/2015 Lone Star Uniforms Houston, TX 43

Love, Kenneth 1/26/2015 1/27/2015 Lone Star Uniforms Houston, TX 299.75

Love, Kenneth 1/26/2015 1/27/2015 Lone Star Uniforms Houston, TX 69.95

Love, Kenneth 1/26/2015 1/27/2015 Lone Star Uniforms Houston, TX 692.95

Love, Kenneth 1/26/2015 1/27/2015 Lone Star Uniforms Houston, TX 640

Love, Kenneth 1/26/2015 1/27/2015 Lone Star Uniforms Houston, TX 851.8

Love, Kenneth 1/26/2015 1/27/2015 Lone Star Uniforms Houston, TX 119.9

Love, Kenneth 1/26/2015 1/27/2015 Lone Star Uniforms Houston, TX 105.9

Love, Kenneth 1/20/2015 1/22/2015 Astro Lock And Safe Humble, TX 27.5

Love, Kenneth 1/16/2015 1/19/2015 Dent Out Humble, TX 150

Love, Kenneth 1/16/2015 1/19/2015 Lone Star Uniforms Houston, TX 150

Love, Kenneth 1/16/2015 1/19/2015 Lone Star Uniforms Houston, TX 150

Love, Kenneth 1/15/2015 1/19/2015 Public Safety Center Visalia, CA 419.95

Love, Kenneth 1/9/2015 1/13/2015 Lone Star Uniforms Houston, TX 165.85

Love, Kenneth 1/9/2015 1/13/2015 Lone Star Uniforms Houston, TX 91.9

Love, Kenneth 1/9/2015 1/13/2015 Lone Star Uniforms Houston, TX 59.95

Love, Kenneth 1/9/2015 1/13/2015 Lone Star Uniforms Houston, TX 30

Love, Kenneth 1/9/2015 1/13/2015 Lone Star Uniforms Houston, TX 158.85

Love, Kenneth 1/7/2015 1/9/2015 Sign Mart Of Humble Humble, TX 40.5

Love, Kenneth 12/31/2014 1/2/2015 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 10.49

6786.24

Macias, Mayra 1/7/2015 1/8/2015 Office Depot #1099 Delray Beach, FL 200.35

Martin, Gregory 1/14/2015 1/15/2015 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 15.98

Martin, Gregory 1/8/2015 1/12/2015 Verizon Wrls 18590-01 Humble, TX 44.98

60.96

Martin, Mark 1/27/2015 1/28/2015 Neopost New England 08602760276, CT 246

Martin, Mark 1/22/2015 1/26/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 219

Martin, Mark 12/29/2014 1/2/2015 Voss Lighting - Housto Houston, TX 1506

1971

Martinez, Fidel 1/19/2015 1/20/2015 Mister Car Wash #9 Qps Humble, TX 7

May, Brian 1/12/2015 1/14/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 12.27

Mccaa, George 1/28/2015 1/30/2015 Astro Lock And Safe Humble, TX 150

Mccaa, George 1/27/2015 1/29/2015 Astro Lock And Safe Humble, TX 150

Mccaa, George 1/26/2015 1/28/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 25.94

Mccaa, George 1/26/2015 1/28/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 0.97

Mccaa, George 1/23/2015 1/26/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 64.74

Mccaa, George 1/23/2015 1/26/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 49.61

Mccaa, George 1/21/2015 1/23/2015 Astro Lock And Safe Humble, TX 39.95

Mccaa, George 1/16/2015 1/19/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 3.87



Mccaa, George 1/15/2015 1/19/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 20.31

Mccaa, George 1/9/2015 1/12/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 19.94

Mccaa, George 1/8/2015 1/12/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 159.94

Mccaa, George 1/7/2015 1/9/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 48.47

Mccaa, George 1/6/2015 1/8/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 43.07

Mccaa, George 1/5/2015 1/7/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 39.7

Mccaa, George 1/5/2015 1/7/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 43.67

Mccaa, George 1/5/2015 1/7/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 15.48

Mccaa, George 1/5/2015 1/7/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 46.44

Mccaa, George 1/5/2015 1/7/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 8.25

Mccaa, George 1/5/2015 1/7/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 35.73

966.08

Meadows, Gordon 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Texas Southern Testing 07133137201, TX 60

Michaud, Paula 1/30/2015 1/30/2015 Comcast Houston Cs 1x 800-266-2278, TX 192.95

Michaud, Paula 1/30/2015 1/30/2015 Comcast Houston Cs 1x 800-266-2278, TX 72.43

Michaud, Paula 1/30/2015 1/30/2015 Vzwrlss My Vz Vb P 800-922-0204, GA 6933.25

Michaud, Paula 1/26/2015 1/27/2015 Republic Services Tras 08665765548, AZ 2948

Michaud, Paula 1/26/2015 1/27/2015 Republic Services Tras 08665765548, AZ 504.66

Michaud, Paula 1/16/2015 1/19/2015 Wm Ezpay 866-834-2080, TX 3179.36

Michaud, Paula 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 004 Centurylink Ivr 877-290-5458, LA 7235.21

Michaud, Paula 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Republic Services Tras 08665765548, AZ 2542.77

Michaud, Paula 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Republic Services Tras 08665765548, AZ 297.53

Michaud, Paula 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Republic Services Tras 08665765548, AZ 113.01

Michaud, Paula 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Republic Services Tras 08665765548, AZ 568.37

Michaud, Paula 1/13/2015 1/13/2015 Comcast Houston Cs 1x 800-266-2278, TX 143.8

Michaud, Paula 1/13/2015 1/13/2015 Comcast Houston Cs 1x 800-266-2278, TX 147.4

Michaud, Paula 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Republic Services Tras 08665765548, AZ 48.71

Michaud, Paula 1/12/2015 1/14/2015 Wm Ezpay 866-834-2080, TX 276.63

Michaud, Paula 1/12/2015 1/14/2015 Wm Ezpay 866-834-2080, TX 85.75

Michaud, Paula 1/12/2015 1/14/2015 Wm Ezpay 866-834-2080, TX 202.94

Michaud, Paula 1/12/2015 1/14/2015 Wm Ezpay 866-834-2080, TX 4828.8

Michaud, Paula 1/8/2015 1/8/2015 Comcast Houston Cs 1x 800-266-2278, TX 118.63

Michaud, Paula 12/31/2014 1/2/2015 Wm Ezpay 866-834-2080, TX 3225.84

33666.04

Miller, Missy 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Miller, Missy 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Miller, Missy 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Miller, Missy 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Miller, Missy 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Miller, Missy 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Miller, Missy 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Miller, Missy 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Miller, Missy 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Miller, Missy 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Miller, Missy 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Miller, Missy 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Miller, Missy 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Miller, Missy 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Miller, Missy 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Miller, Missy 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Miller, Missy 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Miller, Missy 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Miller, Missy 1/20/2015 1/21/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Miller, Missy 1/20/2015 1/21/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Miller, Missy 1/20/2015 1/21/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Miller, Missy 1/20/2015 1/21/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Miller, Missy 1/20/2015 1/21/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5



Miller, Missy 1/20/2015 1/21/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Miller, Missy 1/20/2015 1/21/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

162.5

Mittag, Jeremy 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Great Southwest Paper 713-223-5050, TX 28.68

Mittag, Jeremy 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Nes Rentals 99 Humble, TX 1527.53

Mittag, Jeremy 1/26/2015 1/27/2015 Great Southwest Paper 713-223-5050, TX 1712.11

Mittag, Jeremy 1/16/2015 1/19/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 29.94

Mittag, Jeremy 1/15/2015 1/19/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 15.33

Mittag, Jeremy 1/14/2015 1/15/2015 Great Southwest Paper 713-223-5050, TX 86.7

Mittag, Jeremy 1/13/2015 1/14/2015 Jwj Hps Catalog 800-322-7288, SC 714.1

Mittag, Jeremy 1/13/2015 1/14/2015 Seedman.Com/Rachael 02282186544, MS 30.8

Mittag, Jeremy 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Flame Engineering Inc La Crosse, KS 84.84

Mittag, Jeremy 1/8/2015 1/12/2015 Willhite Seed Inc Poolville, TX 27.35

4257.38

Moore, Sharon 1/19/2015 1/20/2015 Ds Services Standard C 800-4928377, GA 12.7

Moreno, Edis 1/20/2015 1/21/2015 Oreilly Auto  00004192 Humble, TX 52.39

Morgan, Cindy 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Office Depot #2661 Humble, TX 16.99

Morgan, Cindy 1/28/2015 1/30/2015 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX -15.99

Morgan, Cindy 1/27/2015 1/28/2015 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 22.98

Morgan, Cindy 1/9/2015 1/12/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 87.86

Morgan, Cindy 1/8/2015 1/12/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX -17.15

Morgan, Cindy 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Office Depot #1214 800-463-3768, GA 11.63

Morgan, Cindy 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Office Depot #1079 800-463-3768, TX 10.8

Morgan, Cindy 1/7/2015 1/8/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 590.37

Morgan, Cindy 1/7/2015 1/8/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 34.99

Morgan, Cindy 1/7/2015 1/8/2015 Office Depot #1105 800-463-3768, IL 39.99

782.47

Naquin, Leroy 1/23/2015 1/26/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 37.08

Naquin, Leroy 1/14/2015 1/15/2015 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 61.97

Naquin, Leroy 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Ferguson Ent #2725 281-446-3869, TX 97.34

Naquin, Leroy 1/9/2015 1/12/2015 Ewing Irrigation Prd#1 Humble, TX 3.15

199.54

Neeley, William 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Clicks Tire Service In Porter, TX 65

Neeley, William 1/27/2015 1/28/2015 M And D Distributors 713-928-5686, TX 924.24

Neeley, William 1/27/2015 1/29/2015 Brookside Equipment Sa Spring, TX 91.88

Neeley, William 1/21/2015 1/23/2015 Astro Lock And Safe Humble, TX 50

Neeley, William 1/20/2015 1/21/2015 Sq  Stanley Mcwilliams Humble, TX 351

Neeley, William 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Northside Auto Glass - Humble, TX 325

Neeley, William 1/13/2015 1/15/2015 Firestone 679283 Humble, TX 39.75

Neeley, William 1/12/2015 1/14/2015 Firestone 679283 Humble, TX 49.99

Neeley, William 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Radioshack Cor00182758Humble, TX 13.58

Neeley, William 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Tooltopia 8007946793, LA 56.61

Neeley, William 1/6/2015 1/8/2015 Young S One Stop Humble, TX 49

Neeley, William 12/30/2014 1/2/2015 Sears Roebuck   1417 Humble, TX 45.47

2061.52

Nguyen, Xuyen 1/27/2015 1/29/2015 Arpis Deli Houston, TX 10.06

Nguyen, Xuyen 1/26/2015 1/28/2015 Central Bar B Q Pearland, TX 51.3

61.36

Niemeyer, Eugene 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Mes Fire 203-3044112, CT 262.8

Niemeyer, Eugene 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Mes Fire 203-3044112, CT 68.6

Niemeyer, Eugene 1/20/2015 1/21/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 197.37

Niemeyer, Eugene 1/20/2015 1/20/2015 Www.Northernsafety.Com800-625-1591, NY 201.97



Niemeyer, Eugene 1/16/2015 1/19/2015 Sign Mart Of Humble Humble, TX 405

Niemeyer, Eugene 12/31/2014 1/5/2015 Mes Fire 2033044112, CT 1088.76

2224.5

Nykaza, James 1/21/2015 1/23/2015 Beasley Tire Srvc-King Kingwood, TX 82.49

Nykaza, James 1/16/2015 1/19/2015 Sportsmans Outlet Humble, TX 185.92

Nykaza, James 1/16/2015 1/16/2015 Galls Intern 859-266-7227, KY 14.83

Nykaza, James 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Best Buy      00002550 Humble, TX 209.99

Nykaza, James 1/6/2015 1/6/2015 Galls Intern 859-266-7227, KY 37.1

Nykaza, James 12/31/2014 1/2/2015 Mister Car Wash #19qps Humble, TX 15

545.33

Ortiz, Raul 1/28/2015 1/30/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 35.46

Ortiz, Raul 1/26/2015 1/27/2015 Sq  Stacey Sanford Humble, TX 1350

Ortiz, Raul 1/23/2015 1/26/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 82.41

Ortiz, Raul 1/23/2015 1/26/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 105.77

Ortiz, Raul 1/20/2015 1/22/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 9.99

Ortiz, Raul 1/12/2015 1/14/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 124.48

Ortiz, Raul 1/6/2015 1/7/2015 Radioshack Cor00182758Humble, TX 25.48

Ortiz, Raul 1/6/2015 1/7/2015 Batteries Plus #42 Conroe, TX 39.9

1773.49

Ower, Teresa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/27/2015 1/28/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/27/2015 1/28/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5



Ower, Teresa 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/14/2015 1/15/2015 Usps 48419003331404999Humble, TX 2.49

Ower, Teresa 1/14/2015 1/15/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/14/2015 1/15/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/14/2015 1/15/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/14/2015 1/15/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/14/2015 1/15/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/14/2015 1/15/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/14/2015 1/15/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/14/2015 1/15/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/14/2015 1/15/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/14/2015 1/15/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/14/2015 1/15/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/14/2015 1/14/2015 Texas Municipal League 512-231-7400, TX 90

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/9/2015 1/12/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/9/2015 1/12/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/9/2015 1/12/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5



Ower, Teresa 1/9/2015 1/12/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/9/2015 1/12/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/9/2015 1/12/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/9/2015 1/12/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/9/2015 1/12/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/9/2015 1/12/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/9/2015 1/12/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/9/2015 1/12/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/7/2015 1/8/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/7/2015 1/8/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/7/2015 1/8/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/7/2015 1/8/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/7/2015 1/8/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/7/2015 1/8/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Ower, Teresa 1/7/2015 1/8/2015 Tx Dept Of Insuran Austin, TX 100

Ower, Teresa 1/6/2015 1/7/2015 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 23.98

1035.47

Pearson, Ray 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Mister Car Wash #9 Qps Humble, TX 7

Peters, Richard 1/16/2015 1/19/2015 Sportsmans Outlet Humble, TX 650

Phillips, Aimee 1/27/2015 1/28/2015 Harris Co Toll Rd-Rebi Houston, TX 120

Pitts, Joshua 1/23/2015 1/26/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 51.63

Pitts, Joshua 1/19/2015 1/20/2015 Total Rental Center Houston, TX 211

262.63

Price, Julia 1/12/2015 1/14/2015 Custom Built Awards Humble, TX 64.95

Price, Julia 12/30/2014 1/2/2015 Custom Built Awards Humble, TX 5

69.95

Rhodes, Victoria 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 5.19

Rhodes, Victoria 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 92.03

Rhodes, Victoria 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 American Screen Graphi Kingwood, TX 45

Rhodes, Victoria 1/20/2015 1/21/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 309.96

Rhodes, Victoria 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 27.72

Rhodes, Victoria 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 47.78

Rhodes, Victoria 1/14/2015 1/15/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 91.8

Rhodes, Victoria 1/13/2015 1/14/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 160

Rhodes, Victoria 1/13/2015 1/14/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 59.18

Rhodes, Victoria 1/13/2015 1/14/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 334.03

Rhodes, Victoria 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 102.7

Rhodes, Victoria 1/9/2015 1/12/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 75.27



Rhodes, Victoria 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 82.93

Rhodes, Victoria 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 54.94

Rhodes, Victoria 1/6/2015 1/8/2015 Pods #39 Houston, TX 165

Rhodes, Victoria 12/31/2014 1/2/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 50.44

Rhodes, Victoria 12/31/2014 1/2/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 66.35

1770.32

Richard, Dale 1/27/2015 1/27/2015 Nsc Northern Safety Co 800-631-1246, NY 341.75

Richard, Dale 1/27/2015 1/27/2015 Nsc Northern Safety Co 800-631-1246, NY 11.79

Richard, Dale 1/7/2015 1/9/2015 Cavenders Boot #26 Humble, TX -10

343.54

Rivera, Marvin 1/13/2015 1/14/2015 Ryan'S Express Dry Cle Kingwood, TX 95.24

Rodriguez, Jose 1/27/2015 1/28/2015 Besco Electric Supply Houston, TX 102.08

Rodriguez, Jose 1/26/2015 1/28/2015 Shell Oil 57543432801 Humble, TX 17.84

Rodriguez, Jose 1/7/2015 1/8/2015 Wal-Mart #1837 Humble, TX 133.52

Rodriguez, Jose 1/5/2015 1/6/2015 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 26.76

280.2

Schultz, Jacob 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Port City Fasteners Ll Humble, TX 3.19

Schultz, Jacob 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 Bolt Depot Inc. 781-3379888, MA 368.57

Schultz, Jacob 1/21/2015 1/23/2015 Eagle Traffic Signs & Houston, TX 11152

Schultz, Jacob 1/16/2015 1/19/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 8.94

Schultz, Jacob 1/15/2015 1/15/2015 Parts Town, Llc 800-438-8898, IL 128.5

Schultz, Jacob 1/15/2015 1/19/2015 Astro Lock And Safe Humble, TX 69.49

Schultz, Jacob 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Need For Seat Usa 614-295-4127, OH 687.98

Schultz, Jacob 1/7/2015 1/9/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 126.39

12545.06

Scott, David 1/24/2015 1/26/2015 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 15.99

Scott, Randy 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Vitalpet 1 Humble, TX 15

Scott, Randy 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Petco 479     63504799 Humble, TX 169.99

Scott, Randy 1/26/2015 1/27/2015 Tractor-Supply-Co #040 Porter, TX 20

Scott, Randy 1/22/2015 1/26/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 76.89

Scott, Randy 1/21/2015 1/22/2015 Vitalpet 1 Humble, TX 75

Scott, Randy 1/19/2015 1/20/2015 Vitalpet 1 Humble, TX 15

Scott, Randy 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Vitalpet 1 Humble, TX 45

Scott, Randy 1/14/2015 1/16/2015 Astro Lock And Safe Humble, TX 3

Scott, Randy 1/13/2015 1/15/2015 Sign Mart Of Humble Humble, TX 50

Scott, Randy 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Tractor-Supply-Co #040 Porter, TX 25

Scott, Randy 1/6/2015 1/7/2015 Vitalpet 1 Humble, TX 30

Scott, Randy 1/5/2015 1/6/2015 Vitalpet 1 Humble, TX 91

Scott, Randy 1/5/2015 1/6/2015 Vitalpet 1 Humble, TX 15

630.88

Stephens, Philisa 1/21/2015 1/22/2015 Cdw Government 800-750-4239, IL 122.81

Stephens, Philisa 1/17/2015 1/19/2015 Dmi  Dell K-12/Govt 800-981-3355, TX 5314.2

Stephens, Philisa 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Racksolutions 9034530801, TX 135.37

Stephens, Philisa 1/15/2015 1/15/2015 Ups 1z4t58g70390280053800-811-1648, GA 20.35

Stephens, Philisa 1/15/2015 1/15/2015 Ups 1z4t58g70392992049800-811-1648, GA 20.35

Stephens, Philisa 1/13/2015 1/14/2015 Cdw Government 800-750-4239, IL 906.31

Stephens, Philisa 1/6/2015 1/7/2015 Cdw Government 800-750-4239, IL 2548

9067.39

Stuebe, Jason 1/22/2015 1/26/2015 Frisco Parking Garage Frisco, TX 5

Stuebe, Jason 1/21/2015 1/23/2015 Jimmy John'S # 1144 - Frisco, TX 13.95



Stuebe, Jason 1/21/2015 1/26/2015 Holiday Inn Express Fr Frisco, TX 244.08

Stuebe, Jason 1/17/2015 1/19/2015 Texas Municipal League 512-231-7400, TX 215

Stuebe, Jason 1/16/2015 1/19/2015 Chevron 0370306 Humble, TX 14.27

Stuebe, Jason 1/15/2015 1/15/2015 Texas Municipal League 512-231-7400, TX 1075

Stuebe, Jason 1/14/2015 1/15/2015 Quality Logo Products 08663125646, IL 156.5

Stuebe, Jason 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Txdps Driver Recor Austin, TX 6.5

Stuebe, Jason 12/31/2014 1/2/2015 Quality Logo Products 08663125646, IL 331.04

2061.34

Taska, Allison 1/17/2015 1/19/2015 Comcast Of Houston 713-341-1000, TX 110.22

Turner, Kathy 1/16/2015 1/19/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 391.88

Villa, Joel 1/28/2015 1/30/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 77.17

Villa, Joel 1/19/2015 1/21/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 299.72

Villa, Joel 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Samsclub #6367 Humble, TX 40.19

Villa, Joel 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 Sherwin Williams #7319 Humble, TX 41.63

Villa, Joel 1/12/2015 1/13/2015 Sams Club #6367 Humble, TX 145.84

604.55

Villegas, Oscar 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 Kings Wine & Bier Gart Pearland, TX 63.27

Villegas, Oscar 1/26/2015 1/28/2015 Waffle House 2002 Pearland, TX 20.95

84.22

Warman, Gary 1/26/2015 1/27/2015 Paypal  Texaspolice 4029357733, CA 420

Warman, Gary 1/5/2015 1/6/2015 Pappas Seafood House #Humble, TX 60.8

480.8

Watkins, Wyatt 1/28/2015 1/28/2015 Ferrara Fire Apparatus 225-5677100, LA 88.8

Watkins, Wyatt 1/28/2015 1/28/2015 Ferrara Fire Apparatus 225-5677100, LA 57.6

Watkins, Wyatt 1/20/2015 1/20/2015 Ferrara Fire Apparatus 225-5677100, LA 823.4

Watkins, Wyatt 1/20/2015 1/28/2015 Ferrara Fire Apparatus 225-5677100, LA -464.1

505.7

Wrobliske, Edward 1/9/2015 1/12/2015 Tlo Transunion 05619884200, FL 6.25

Wrobliske, Edward 1/9/2015 1/12/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 15.99

Wrobliske, Edward 1/8/2015 1/12/2015 The Home Depot 576 Humble, TX 15.99

Wrobliske, Edward 1/5/2015 1/7/2015 Astro Lock And Safe Humble, TX 39.8

Wrobliske, Edward 1/5/2015 1/7/2015 Fbi National Academy A 703-6321990, VA 105

183.03

Zavala, Sylvia 1/8/2015 1/9/2015 Md Online Inc 888-499-5465, NJ 75



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

3-26-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #2D 

 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 











 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

3-26-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #2E 

 

CORRESPONDENCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 
 
 

 
March 13, 2015 

Number 11 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Today is Bill Filing Deadline 
 

Today is the bill filing deadline for the 2015 regular session.  The numbers so far indicate that 

“less government” isn’t the case, and we will likely see a total bills filed number on par with 

recent sessions.   

 

As is always the case, hundreds of bills are city-related and would do great harm to cities. Given 

the fact that so many bills were filed in the days leading up to the deadline, it will likely take 

three editions of the Legislative Update before those filed by the deadline are all summarized.  

 

In addition, some bill summaries will, of necessity, be brief. Future editions of the update will 

expand on the most important bills if and when they progress through the legislative process. 

 

 

Oil and Gas Industry Goes Nuclear Against Homeowners 
 

Three bills have been introduced in the Texas Legislature to exempt oil and gas industry 

activities from most local rules that protect the health, safety, and property rights of Texans. 

 

The League suspected that the industry would not be satisfied with legislation prohibiting 

fracking bans, like the one that voters approved in Denton.  And now it’s clear they have gotten 

greedy and see an opportunity to pursue a “scorched earth” strategy to wipe out nearly every city 

regulation. 

 



2 
 
 
 

H.B. 40 and H.B. 2855, both by Rep. Drew Darby (R – San Angelo), and S.B. 1165 by Troy Fraser 

(R – Horseshoe Bay), would expressly preempt most regulation of oil and gas operations by cities 

and all other political subdivisions. 

 

If these bills pass, a city could have drilling operations right next to homes, day care centers, 

churches, or hospitals.  Industry groups have claimed that these bills don’t restrict city authority 

over siting; they are wrong.   

 

Many Texas cities have adopted setback requirements to create a buffer zone between drilling 

rigs and homes, schools, parks, and hospitals.  The League surveyed city ordinances in the 

Barnett Shale area in North Texas last year and found that 67 cities required buffer zones ranging 

from 300 feet to 1,500 feet between a well and residences.  If city setback ordinances are 

nullified, homeowners can be robbed of their property values overnight without any 

compensation or recourse, amounting to a state government sanctioned taking of their property 

rights. 

 

The proposed bills would not only reverse the results of a city election and interfere with pending 

litigation in the City of Denton, they would also preempt local ordinances in numerous cities 

across the state.  They would make it more difficult for homeowners and local citizens to voice 

their concerns by requiring that local land use decisions be handled in Austin. 

 
                 

City Officials Testify 
 

When the legislature is in session, nothing compares to the effectiveness of city officials 

testifying at the Capitol. City officials who take their time to travel to Austin to speak out on 

important city issues should be applauded by us all. The League extends its thanks to all those 

who have vigilantly represented cities during the legislative session. 

 

 Chris Fails, Mayor, Hollywood Park 

 Steve Adler, Mayor, Austin 

 Angela Raiborn, Mayor, Rusk 

 Evalyn Moore, Mayor, Richmond 

 Vincent Morales, Mayor, Rosenberg 

 Ed Van Eenoo, Deputy Chief Financial Officer, Austin 

 Michael Cosentino, City Attorney, San Marcos 

 Jessica Anderson, Police Lieutenant, Houston 

 Chris Caso, Senior Assistant City Attorney, Dallas 

 Randy Smith, Police Department, San Antonio 

 Azel Carter, Police Department, Pasadena 
 

 

 

 



3 
 
 
 

Significant Committee Actions 
 

S.B. 273 (Campbell), Relating to certain offenses relating to carrying concealed handguns on 

property owned or leased by a governmental entity.  Reported from the Senate State Affairs 

Committee. 

 

S.B. 318 (Hinojosa), Relating to the amount the Texas Military Preparedness Commission may 

grant to local governmental entities for certain purposes.  Reported from the Senate Veteran 

Affairs/Military Installations Committee. 

 

 

City-Related Bills Filed This Week 
 

Each week, League staff summarizes in this section the city-related bills filed during the 

previous week.  For a cumulative list of all city-related bills filed to date, click here. 

 

Property Tax 

 

H.B. 2292 (Parker) – Property Tax Appraisal: would authorize reasonable attorney’s fees of 

any amount for a property owner who prevails in an appeal of the appraisal review board’s denial 

of a property tax exemption relating to cemeteries, disabled veterans, nonprofit community 

business organizations, historic sites, and other miscellaneous exemptions. 

 

H.B. 2305 (Canales) – Property Tax Exemption: would provide that, for property tax 

purposes, a “nonprofit community business organization” includes a Type A and Type B 

economic development corporation. 

 

H.B. 2306 (Canales) – Property Tax Exemption:  would limit the additional tax imposed on 

land appraised for property tax purposes as open-space land if a change in use of the land occurs 

to an amount equal to the difference between the taxes imposed on the land for each of the two 

years preceding the year in which the change of use occurs and the tax that would have been 

imposed had the land been taxed on the basis of market value in each of those years.  

 

H.B. 2336 (Flynn) – Property Tax Appraisal: would prohibit a chief appraiser from collecting, 

considering, or using information regarding the owner of the residence homestead or the value of 

the residence homestead when making the determination of the appraised value of the 

homestead, unless the information is: (1) readily available to the general public; or (2) 

voluntarily provided to the chief appraiser by the owner of the residence homestead.  

 

H.B. 2337 (Gonzales) – Property Tax Appraisal: would provide that the county assessor-

collector is not eligible to serve on the appraisal district board of directors.  

 

H.B. 2367 (C. Turner) – Property Tax Collection: would provide that the interest rate during a 

period of deferred collection of taxes on the residence homestead of an elderly or disabled 

http://www.tml.org/p/CityRelatedBills3_13_2015.pdf


4 
 
 
 

individual is the five-year Constant Maturity Treasury Rate reported by the Federal Reserve as of 

January 1 of the year in which the deferral or abatement was obtained.  

 

H.B. 2378 (Dutton) – Tax Preferences:  would: (1) require a select commission on periodic tax 

preferences review all state and local “tax preferences” and develop a review schedule under 

which each tax preferences are reviewed once during each six-year period; (2) require the 

commission to file final report on the reviews of tax preferences to the governor and the 

presiding officers of the Senate Finance Committee and the House Ways and Means committee 

not later than September 1 of each even-numbered year; (3) provide that a tax preference 

included in a final report expires on the second anniversary of the date the final report is filed, 

unless reauthorized by law; and (4) provide that each tax preference enacted by the legislature 

that becomes law on or after September 1, 2016, expires six years after the date it takes effect, 

unless the legislature provides an earlier or later expiration date. (See H.J.R. 107, below.) 

 

H.B. 2399 (Bohac) – Property Tax Delinquency: would limit the collection of certain penalties 

and interest relating to the deferral or abatement of the collection of property taxes on residence 

homesteads that are manufactured homes treated as personal property. 

 

H.B. 2480 (Murphy) – Property Tax Appraisal: would make changes to the contents of a 

notice of appraised value sent to a property owner by the chief appraiser, including requiring the 

following: (1) the tax rate adopted in the preceding year by each taxing unit taxing the property; 

(2) an estimate of the tax savings for the current year resulting from each partial exemption 

calculated on the basis of the tax rate adopted in the preceding year by each taxing unit taxing the 

property; (3) an estimate of the tax savings resulting from the application of a senior or disabled 

tax freeze in the current tax year calculated on the basis of the tax rate adopted by the applicable 

taxing unit in the preceding year; (4) the deadlines for filing a notice of protest with the appraisal 

review board; and (5) an explanation of the method for estimating the taxes that may be imposed 

by each taxing unit based on the value of the property for the current year and the tax rate 

adopted in the preceding year by each taxing unit taxing the property in the notice. 

 

H.B. 2591 (Phillips) – Property Tax Appraisal: would modify the method for appraising 

certain dealer’s heavy equipment inventory by minimizing the opportunity to tie the appraised 

value of the inventory to the lease or rental price. 

 

H.B. 2662 (Coleman) – Property Tax Appraisal: would repeal the state law prohibiting the 

chief appraiser from excluding from consideration the value of other residential property in the 

same neighborhood as a residence homestead being appraised because the other property: (1) 

was sold at a foreclosure sale conducted in any of the three years preceding the tax year in which 

the residence homestead is being appraised and was comparable at the time of sale; or (2) has a 

market value that has declined because of a declining economy.  

 

H.B. 2663 (Coleman) – Property Tax Exemption: would, among other things: (1) provide a 

100 percent property tax exemption for property owned by an organization for the purpose of 

constructing or rehabilitating low-income housing and rented to individuals or families whose 

median income is not more than 60 percent of the area’s median family income or the statewide 



5 
 
 
 

family income; and (2) provide that an organization seeking an exemption under (1), above, that 

is located in a county with a population of at least 1.8 million need not receive approval of the 

exemption by the governing body of a taxing unit in which the property is located.  

 

H.B. 2670 (Paul) – Property Tax Notice: would allow a city or county to provide the required 

property tax rate notice not later than the later of September 1 or the 30th day after the date the 

certified appraisal roll is received by the taxing unit. (Note: This is a TML priority bill.) 

(Companion bill is S.B. 884 by Hinojosa.) 

 

H.B. 2746 (Smith) – Property Tax Exemption: would, for purposes of the property tax 

exemption for pollution control property: (1) provide that the circumstances in which property is 

considered to be used, constructed, acquired, or installed wholly or partly to meet or exceed 

environmental regulations include circumstances in which: (a) the property is used as part of a 

voluntary project to meet or exceed a goal or standard set by an environmental regulation; or (b) 

the property is used to meet or exceed an environmental regulation that has been adopted but 

does not apply to the property because of the date the property is installed, the manner in which 

the property is used, or the fact that the installation of the property reduces or prevents pollution 

in a manner that prevents the regulation from applying to the property; (2) provide that for 

property to qualify for a property tax exemption, the control of air, water, or land pollution 

resulting from the use of the property must result from the use of the property by the person 

seeking the exemption and not from the characteristics of the goods produced or services 

provided by the person or the use of those goods or services by another person; (3) provide that 

the following facilities, devices, and methods are for the control of air, water, or land pollution: 

(a) steam turbine systems enhanced to accommodate steam from heat recovery systems; and (b) 

property used or installed to capture and sequester carbon dioxide from an anthropogenic source 

to comply with a regulation by a federal or state environmental protection agency or a political 

subdivision of the state; and (4) provide that a chief appraiser may evaluate whether the pollution 

control property facilitates an increase in production of goods at the facility and may take 

additional income from the facilitation into account if using the income method of appraisal to 

determine the property’s market value.  

 

H.J.R. 107 (Dutton) – Tax Preferences: would amend the Texas Constitution to require the 

periodic review of state and local tax preferences. (See H.B. 2378, above.) 

 

S.B. 974 (Zaffirini) – Property Tax Appraisal: would exempt properties located in counties 

with populations of less than 25,000 from the additional tax imposed if the use of land appraised 

for property tax purposes as open-space land is changed.  

 

S.B. 1069 (West) – Property Tax Exemption: would make permanent the property tax 

exemption for landfill-generated gas conversion facilities. (Companion bill is H.B. 994 by 

Anchia.) 

 

S.B. 1084 (Ellis) – Property Tax Appraisal: would: (1) provide that a district court may grant 

relief on the ground that a property is appraised unequally if the appraised value of the property 

exceeds the median appraised value of a reasonable number of comparable properties 



6 
 
 
 

appropriately adjusted and: (a) the property qualified as a residence homestead for the relevant 

tax year; or (b) the appraised value of the property as determined by the order of the appraisal 

review board is $1 million or less; (2) provide that a district court may grant relief on the ground 

that a property is appraised unequally if the appraisal ratio of the property exceeds by at least ten 

percent the median level of appraisal of a reasonable and representative sample of comparable 

properties in the appraisal district; (3) provide that if a property owner is entitled to relief under 

multiple grounds due to unequal appraisal, the court shall order the property’s appraised value 

changed to the value that in the judgment of the court best reflects the level of appraisal of other 

property in the appraisal district; (4) require a person making a determination that property is 

comparable to another property to base the determination on the similarity of the properties with 

regard to location, square footage of the lot and improvements, property age, property condition, 

property access, amenities, views, income, operating expenses, occupancy, and the existence of 

easements, deed restrictions, or other legal burdens affecting marketability; (5) require the 

comptroller to establish standards for the development and calibration of adjustments for 

industrial, petrochemical refining and processing, and utility properties and other unique 

properties; and (6) provide that an appraisal district, appraisal review board, or a chief appraiser 

that prevails in an appeal for unequal appraisal may be awarded reasonable attorney’s fees not to 

exceed $15,000.  

 

Sales Tax 

 

H.B. 2294 (Bohac) – Sales Tax Exemption: would impose audit, assessment, and collection 

procedures relating to the comptroller’s granting of a sales and use tax exemption for general 

aviation aircraft.  

 

H.B. 2313 (Bohac) – Sales Tax Exemption: would exempt the sale of tangible personal 

property through certain vending machines from sales and use taxes. 

 

H.B. 2492 (Darby) – Sales Tax Exemption: would exempt the sale of a WaterSense product 

from sales and use taxes if the sale taxes place on Memorial Day weekend.  

 

H.B. 2507 (Kacal) – Sales Tax Exemption: would exempt certain equipment used for digital 

audio broadcasting from sales and use taxes. (Companion bill is S.B. 1030 by Seliger.)  

 

H.B. 2527 (Guillen) – Sales Tax Exemption: would characterize the lease or rental of reusable 

tangible personal property to a caterer as a “sale for resale” if the caterer uses the property in a 

sale of a taxable item, thereby exempting the tangible personal property from sales taxes. 

 

H.B. 2603 (D. Bonnen) – Sales Tax Exemption: would exempt the sale of a gun safety device 

from sales and use taxes if the sales price is less than $2,500 and the sale takes place on a 

specific weekend in July.  

 

H.B. 2691 (T. King) – Sales Tax Exemption: would, among other things, exempt from sales 

and use taxes: (1) the sale, use, or other consumption of alternative base fluids used in 

connection with an energized fracturing operation in an oil or gas well; and (2) tangible personal 



7 
 
 
 

property specifically used to process, reuse, or recycle alternative base fluids that will be used in 

energized fracturing work performed at an oil or gas well.  

 

H.B. 2693 (Paul) – Sales Tax Exemption: would exempt the sale of emergency preparedness 

items from sales and use taxes if the sale takes place during a three-day window each April. 

 

H.B. 2694 (Button) – Sales Tax Exemption: would exempt the sale of tangible personal 

property by a small business retailer from sales and use taxes if: (1) the sales price of the item is 

not more than $5,000; and (2) the item is sold on the first Saturday after Thanksgiving.  

 

H.B. 2712 (Geren) – Sales Tax Exemption: would exempt certain tangible personal property 

necessary and essential to the operation of a qualified large data center project from sales and use 

taxes for 20 years.  

 

S.B. 1009 (Eltife) – Sales Tax Refund: would increase the maximum state sales tax refund 

available to a cable television service, Internet access service, or telecommunications service 

from not more than $50 million for the calendar year to not more than $150 million for the 

calendar year. (Companion bill is H.B. 2199 by Parker.) 

 

S.B. 1030 (Seliger) – Sales Tax Exemption: would exempt certain equipment used for digital 

audio broadcasting from sales and use taxes. (Companion bill is H.B. 2507 by Kacal.) 

 

S.B. 1104 (Hancock) – Sales Tax Exemption: would exempt certain tangible personal property 

necessary and essential to the operation of a qualified large data center project from sales and use 

taxes for 20 years.  

 

Purchasing 

 

H.B. 2487 (Smithee) – School District Facilities: would apply to an independent school district 

and a city located wholly or partially in the boundaries of a county in which the district is 

located, and would provide that the district may contract to contribute district resources to pay a 

portion of the costs of the design, improvement, or construction of an instructional facility, 

stadium, or other athletic facility owned by, on the property of, or under the control of the city. 

(Companion bill is S.B. 810 by Seliger.) 

 

H.B. 2634 (Kuempel) – Construction Manager-At-Risk: would provide that: (1) a 

governmental entity’s architect or engineer for a project, or an entity related to the governmental 

entity’s architect or engineer, may not serve, alone or in combination with another person, as the 

construction manager-at-risk; (2) for purposes of the bill, an entity is related to the governmental 

entity’s architect or engineer if the entity is a sole proprietorship, corporation, partnership, 

limited liability company, or other entity that is a subsidiary, parent corporation, or partner or has 

any other relationship in which the governmental entity’s architect or engineer has an ownership 

interest, or is subject to common ownership or control, or is party to an agreement by which it 

will receive any proceeds of the construction manager-at-risk's payments from the governmental 

entity. 



8 
 
 
 

 

S.B. 1052 (Zaffirini) – Economically Disadvantaged Person: would add a person with any 

disability covered by the federal Americans with Disabilities Act to the list of historically 

underutilized businesses. 

 
S.B. 1081 (Creighton) – Consolidated Insurance Programs: would provide that: (1) an insurer 

or the insurer’s agent shall timely provide information to a contractor or potential contractor of a 

construction project that is covered under or that may be covered under an insurance policy 

under a consolidated insurance program; (2) the state’s insurance commissioner shall adopt rules 

establishing requirements governing the provision of the information.  (Companion bill is H.B. 

1206 by Huberty.) 

 

Elections 

 

H.B. 2354 (Farney) – Uniform Election Date:  would provide that, with certain exceptions, 

every general or special election in the state shall be held on the second Saturday in May in an 

odd-number year or the first Saturday in May in an even-numbered year.  

  

H.B. 2366 (Goldman) – Early Voting:  would provide that the early voting clerk shall deliver 

the early voting precinct list to the voter register, who shall enter beside each person’s name 

“early voting voter” on the list of early voting voters.   

 

H.B. 2382 (Reynolds) – Elections: would: (1) allow a federal postcard application to be 

submitted in person to the early voting clerk for the election precinct of the applicant’s residence; 

and (2) provide that an application for a federal postcard ballot is considered to be submitted at 

the time it is received by the early voting clerk who receives the initial in-person delivery, 

regardless of whether the clerk was required to forward the application to the appropriate clerk.  

 

H.B. 2383 (Reynolds) – Elections: would allow a person to submit a one-time request for an 

early voting ballot for each election in which the county clerk serves as early voting clerk, to be 

effective until: (1) the county clerk receives notice that the voter has submitted a change in 

registration information; or (2) the voter is no longer eligible for early voting by mail due to an 

absence from the person’s county of residence. 

 

H.B. 2384 (Reynolds) – Elections: would allow a person to submit an application to vote an 

early ballot by mail at any time in the year preceding the date of the election for which a ballot is 

requested.  

 

H.B. 2385 (Reynolds) – Elections: would provide that: (1) an application for a ballot to be voted 

by mail may indicate a change of residence address; (2) if a voter includes a change of residence 

address in the voter’s application, the early voting clerk shall notify the appropriate voter 

registrars of the change.  

 

H.B. 2386 (Reynolds) – Early Voting by Mail:  would:  (1) provide that a qualified voter who 

is the permanent caretaker of a person who has certain disabilities is eligible for early voting by 



9 
 
 
 

mail if the voter’s presence is necessary to protect the life or safety of the person with the 

disability; and (2) authorize the secretary of state to adopt rules to implement (1), above. 

 

H.B. 2387 (Reynolds) – Early Voting by Mail:  would provide that a qualified voter is eligible 

for early voting by mail if the voter’s occupational status causes hardship for the voter that 

prevents the voter from appearing at the polling place on election day without causing a 

disruption in the operation of the voter’s employer. 

 

H.B. 2388 (Reynolds) – Elections: would require an application for a ballot to be voted by mail 

to be submitted on or after the 60
th

 day before election day and before 5 p.m. on the 11
th

 day 

before election day.  

 

H.B. 2721 (Blanco) – Elections: would require the notice of early voting for an election to: (1) 

be posted on the website of the authority ordering the election, if the authority maintains a 

website; and (2) for a primary election or general election, be forwarded by the authority 

ordering the election to the secretary of state to be posted on the secretary of state’s Internet 

website. 

 

H.B. 2724 (Blanco) – Elections: would: (1) provide that a voter may submit to an early voting 

clerk an electronic transmission of a scanned application for voting by mail containing an 

original signature; and (2) require the early voting clerk to designate an e-mail address for receipt 

of an application. 

 

H.B. 2725 (Goldman) – Elections: would provide that early voting by personal appearance at 

each permanent or temporary branch polling place shall be conducted on the same days and 

during the same hours as voting is conducted at the main early voting polling place.      

 

H.B. 2900 (Goldman) – Voting Standards: would provide that a voting system may not be 

used in an election unless the system operates safely, efficiently, and accurately and complies 

with the voting system standards adopted by the Election Assistance Commission.  

 

H.J.R. 108 (Reynolds) – District Boundaries:  would, during the period beginning on the 

general primary election day and ending on the following general election day, prohibit a county 

or political subdivision whose officers are selected from candidates nominated at a primary 

election from: (1) abolishing or declaring dormant any office; or (2) changing the boundaries of a 

district from which an officer is elected.  

 

S.B. 975 (Campbell) – Uniform Election Dates: would provide that, with certain exceptions, 

every general or special election in the state, including city elections, shall be held on the first 

Tuesday after the first Monday in November. (Companion bill is H.B. 361 by Springer.) 

 

S.B. 982 (Bettencourt) – Elections: would provide that, for the purposes of voting, a person 70 

years of age or older may use an expired form of proper photo identification if the identification 

is otherwise valid.  

 



10 
 
 
 

S.B. 984 (Bettencourt) – Residence of Registered Voter:  would: (1) provide that a person’s 

residence, for purposes of registering to vote, is established at the first residence address in the 

following list that is applicable to the person:  (a) the address stated on the person’s driver’s 

license; (b) the address stated on the person’s personal identification; (c) the address stated on a 

license to carry a concealed handgun; (d) the address where the person receives mail; (e) the 

address the person claims as a homestead; or (f) the registration address of a vehicle the person 

owns; (2) authorize a person who has no address to establish residence by executing an affidavit 

and filing it with the secretary of state; and (3) except from the provisions in (1) and (2), above, a 

member of the armed forces and a person enrolled as a full time student at an institution of 

higher education.  (Companion bill is H.B. 1096 by Murphy.) 

 

S.B. 985 (Bettencourt) – Elections: would provide that a voter who does not provide acceptable 

identification at the polling place or whose name is not on the list of registered voters for the 

precinct may be accepted for provisional voting only. (Companion bill is H.B. 1177 by R. 

Miller.) 

 

S.B. 990 (Ellis) – Voting Rights:  would, among other things: (1) authorize a person who is at 

least 16 years of age to apply for registration to vote; (2) require the issuance of a receipt from a 

person receiving an application to register to vote, if the application is submitted in person; (3) 

allow volunteer deputy registrars to serve throughout the state; (4) authorize the secretary of state 

to order a person to correct their conduct if the person is performing official functions in the 

administration of the electoral process in a manner that violates the Election Code; (5) make it a 

state jail felony for an election officer to remove the name of an eligible voter from the list of 

registered votes or the poll list for the precinct, refuse to accept for voting a person whose 

acceptance is required, or prevent the deposit in the ballot box of a marked and properly folded 

ballot; (6) allow a voter or the authority ordering the election to choose an interpreter for the 

voter and establish different qualifications to serve as an interpreter, depending on who chooses 

the interpreter; (7) make it a Class B misdemeanor to knowingly deceive another person 

regarding the time, place, or manner of conduction an election or the qualifications for voter 

eligibility; (8) authorize a suspected  violation of (7), above, to be reported to the secretary of 

state via the voting rights hotline (or otherwise) and require the secretary of state to report the 

matter to the attorney general if there is reasonable cause to believe a criminal offense has been 

committed; (9) authorize initiation of a civil action for a violation of (7), above; (10) require two 

voter registrars to be present at each polling place while the polls are open; (11) establish 

procedures to register a person to vote at a polling place and allow such person to vote if 

accepted for registration; (12) allow any qualified voter to vote early by mail; (13) provide that a 

qualified voter participating in the address confidentiality program is eligible for early voting by 

mail only if the voter submitted a registration application by personal delivery; (14) change 

certain provisions related to early voting and voting by mail and qualifications to vote a late 

ballot; and (15) make every day on which an election, including a primary election, is held 

throughout the state a state holiday. 

 

S.B. 1015 (Bettencourt) – Elections: would: (1) require a person selected to provide assistance 

to a voter to be a registered voter of the county in which the election is being held; (2) require a 

person selected to provide assistance to a voter to provide photo identification to an election 



11 
 
 
 

officer; and (3) provide that a person who is not an election officer commits a Class C 

misdemeanor if the person offers to assist a voter and before developing the intent to make the 

offer of assistance the voter was not known to the person.  

 

S.B. 1034 (Rodriguez) – Elections: would provide that, when a voter cancels an application for 

a ballot to by mail, the cancelation does not extend to certain subsequent elections in which the 

county clerk serves as early voting clerk. 

 

S.B. 1050 (Rodriguez) – Elections: would: (1) require the secretary of state to adopt rules and 

procedures to allow the official administering an election to immediately suspend and replace an 

election judge or clerk who fails to comply with state law; and (2) require the adopted rules to 

include a process for review and reinstatement of a suspended election judge or clerk if the 

election judge or clerk is not finally convicted of an offense in connection with the violation. 

 

S.B. 1073 (Zaffirini) – Elections: would, among other things: (1) require a candidate’s 

application for a place on the ballot to include: (a) a mailing address and any available email 

address at which the candidate receives correspondence relating to the candidate’s campaign; and 

(b) the candidate’s campaign website address, if maintained by the candidate; and (2) require the 

authority with whom an application for a place on the ballot is filed to inform the candidate that 

the candidate’s mailing address, e-mail address, and website address will be posted by the 

secretary of state on the secretary’s publicly viewable website.    

 

S.B. 1115 (Campbell) – Elections: would: (1) expand the duration of the pilot program allowing 

certain military voters on active duty overseas to cast a ballot electronically to September 1, 

2017; and (2) require the secretary of state to select a number of willing counties to participate in 

the program. (Companion bill is H.B. 1646 by J. White.) 

 

Open Government 

 

H.B. 2310 (Leach) – Requests for Public Information:  would require a city that maintains an 

Internet website to prominently display and maintain on the main page a link that allows a person 

to submit an electronic request for information. 

 

H.B. 2374 (Dutton) – Public Information:  would: (1) allow information held by a law 

enforcement agency or prosecutor that deals with the detection, investigation, or prosecution of 

crime to be withheld from public disclosure if:  (a) the release of the information would unduly 

interfere with the detection, investigation, or prosecution of crime; or (b) the information relates 

to an ongoing investigation or conduct that remains subject to prosecution and the matter is not 

considered closed; and (2) allow an internal record or notation of a law enforcement agency or 

prosecutor to be withheld from public disclosure if:  (a) release would unduly interfere with law 

enforcement or prosecution; or (b) the record or notation relates to an ongoing investigation or 

conduct that remains subject to prosecution and the matter is not considered closed. 

 

H.B. 2518 (Coleman) – Closed Meetings:  would authorize a closed meeting to discuss or 

deliberate commercial or financial information that a governmental body has received from a 



12 
 
 
 

another governmental entity relating to a business that seeks to locate, stay, or expand in or near 

the territory and with which the governmental body providing the financial information is 

conducting economic development negotiations. 

 

H.B. 2633 (Hernandez) – Motor Vehicle Accident Information:  would:  (1) authorize the 

release of information about a motor vehicle accident to a person directly concerned in the traffic 

accident or having proper interest therein, including:  (a) the driver(s) involved in the accident; 

(b) the employer, parent, or legal guardian of the driver(s) involved in the accident; (c) the 

authorized representative of a person involved in the traffic accident; (d) any person involved in 

the traffic accident; (e) the owner(s) of the vehicle(s) or property damaged in the traffic accident; 

and (f) a person who may sue because of death resulting from the accident; (2) make information 

in a police dispatch report concerning a motor vehicle accident confidential; (3) allow the release 

of information described in (2), above, to be released to: (a) the Department of Public Safety 

(DPS), (b) an agency of the U.S., this state, or a local government of this state that uses the 

information for prevention purposes; (c) the law enforcement agency that employs the officer 

who investigated the accident and sent the report to DPS; (d) the court in which a case involving 

a person in the accident is pending if the report is subpoenaed; and (e) any person directly 

concerned in the traffic accident or having proper interest therein, including those listed in (1), 

above. 

 

H.B. 2700 (S. Thompson) – Bulk Criminal History Record Information:  would:  (1) require 

a clerk of a municipal court (among others) that receives a bulk criminal history record 

information (CHRI) request concerning Class A or Class B or felony offenses for which a final 

judgment has been rendered to deny the request and provide the requestor with instructions for 

submitting the request to the Department of Public Safety; and (2) require a clerk of a municipal 

court (among others) that grants a bulk CHRI request concerning Class C offenses for which a 

final judgment has been rendered or offenses that are pending final disposition to:  (a) maintain a 

record of the name and contact information of the requestor and the most recent date CHRI was 

provided to the requestor; and (b) publish the record on the clerk’s website or, if no website, 

prominently display the record in a public area of the clerk’s place of business. 

 

H.B. 2715 (Keffer) – Utility Information: would make confidential a contract between an 

electric utility and a municipally owned utility.   

 

S.B. 1087 (Kolkhorst) – Public Information:  would: (1) define “custodian” to mean a public 

officer or employee who: (a) by law, ordinance, or policy is in charge of an office that creates or 

receives a local government record; or (b) in the transaction of official business, creates or 

receives public information that the officer or employee has not provided to the records 

management officer or officer for public information (PIO); (2) require that a PIO obtain 

information from a custodian who has access to public information being requested from the 

governmental body; (3) provide that a current or former officer or employee of the city does not 

have a personal or property right to the city’s public information and must surrender that 

information upon request or demand by the custodian or PIO; (4) authorize a requestor, 

custodian, or PIO to sue in district court for an injunction or mandamus to compel a current or 

former officer or employee to surrender or return public information; (5) require a governmental 



13 
 
 
 

body, custodian, or PIO to obtain possession, custody, or control of public information from a 

current or former officer or employee in order to produce public information for inspection or 

copying, and provide that the governmental body, custodian, or PIO may be included in a suit 

under (4), above, for failure to do so; (6) authorize a requestor or the attorney general to file suit 

for writ of mandamus to compel a PIO to make information available for public inspection if the 

PIO fails to request an attorney general decision when required, fails to promptly supply public 

information, or fails to promptly supply information as directed by the attorney general; (7) 

provide that a custodian commits an offense if, with criminal negligence, the custodian fails or 

refuses to give access to, or permit or provide copying of, public information to a requestor; and 

(8) provide certain affirmative defenses in regard to an offense described in (7), above. (Note: 

This bill would overrule the recent court of appeals opinion in El Paso v. Abbott, which 

concluded that the Public Information Act doesn’t force a city employee or official to turn over 

public information in his or her possession.)  (Companion bill is H.B. 1764 by Hunter.) 

 

Other Finance and Administration 

 

H.B. 7 (Darby) – Dedicated Revenue:  would clarify the uses of certain state dedicated 

accounts by allowing: (1) money in the volunteer fire department assistance fund to be 

appropriated for contributions to the Texas Emergency Services Retirement System; (2) the 

Department of Public Safety to use money appropriated to the department to award grants to 

local law enforcement agencies for training on incident-based reporting systems to be used for 

reporting information and statistics concerning criminal offenses; and (3) the Commission on 

State Emergency Communications to suspend the 9-1-1 services fee during any state fiscal 

biennium for which the unencumbered balance of the 9-1-1 services fee account is sufficient to 

pay for all appropriations from that account. 

 

H.B. 2297 (Smith) – Alcoholic Beverage Commission: would: (1) require the Texas Alcoholic 

Beverage Commission (TABC) to expedite the processing of applications for licenses, permits 

and certificates by using electronic means, and authorize TABC to charge a reasonable fee to 

applicants choosing to apply for licenses, permits, and certificates electronically; and (2) provide 

that electronic signatures on TABC records, documents, and applications have the same force 

and effect as a manual signature.  (Companion bill is S.B. 700 by Eltife.) 

 

H.B. 2303 (Kuempel) – Off-Highway Vehicles: would include the driving of off-highway 

vehicles in the recreational use statute for tort liability purposes.  

 

H.B. 2375 (Dutton) – Tort Liability: would expand city tort liability for injuries caused by 

negligence by providing that a waiver of governmental immunity includes any acts of negligence 

(Current law waives immunity solely for acts of negligence involving a condition or use of 

personal or real property.)  

 
H.B. 2379 (Bohac) – Roadside Assistance Liability: would protect a first responder, including 

a police officer, fire fighter, and certain volunteer fire fighters, from liability arising from the 

good faith provision of roadside assistance, unless the liability is caused by the gross negligence, 

recklessness, or intentional misconduct of the responder.  



14 
 
 
 

 

H.B. 2436 (Phillips) – Airports:  would:  (1) authorize an employee of an airport security force 

to be commissioned as a peace officer, subject to certain provisions related to other law 

enforcement officers; (2) require a local government airport operator to establish a program to 

collect complaints regarding passenger security screenings and submit an analysis of the 

complaints to the Texas Department of Transportation and the director of the governor’s Texas 

homeland security office; and (3) require that no later than January 1, 2016, a local government 

airport operator apply to the federal government to participate in the security screening opt-out 

program and submit confirmation of such application to the Texas Department of Transportation 

and the director of the governor’s Texas homeland security office. 

 

H.B. 2465 (Smith) – Plumbers: would, among other things: (1) add harvesting of rainwater or 

reclaiming of water to supply a plumbing fixture or appliance, and installation of a multipurpose 

residential fire protection system, to the definition of “plumbing” under state law; (2) provide 

that a person is not required to be a licensed plumber to perform plumbing work if he 

is employed by a political subdivision to engage in plumbing only within the geographic 

boundaries of the political subdivision; (3) mandate that the Texas Board of Plumbing Examiners 

adopt the NFPA 13D Standard for the Installation of Sprinkler Systems in One- and Two-family 

Dwellings and Manufactured Homes, as published by the National Fire Protection Association, 

on January 1, 2015; (4) provide that a licensed engineer may design a multipurpose residential 

fire protection sprinkler system for installation (as opposed to only certain master plumbers in 

current law); (5) provide that a certified fire inspector may inspect or review plans only for the 

sprinkler portion of a multipurpose residential fire sprinkler installation, repair, or replacement if 

the certified fire inspector: (a) meets or exceeds the NFPA 1031 Standard for Professional 

Qualifications for Fire Inspector and Plan Examiner; and (b) is employed or appointed by a 

political subdivision or this state; and (6) mandate that a city with more than 5,000 inhabitants 

regulate by ordinance or bylaw the material, construction, alteration, and inspection of any pipe, 

faucet, tank, valve, water heater, or other fixture by or through which a supply of water, gas, 

medical gas, medical vacuum, or sewage is used or carried. 

 

H.B. 2512 (Zedler) – Uniform Collaborative Law:  would: (1) create the Uniform 

Collaborative Law Act, which would govern key aspects of a situation in which a lawyer 

represents a client solely for purposes of settlement; and (2) enact specific provisions related to 

governmental entities that are parties to a collaborative law process. 

 

H.B. 2576 (Schofield) – Birth Records:  would require the state, a local registrar, or a county 

clerk to issue without fee a certified copy of a birth record to an applicant who appears in person 

to obtain the record, and states that the applicant is requesting the record for purposes of 

obtaining an election identification certificate.  (Companion bill is S.B. 983 by Bettencourt.) 

 

H.B. 2595 (Keffer) – Initiative and Referendum: would provide that: (1) notwithstanding any 

home rule charter provision, a city may not: (a) accept for verification, certification, or other 

approval a petition requesting the enactment or repeal of an ordinance or charter provision, if the 

proposed enactment or repeal would restrict the right of any person to use or access the person's 

private property for economic gain; or (b) hold an election proposed by a petition on the 



15 
 
 
 

proposed enactment or repeal of an ordinance or charter provision described by (1); (2) the 

purported enactment or repeal of an ordinance or charter provision prohibited by the bill has no 

effect and an election held in violation of it is void; and (3) a person whose rights are affected by 

a violation of the bill may sue for injunctive relief. 

 

H.B. 2687 (Shaheen) – Official Oppression:  would extend the state offenses of official 

oppression and misuse of official information to: (1) an officer, employee, or agent of the United 

States; a branch, department or agency of the United States; or another person acting under a 

contract with a branch, department, or agency of the United States to provide a security or law 

enoforcement service; or (2) any other person acting under color of federal law. 
 

H.B. 2731 (G. Bonnen) – Ambulances: would exempt a nonprofit ambulance company from 

motor fuel taxes for fuel used solely to provide emergency medical services.   

 

H.B. 2734 (Capriglione) – Roofing Contractors: would provide for the voluntary certification 

of roofing contractors by the Texas Department of Licensing and Regulation. 

 

S.B. 10 (Huffman) – Public Integrity Unit:  would, among other things:  (1) require the office 

of the attorney general to establish and support a public integrity unit (PIU) to investigate certain 

offenses:  against public administration, involving insurance fraud, and involving motor fuels 

tax; (2) provide that the PIU described in (1), above, consists of attorneys and staff of the 

attorney general and one commissioned officer of the Texas Rangers division of the Department 

of Public Safety; (3) provide that if the PIU’s initial investigation demonstrates a reasonable 

suspicion that an offense has occurred the matter, depending on its nature, shall be referred to 

either the appropriate presiding judge of the administrative judicial region containing the county 

where the accused resides or the appropriate venue; (4) authorize the presiding judge described 

in (3), above, to appoint certain individuals to prosecute an offense; and (5) require a local law 

enforcement agency to cooperate with the PIU by providing information (to the extent allowed 

by law) to the PIU.  

 

S.B. 216 (Birdwell) – State Office of Administrative Hearings: would, among other things: (1) 

provide that on making a finding that a party to a contested case has defaulted under the rules of 

the State Office of Administrative Hearings (SOAH), an administrative law judge (ALJ) may 

dismiss the case and remand it to the referring agency for informal disposition by applying the 

agency’s own rules of procedure related to default proceedings; (2) remove the requirement that 

only an ALJ in the natural resource conservation division of SOAH may conduct a hearing on 

behalf of the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality and authorize SOAH to contract with 

qualified individuals to serve as temporary ALJs; (3) remove the requirement that only an ALJ in 

the utility division of SOAH may conduct a hearing on behalf of the Public Utility Commission 

of Texas and authorize SOAH to contract with qualified individuals to serve as temporary ALJs; 

(4) remove the requirement that SOAH establish a natural resource conservation division, a 

utility division, and a tax division; (5) remove the requirement that an ALJ presiding over a tax 

hearing must have devoted at least 75 percent of the person’s legal practice to Texas state law in 

at least 5 of the past 10 years before employment; (6) make various changes regarding how a 

referring state agency compensates SOAH; and (7) require the Texas Department of 



16 
 
 
 

Transportation and SOAH to enter a memorandum of understanding regarding the scheduling of 

certain hearings. (Companion bill is H.B. 2154 by Dutton.) 

 

S.B. 962 (V. Taylor) – State Agency Rulemaking:  would:  (1) authorize a member of the 

legislature to bring an action for declaratory judgment if it is alleged that a member of a 

governing body of a state agency or an executive official of a state agency has adopted a rule or 

proposed a rule without a grant of or contrary to a grant of statutory or constitutional authority; 

(2) provide that a district court or party to a motion described in (1), above, may request transfer 

to the court of appeals if the public interest requires a prompt, authoritative determination of the 

validity of the rule or proposed rule; and (3) prohibit the attorney general from representing a 

state agency, a state agency official, or a member of the legislature in a suit described in (1), 

above.  (Companion bill is H.B. 2816 by Krause.)  

 

S.B. 983 (Bettencourt) – Birth Records:  This bill is identical to H.B. 2576, above. 

 

S.B. 1019 (Creighton) – Public Nuisance:  would provide that a city’s prohibition against 

keeping property free from a condition constituting a public nuisance would not apply to 

undeveloped land for which:  (1) a condition on that land has not been found to cause a public 

nuisance for at least one year; and (2) a finding of public nuisance could not have been applied to 

that condition when the condition first occurred. (Companion bill is H.B. 1643 by Riddle.) 

 

S.B. 1041 (Bettencourt) – Local Debt: would: (1) provide that, with respect to a proposition 

seeking voter approval of the issuance of bonds, the following information must be included in 

the proposition language: (a) the total amount of the political subdivision’s debt currently 

outstanding; (b) the total amount of the political subdivision’s current debt payments; (c) the 

total amount of taxes required to be imposed on a homestead with a value equal to the median 

homestead value in the political subdivision, as computed by the appraisal district, to repay the 

political subdivision’s current debt obligations; and (d) the estimated tax burden that would be 

imposed on a homestead with a value equal to the median homestead value in the political 

subdivision, as computed by the appraisal district, to repay the bonds to be authorized, if 

approved; (2) provide that with respect to a proposition that seeks voter approval of the 

imposition or increase of a tax, the following information would need to be included in the 

proposition language: (a) the estimated additional tax burden that would be imposed on a 

homestead with a value equal to the median homestead value in the political subdivision, as 

computed by the appraisal district, after the imposition or increase of the tax, if approved; and (b) 

a detailed description of the purposes for which the tax is to be imposed or increased, if 

approved; and (3) provide that with respect to a proposition that seeks voter approval of the 

reduction of a tax, the proposition language would need to include the estimated tax reduction for 

a homestead with a value equal to the median homestead value in the political subdivision, as 

computed by the appraisal district, if approved. 

 

S.B. 1042 (Bettencourt) – Local Debt: would: (1) require every political subdivision to prepare 

an annual financial report that contains financial information for each city fund, as well as a 

various types of information relating to the city’s debt obligations; (2) provide that an alternative 

to preparing a report under (1), above, would be for the political subdivision to provide all fund 



17 
 
 
 

and debt information to the comptroller and have the comptroller post the information on the 

comptroller’s official website; (3) require every political subdivision to maintain an internet 

website to post the financial report required by (1), above, except that a city or county with a 

population of 2,000 or less could post the report on a social media or other website in which the 

political subdivision controls the content of the posting; and (4) provide that, except in a case of 

a public calamity, a case in which the issuer needs to act to protect the health of the residents, a 

case of unforeseen damage to public equipment or property, or to comply with a state or federal 

regulation, a city may not issue a certificate of obligation if the voters voted down a bond 

proposition for the same purpose within the preceding three years. 

 

S.B. 1064 (Garcia) – Same-Sex Marriage:  would provide that the state, an agency, or a 

political subdivision of the state may use a same-sex marriage license or similar document 

recognizing or validating a same-sex marriage or a civil union for the limited purpose of 

verifying the identity of the person who presents the license or document to the state, agency, or 

political subdivision. 

 

S.B. 1076 (Eltife) – Mixed Beverage Tax:  would:  (1) repeal the mixed beverage gross receipts 

tax; and (2) implement in its place a 14 percent sales tax on the sale of mixed beverages.  The 

bill might reduce cities’ share of the tax.  

 

S.B. 1112 (Burton) – Affordable Care Act:  would prohibit the use of any funds, personnel, or 

other resources of a state or local government, including a city, to implement or enforce the 

Affordable Care Act.  

 

Municipal Courts 

 

H.B. 2398 (White) – Judicial Donation Trust Fund: would: (1) grant a city the authority to 

establish a judicial donation trust fund as a separate account outside the municipal treasury; (2) 

allow a city to accept a gift, grant, donation, or other consideration from a public or private 

source that is designated for the judicial donation trust fund; (3) task the city council with 

adopting procedures necessary to receive and disburse money from the fund; and (4) allow a 

judge to award money from the fund to eligible children who appear before the court for a 

truancy or curfew violation.  

 

H.B. 2447 (White) – Juvenile Records Committee: would create a state advisory committee, 

which would include municipal court judges, court clerks, peace officers, to examine and 

recommend revisions to any state laws pertaining to juvenile records. (Companion bill is S.B. 

645 by Rodriguez.)  

 

H.B. 2632 (Dutton) – Truancy: would make truancy a civil penalty, rather than a criminal 

offense.  

 

H.B. 2671 (S. Thompson) – Failure to Appear:  would:  (1) repeal the state law that provides 

for the denial of a driver’s license renewal for failure to appear for a complaint or citation or 

failure to pay or satisfy a judgment ordering payment of a fine and cost in the manner ordered by 



18 
 
 
 

a municipal court; and (2) repeal portions of the Driver Responsibility Program that authorize the 

suspension of a license for failure to pay certain surcharges. 

 

H.B. 2747 (Landgraf) – Jurors: would disqualify a person from serving as a juror if the person 

is not a citizen of the United States.  

 

S.B. 943 (Rodriguez) – Contempt of Court: would allow a municipal court to refer a child that 

fails to obey an order of a municipal court (under circumstances that would constitute contempt 

of court) to the appropriate juvenile court for delinquent conduct or conduct indicating a need for 

supervision.  

 

S.B. 1040 (Rodriguez) – Capias Pro Fine: would allow a peace officer to bring a defendant 

before another justice court in the same county or another municipal court in the same territorial 

jurisdiction that has concurrent jurisdiction with the court that issued a capias pro fine instead of 

placing the defendant in jail.  

 

S.B. 1056 (Hinojosa) – Driver Responsibility Program:  would provide that a person is 

indigent for purposes of waiving surcharges under the Driver Responsibility Program if they are 

determined to be indigent for the purpose of appointing counsel for the offense that is the basis 

for the surcharge, so long as they have not been found by the court to have the ability to pay, 

wholly or partly, the cost of the appointed counsel. (Companion bill is H.B. 1795 by S. Turner.) 

 

S.B. 1116 (West) – Delivery of Court Notice: would authorize a court or court clerk to send any 

notice or document using mail or electronic mail.  

 

Community and Economic Development 

 

H.B. 2283 (Guillen) – Boarding Homes:  would: (1) except an alcohol- and drug-free recovery 

home from certain board home facility regulations; and (2) authorize the executive commissioner 

of the Health and Human Services Commission to adopt rules establishing what constitutes an 

alcohol- and drug-free recovery home.  

 

H.B. 2296 (Smith) – Alcohol in Central Business District:  would:  (1) authorize a city to 

prohibit, by charter or ordinance, the possession of an open container or the public consumption 

of alcoholic beverages in the central business district of the city upon a finding that such activity 

poses a health and safety risk; (2) require a city adopting the prohibition described in (1), above, 

to adopt a map, plat, or diagram showing the central business district that is covered by the 

prohibition; and (3) prohibit a city charter or ordinance from forbidding the possession of an 

open container or the consumption of alcoholic beverages in motor vehicles, a building not 

owned or controlled by the city, residential structures, or a licensed premises located in the area 

of prohibition described in (2), above.   

 
H.B. 2304 (Price) – Health and Human Services: this is the Department of Health and Human 

Services sunset bill.  It would, among other things: (1) consolidate various health and human 

services agencies under the Health and Human Services Commission; and (2) eliminate many of 



19 
 
 
 

the committees, councils, and work groups whose purpose is to give information regarding the 

physical, mental, and intellectual health of certain individuals and communities. (Companion bill 

is S.B. 200 by Nelson.)   

 

H.B. 2329 (Gutierrez) – Gambling: would authorize certain forms of casino gambling if 

approved by a local option election in the county.  (See H.J.R. 105, below.) 

 

H.B. 2408 (Herrerro) – Windstorm Insurance: would modify the composition of the board of 

directors of the Texas Windstorm Insurance Association. 

 

H.B. 2441 (Harless) – Strategic Partnership Agreements: would provide that: (1) the qualified 

voters of a water district, any part of which is annexed for limited purposes under a strategic 

partnership agreement, are entitled to vote in municipal elections; and (2) a resident of such a 

district is not eligible to be a candidate for or to be elected to a municipal office. 

 

H.B. 2457 (Schubert) – Eminent Domain: would, in relation tolling a property owner’s right of 

repurchase, provide that: (1) three of the elements in current law must be met to establish “actual 

progress” on a project (instead of two under current law): or (2) for a governmental entity, the 

adoption by a majority of the entity's governing body at a public hearing of a development plan 

for a public use project that indicates that the entity will not complete more than two tolling 

actions before the tenth anniversary of the date of acquisition of the property tolls the right to 

repurchase. 

 

H.B. 2533 (Goldman) – Alcohol-Related Businesses:  would repeal a state law that prohibits 

the holder of an alcoholic beverage license or permit to, on premises under his control, maintain 

or permit a radio, television, amplifier, piano, phonograph, music machine, orchestra, band, 

singer, speaker, entertainer, or other device or person that produces, amplifies, or projects music 

or other sound that is loud, vociferous, vulgar, indecent, lewd, or otherwise offensive to persons 

on or near the licensed premises. 

 

H.B. 2581 (Springer) – Regulatory Takings/Oil and Gas: would make a city regulation that 

imposes or enforces a limitation that has the effect of preventing or prohibiting the development 

of an oil or gas well that has been permitted by the Texas Railroad Commission subject to the 

Private Real Property Rights Preservation Act, which would: (1) waive sovereign immunity to 

suit and liability for a regulatory taking; (2) authorize a private real property owner to bring suit 

to determine whether the governmental action of a city results in a taking; (3) require a city to 

prepare a “takings impact assessment” prior to imposing certain regulations; and (4) require a 

city to post 30-day’s notice of the adoption of most regulation prior to adoption. The bill would 

exempt a city regulation that imposes or enforces a reasonable standard established by the 

political subdivision for oil or gas wells relating to: (1) visual aesthetics; (2) noise abatement; or 

(3) hours of operation.  (Companion bill is S.B. 809 by Taylor.) 

 

H.B. 2600 (E. Rodriguez) – Cottage Foods: would: (1) define a “home food processor” as 

someone who makes food for sale, including cottage food production; (2) require that home food 

processors meet certain requirements including: (a) obtaining a state permit; (b) preparing and 



20 
 
 
 

storing goods for sale separately from those for personal use; (c) labelling requirements; and (d) 

recordkeeping requirements; and (3) allow an inspector from the state, county, or public health 

district to inspect the area of a home food processor’s home use to prepare goods for sale. 

 

H.B. 2642 (Thompson) – Eight Liners: would expand a current law that is bracketed to one 

county to apply to any county and provide that the commissioners court of any county may 

regulate the operation of game rooms and may: (1) restrict the location of game rooms to 

specified areas of the county, including the unincorporated area of the county; (2) prohibit a 

game room location within a certain distance, prescribed by the commissioners court, of a 

school, regular place of religious worship, or residential neighborhood; or (3) restrict the number 

of game rooms that may operate in a specified area of the county. 

 

H.B. 2669 (Galindo) – Annexation/Incorporation: would provide that a city must allow an 

area in the city’s extraterritorial jurisdiction and targeted for annexation to instead incorporate as 

a general law city if certain procedures are met.  (Companion bill is S.B. 615 by Burton.) 

 

H.B. 2678 (Lozano) – Economic Development: would require the office of the governor to: (1) 

develop and maintain a website that: (1) provides a single location for a business entity to receive 

information about state and local economic development incentives; and (2) allows, when 

feasible, the business entity to fill out and submit one application for all state and local 

government monetary and tax incentives for which the person may be eligible.  

 

H.B. 2679 (Flynn) – Public Facility Corporations: would expand certain authority of a public 

facility corporation and provide that the corporation may: (1) exercise any powers that a 

nonprofit corporation may exercise, to the extent necessary or convenient to accomplish the 

purpose of the corporation; and (2) can grant a leasehold or other possessory interest in a public 

facility owned by the corporation. 

 

H.B. 2728 (S. King) – Military Preparedness Commission Grants:  would provide that certain 

Texas Military Preparedness Commission grants to some local governmental entities, including 

cities that are defense communities, must be no less than $50,000 and no more than the lesser of: 

(1) 50 percent of the amount of the local government match; (2) 50 percent of the local 

government investment; or (3) $5 million. (Companion bill is S.B. 318 by Hinojosa.) 

 

H.J.R. 105 (Gutierrez) – Gambling: would amend the Texas Constitution to authorize certain 

forms of casino gambling if approved by a local option election in the county.  (See H.B. 2329, 

above.) 

 

S.B. 200 (Nelson) – Health and Human Services Sunset Bill: this bill is identical to H.B. 

2304, above.  

 

S.B. 929 (Fraser) – Energy Codes: would provide that: (1) the State Energy Conservation 

Office shall establish the Building Energy Efficiency Advisory Committee composed of 13 

members who have an interest in the adoption of energy codes, including two building code 

officials; (2) the committee may submit to the Texas A&M Energy Systems Laboratory and the 



21 
 
 
 

office: (a) comments on energy codes under consideration for adoption; and (b) recommended 

energy rating indexes for each climate zone in this state that may be used to measure compliance 

in a voluntary compliance path recognized by the International Residential Code energy 

efficiency provisions or the International Energy Conservation Code; (3) the office may amend 

or establish an energy rating index that is used to measure compliance in a voluntary compliance 

path of an energy code edition before adopting the edition; (4) the office may adopt an energy 

rating index for each climate zone in this state; (5) a local amendment may not conflict with the 

compliance paths established by the office; (6) the office may adopt and substitute the latest 

published edition of the International Residential Code energy efficiency provisions or the latest 

published edition of the International Energy Conservation Code, based on written findings from 

the Texas A&M Energy Systems Laboratory on the stringency of the editions and comments and 

recommendations from the Building Energy Efficiency Advisory Committee; and (7) the office 

may not adopt an edition more often than once every six years and shall establish by rule an 

effective date for an adopted edition that is not earlier than nine months after the date of 

adoption.  (Companion bill is H.B. 1736 by Villalba.) 

 

S.B. 1047 (Hall) – Texas Enterprise Fund: would abolish the Texas Enterprise Fund and 

transfer the balance of the fund to the state general revenue fund.  

 

Personnel 

 

H.B. 2390 (Bohac) – Employee Wellness Programs: would: (1) define “employee wellness 

program” as an employer program that provides an incentive for employees for maintaining 

wellness or a healthy lifestyle; and (2) limit civil liability for an employer, including a city, for 

establishing, maintaining, or requiring participation in an employee wellness program unless the 

program discriminates on the basis of: (a) prior medical condition; (b) gender; (c) age; or (d) 

income level.   

 

H.B. 2413 (Lucio) – Minimum Wage: would: (1) raise the minimum wage to $10.10 or the 

federal minimum wage, whichever is higher; and (2) repeal the provision that prohibits a city 

from creating a higher minimum wage. (Companion bills are H.B. 42 by Martinez Fisher and 

S.B. 67 by Ellis.)    

 

H.B. 2537 (Vo) – Unpaid Leave: would: (1) add siblings to the list of individuals for which an 

employee must be granted leave to care for if the employer has 50 or more employees and the 

person would otherwise qualify for unpaid leave under the federal Family Medical Leave Act; 

and (2) create a cause of action for wages and other actual monetary damages should the leave 

not be granted or these requirements be violated.  

 
H.B. 2608 (Murphy) – Municipal Retirement Systems: would: (1) allow a city with a public 

retirement system serving only that city to change the benefits, participation, and eligibility 

requirements, funding source or amount, and administration of its system by ordinance; and (2) 

authorize the city to adopt an ordinance or resolution regarding its retirement system that would 

prevail over state statute in the event of a conflict. 

 



22 
 
 
 

H.B. 2636 (Farias) – Construction Contractors: would: (1) require a city’s construction 

contracts to mandate that a contractor: (a) provide at least a 15-minute rest break for every four 

hours of work its employees perform; and (b) ensure that employees do not work more than 

three-and-a-half hours without receiving a break; (2) require a city to develop procedures for 

administering the bill’s provisions; and (3) allow a city to impose an administrative penalty if a 

contractor violates the provisions.  (Companion bill is S.B. 154 by Rodriguez.) 

 

H.B. 2680 (G. Bonnen) – Training Funds: would change the allocation of Texas Commission 

on Law Enforcement training funds to add the number of telecommunicators into the calculation 

of personnel for distribution of the funds.   

 

S.B. 927 (Rodriguez) – Employee Classification: would: (1) for purposes of unemployment 

compensation, make the classification of “employee” a rebuttable presumption by the employer; 

and (2) create a penalty of up to $200 for each person misclassified as an independent contractor 

payable by an employer, including a city.  

 

Public Safety 

 

H.B. 2277 (Muñoz) – Surplus Property:  would:  (1) authorize the Department of Public Safety 

(DPS) to donate or sell, at a discounted rate, directly to a local law enforcement agency a surplus 

law enforcement motor vehicle and other surplus equipment; and (2) provide that DPS sell 

equipment under (1), above, in its “as-is” condition and not make any representations or 

warranties as to the condition or use of the equipment. 

 

H.B. 2279 (Walle) – Peace Officer Training: would require a peace officer, as part of the 

officer’s minimum curriculum requirements, to receive training on dealing with children, 

adolescents, and teenagers, either: (1) within two years of licensure; or (2) when the officer 

applies for an intermediate proficiency certificate.  

 

H.B. 2285 (Walle) – School Citations: would require each school district to compile a report for 

the Texas Education Agency on incidents related to class C citations and police arrests made of 

students in the previous year. 

 

H.B. 2298 (Pickett) – Peace Officers: would provide that an establishment serving the public 

may not prohibit or otherwise restrict a peace officer or special investigator from carrying on its 

premises a weapon that the peace officer or special investigator is otherwise authorized to carry, 

regardless of whether the peace officer or special investigator is engaged in the actual discharge 

of his or her duties while carrying the weapon. 

 

H.B. 2300 (Riddle) – Warrants: would eliminate telegraph transmission as a method to forward 

a warrant of arrest.  

 

H.B. 2320 (Pena) – Vehicle Stops: would require a peace officer who stops a car on a highway 

where the speed limit is 55 m.p.h. or above to try to direct the car to a road with less than 55 

m.p.h. speed limit or another safe area.  



23 
 
 
 

 

H.B. 2321 (Longoria) – E-Cigarettes: would include vapor products, such as electronic 

cigarettes, in the existing state regulations that govern the sale, distribution, possession, use, and 

advertising of cigarettes and other tobacco products.  (Companion bill is S.B. 97 by Hinojosa.) 

 

H.B. 2347 (M. Martinez) – Traffic Signals:  would allow an operator of a motorcycle or 

bicycle facing a steady red signal at a traffic-actuated electric traffic-control signal to proceed if 

the signal fails to register the motorcycle or bicycle after two cycles of the signal.  (Companion 

bill is S.B. 334 by Watson.) 

 

H.B. 2357 (Gutierrez) – Police Investigations: would: (1) require each police department to 

adopt a detailed, written procedure on officer-involved deaths that: (a) requires three 

investigators for an officer-involved death investigation, two of whom must be from a  

department other than the department from which the officer or officers involved are members; 

(b) if traffic related, requires the use of a crash reconstruction unit from a different police 

department; (c) allows the police department to do an internal investigation so long as it does not 

interfere with the other investigation; and (d) requires the investigation team to report to the law 

enforcement review board on the officer-involved death at the conclusion of its investigation; (2) 

require the law enforcement review board, as soon as practicable after receiving the report from 

the investigation team to review the report and recommend whether: (a) further investigation is 

needed; (b) prosecution is needed and report the need for prosecution to the county felony 

prosecutor; and (c) disciplinary measures are needed and report the need for discipline to the 

police chief and the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement; (3) require the Office of the 

Attorney General to post the report on its website with redactions as needed; and (4) create a law 

enforcement review board consisting of certain listed attorneys, judges, sheriffs, and criminal 

justice experts, to review officer-involved deaths. 

 

H.B. 2358 (Lucio) – Disasters and Emergencies: would: (1) provide that an out-of-state 

business entity whose transaction of business in Texas is limited to the performance of disaster- 

or emergency-related work during a disaster response period is not required to:  (a) register with 

the secretary of state; (b) file a tax report with or pay taxes or fees to the state or a political 

subdivision of the state; (c) pay ad valorem or use tax on equipment used only during the disaster 

response period and that is removed from the state following the response period; (d) comply 

with any state or local business licensing or registration requirements; or (e) comply with any 

state or local occupational licensing requirements or related fees; (2) provide that an out-of-state 

employee whose only employment in the state is for the performance of disaster- or emergency-

related work during a disaster response period is not required to:  (a) file a tax report with or pay 

taxes or fees to the state or a political subdivision; or (b) comply with any state or local 

occupational licensing requirements or related fees; (3) provide that an entity or employee 

described in (1) and (2), above, is (unless otherwise exempt) subject to a transaction tax or fee, 

including motor fuels tax, sales or use tax, hotel occupancy tax, and motor vehicle rental tax; (4) 

require an entity or employee described in (1) and (2), above, to provide certain information to 

the secretary of state upon request by the secretary of state; (5) exclude an entity or employee 

from the exemptions in (1) and (2), above, if the entity or employee remain in Texas after the 

disaster response period; (6) provide that an entity or employee described in (1) and (2), above, is 



24 
 
 
 

not engaged in business in this state for purposes of the Limited Sales, Excise, and Use Tax Act; 

and (7) provide that an entity or employee described in (1) and (2), above, is not a “taxable 

entity” for purposes of certain franchise tax. 

 

H.B. 2376 (S. Turner) – Disaster Recovery Fund:  would: (1) create a disaster recovery fund 

that would be used to offer grants for a state agency, city, or volunteer fire department that 

participates in disaster recovery to help pay for recovery costs for: (a) a nonfederal match 

required for a FEMA project; (b) a disaster recovery project to remedy the damage and direct 

loss due to a disaster; or (c) a reimbursement of the entity for disaster recovery related activities; 

(2) require the Division of Emergency Management to develop and implement rules, procedures, 

and an application process for request and receipt of the grants; and (3) require an entity that 

receives a grant to reimburse the fund if it later receives reimbursement from the federal 

government, an insurer, or another source.   

 

H.B. 2405 (Nevarez) – Firearms: would provide that the public safety director of the 

Department of Public Safety shall adopt rules regarding the content, size, and other 

characteristics of signs to be posted on a building or other property where the property owner 

seeks to prohibit a license holder from carrying a handgun under the so-called “30.06” provision.  

The bill would also provide that the rules must require the sign to: (1) contain a pictogram that 

shows, on a white background, a handgun drawn in black ink within a red circle and a diagonal 

red line across the handgun; (2) contain language that must include the following: “Section 

30.06, Penal Code”; (3) be a readable and conspicuous size but not larger than 8.5 inches by 11 

inches; (4) be posted at each exterior entrance that is open to the public; (5) be posted in a 

conspicuous manner clearly visible to the public; (6) not be obstructed or altered in any way; and 

(7) be immediately replaced by the property owner if the sign becomes illegible. 

 

H.B. 2426 (Kuempel) – Fire Extinguishers: would provide that: (1) state law relating to fire 

extinguisher inspections has uniform force and effect throughout this state; (2) a city or county 

may not adopt or enforce an ordinance, order, or rule inconsistent with state law; and (3) an 

inconsistent ordinance, order, or rule is void and has no effect. 

 

H.B. 2437 (Hughes) – Emergency Services Fee: would provide that the Commission on State 

Emergency Communications, which operates the 9-1-1 system outside of certain home rule 

cities, shall suspend its fees on telephone service for the duration of any state fiscal biennium for 

which the unencumbered balance of the 9-1-1 services fee account is enough to pay for all of the 

appropriations from that account.   

 

H.B. 2442 (Zedler) – Red Light Cameras:  would provide that, if the owner of a motor vehicle 

is delinquent in the payment of a civil penalty imposed in connection with a photographic traffic 

signal, the county assessor-collector or the Texas Department of Motor Vehicles may not refuse 

to register the motor vehicle alleged to have been involved in the violation. 

 

H.B. 2445 (J. White) – Firearms: would: (1) repeal the offense of displaying a firearm or other 

deadly weapon in a public place in a manner calculated to alarm; (2) allow a person previously 

convicted of that crime to serve as a nurses aid. 



25 
 
 
 

 

H.B. 2459 (M. Martinez) – Unprotected Road User:  would: (1) require the operator of a 

motor vehicle passing an unprotected road user (e.g., pedestrian, utility worker, bicyclist, or 

motorcyclist) to vacate the lane in which the user is located if the highway has two or more 

marked lanes or to pass the user at a safe distance; (2) require the operator of a motor vehicle that 

is making a turn at an intersection to yield the right-of-way to an unprotected roader user; (3) 

prohibit the operator of a motor vehicle from overtaking an unprotected road user and turning in 

front of the user unless the operator is clear of the user; (4) prohibit the operator of a motor 

vehicle from maneuvering the vehicle in a manner that intimidates, harasses, or threatens an 

unprotected road user; (5) provide that a violation of (1)-(4), above, is a misdemeanor offense; 

and (6) provide that it is a defense to prosecution for (1)-(4), above, that the unprotected road 

user was acting in violation of the law.    

 

H.B. 2470 (E. Rodriguez) – Fertilizer: would require: (1) an ammonium nitrate facility that 

meets certain criteria to carry public liability insurance in an amount set by the Texas 

Department of Insurance; and (2) the department and certain other state agencies to determine 

the risk associated with ammonium nitrate facilities and to set an appropriate amount of liability 

coverage for bodily injury and property damage based on the risk exposure.   

 

H.B. 2486 (Keffer) – Recovery of Personal Property:  would: (1) authorize a person to apply 

to a justice court for an order authorizing entry into their residence or former residence, 

accompanied by a peace officer, to retrieve their personal property; (2) require a peace officer 

acting under an order described in (1), above, to:  (a) accompany and assist the applicant in 

making authorized entry and retrieving certain personal property; (b) provide the current 

occupant of the residence a copy of the court order if the occupant is home at the time of entry; 

and (c) inventory the property retrieved by the applicant and provide the inventory to certain 

persons; (3) authorize a peace officer to use reasonable force and limit the officer’s liability 

when assisting a person described in (1), above; and (4) provide that it is a misdemeanor offense 

to interfere with a peace officer acting under an order described in (1), above.  (Companion bill 

is S.B. 739 by Hinojosa.)  

 

H.B. 2497 (Martinez) – Emergency Medical Services Personnel: would: (1) adopt the 

Recoginition of Emergency Medical Services Personnel Licensure Interstate Compact 

(“REPLICA”) to allow EMS personnel to work in different states if: (a) the personnel is licensed 

using certain national exams; (b) the work in a different state is needed for transportation of a 

patient; or (c) the work is needed due to a declaration of an emergency or disaster; (2) expedite 

the licensure of certain former or current military personnel who have certain national 

certification for EMS; and (3) join the interstate commission that oversees the compact.  

(Companion bill is H.B. 2498 by  Zerwas.) 

 

H.B. 2498 (Zerwas) – Emergency Medical Services Personnel:  this bill is identical to H.B. 

2497, above.  

 

H.B 2510 (Price) – Department of State Health Services: this is the Department of State 

Health Services sunset bill.  It would: (1) require emergency medical services providers to: (a) 



26 
 
 
 

maintain a permanent place of business in the state; (b) have adequate equipment as determined 

by the Department of State Health Services (department); and (c) have someone within the 

provider organization take a jurisprudence exam regarding the laws regulating emergency 

medical services; (2) require that the department: (a) conduct a comprehensive inventory of the 

roles, responsibilities, and capacity for public health services for state agencies, public health 

regions, and local health departments; and (b) create a matrix of public health duties of each 

entity with information provided by each entity, including a local health authority; (3) transfer 

licensing of code enforcement officers to the Department of Licensing and Regulation (TDLR); 

(4) repeal provisions related to code enforcement officer complaints, hearings, and fees; (5) 

transfer sanitarian licensing from the department to TDLR; (5) lessen state regulation of 

rendering establishments and the transportation of dead animals; (6) change the licensing 

procedure for food handlers by making the education and training programs comply with the 

American National Standards Institute and the Conference for Food Protection rather than state 

education and training; and (7) transfer various other occupational licensing from the Department 

of State Health Services to the Department of Licensing and Regulation and the Medical Board.  

(Companion bill is S.B. 202 by Nelson.)   

 

H.B. 2513 (Kacal) – 9-1-1 System:  would:  (1) require the Commission on State Emergency 

Communications to develop minimum performance standards for 9-1-1 service to be followed in 

regional plans, including a requirement that regional plans provide for automatic location 

identification and automatic tier two facility identification; (2) require an emergency 

communication district to provide automatic tier two facility identification as part of the 9-1-1 

system; and (3) require the Department of State Health Services to provide the address or 

location of each facility that is required to file a tier two form to the applicable regional planning 

commission or emergency communication district. 

 

H.B. 2516 (Keffer) – Commercial Vehicles:  would allow any city peace officer to enforce 

commercial vehicle standards (current law only allows peace officers in selected cities to enforce 

such standards).  

 

H.B. 2529 (Lucio) – Fireworks: would eliminate the authority of a home rule city to prohibit 

fireworks in the area that extends 5,000 feet beyond the city limits.   
 

H.B. 2554 (M. White) – Sidewalks: would repeal the state requirement that a person walk on 

the left side of the roadway if there is no sidewalk available.   

 

H.B. 2562 (Sheets) – Dogs: would enact provisions relating to the unlawful restraint of a dog, 

and provide that a city or county may prohibit or further regulate by ordinance the ownership, 

possession, restraint, confinement, or care of a dog.  

H.B. 2596 (Leach) – Protective Orders: would require a law enforcement agency to enter a 

protective order in the statewide law enforcement information system by the third business day 

after the date the order is received.  

 



27 
 
 
 

H.B. 2614 (Dutton) – Peace Officer Training Committee:  would create a committee of state 

senators and representatives to review the peace officer training programs overseen by the Texas 

Commission on Law Enforcement.  

 

H.B. 2623 (Zedler) – Seized Property:  would:  (1) prohibit a law enforcement agency or 

attorney representing the state from transferring seized property to any federal law enforcement 

authority or federal agency and from coordinating with the authority or agency regarding seized 

property unless: (a) the value of the seized property exceeds $50,000 (excluding value of 

controlled substance); and (b) the attorney representing the state determines that the activity 

giving rise to the seizure is interstate in nature and sufficiently complex to justify the transfer, or 

that the seized property may only be forfeited under federal law; and (2) prohibit a law 

enforcement agency or the Texas National Guard, when operating in a nonmilitary role, from 

participating, assisting, or cooperating in a forfeiture action brought by the federal government 

unless the value of the seized property subject to forfeiture exceed $50,000 (excluding value of 

controlled substance). 

 

H.B. 2646 (Giddings) – Disease Reporting: would: (1) allow the Department of State Health 

Services or a local health authority or department to release information about individuals with 

communicable diseases to a city whose first responders might be responding to the individual; 

and (2) require a local health department or authority to provide to first responders the physical 

address of a person who is being monitored for communicable disease. 

 

H.B. 2651 (Moody) – Child Abuse or Neglect:  would require a local law enforcement agency 

to conduct its own investigation upon notification by the Department of Family and Protective 

Services that a child who is the subject of a report of abuse or neglect has been removed from the 

child’s home. 

 

H.B. 2658 (Moody) – Capias Pro Fine: would allow a peace officer to bring a defendant before 

another court that is in the same territorial jurisdiction as, and that has concurrent jurisdiction 

with, the court that issued the defendant’s capias pro fine. (Companion bill is S.B. 873 by 

Rodriguez.) 

 

H.B. 2711 (Riddle) – Mental Illness:  would: (1) authorize emergency medical services 

personnel to transport (without the assistance of a peace officer) a person directly to an inpatient 

mental health facility for a preliminary exam if the personnel believe that the person is mentally 

ill and there is a substantial risk of serious harm if the person is not immediately restrained; (2) 

except from (1), above, a situation in which a person requires medical care or trauma services; 

and (3) require emergency medical services personnel to file an application for emergency 

detention after transporting a person to a facility as described in (1), above. 

 

H.B. 2714 (Phillips) – Commercial Drivers Licenses: would: (1) provide that it is a defense to 

prosecution for not being able to show a commercial drivers license when stopped that the 

individual had a valid commercial drivers license at the time the offense occurred; (2) allow an 

administrative court charge of up to $10 if a person is prosecuted for failing to have a 

commercial drivers license at the time of a stop but is able to prove that the individual had a 



28 
 
 
 

commercial drivers license at the time of the stop; (3) make it a Class C misdemeanor for the 

holder of a commercial drivers license to text while driving unless they are a law enforcement 

officer, fire fighter, or are communicating with law enforcement; and (4) make it a “serious 

traffic violation” for purposes of retaining a commercial drivers license to violate a state or local 

texting ban. 

 

H.B. 2722 (Goldman) – Emergency Medical Services: would prohibit the use of certain 

emergency medical markings on a vehicle unless the vehicle is being used: (1) as an emergency 

medical services vehicle; or (2) for another legitimate governmental function.   

 

H.B. 2735 (Capriglione) – Wet/Dry Status: would provide that, in a city that has held certain 

local option elections after January 1, 1985, the governing body of the city may adopt an 

ordinance authorizing the sale of beer and wine for off-premise consumption in an area annexed 

by the city in certain circumstances. 
 

H.B. 2744 (Capriglione) – License Plate Readers:  would authorize a law enforcement agency 

to use an automatic license plate reader, and require that all images and data produced from a 

reader be destroyed not later than the 90th day after the date of collection unless it is evidence in 

a criminal investigation or prosecution. 

 

S.B. 202 (Nelson) – Department of State Health Services: this bill is identical to H.B. 2510, 

above.   

 

S.B. 942 (Estes) – Search Warrants and Interception Devices:  would:  (1) authorize the 

issuance of a warrant to search and seize “location information” defined to mean information 

concerning the location of a cellphone or other wireless communication device; (2) add a 

definition for “global positioning system wireless device tracker system” and “international 

mobile subscriber identity locator” to certain provisions of the Code of Criminal Procedure and 

Government Code, including provisions related to: (a) a judge’s interception order; (b) a 

prosecutor's application for the installation and use of such equipment;  (c) a peace officer’s 

emergency use and installation of such equipment; and (d) a magistrate’s order to obtain access 

to communications; (3) authorize a judge to issue a order directing a remote computing service to 

furnish certain information, facilities, and assistance in intercepting communications; (4) 

prescribe requirements for the judicial district in which certain prosecutor applications for the 

installation and use of interception devices may be filed, the content of such applications, and the 

circumstances under which the application may be sealed; (5) authorize a district judge to issue a 

warrant for location information that is obtained from a cellphone or other wireless 

communications device by using a global positioning system wireless device tracker or an 

international mobile subscriber identity locator, and establish various requirements related to the 

issuance, application for, expiration, and sealing of such a warrant; (6) authorize a peace officer 

to obtain location information from a cellphone or wireless communication device without a 

warrant in certain circumstances; (7) authorize the issuance of an administrative subpoena by 

certain law enforcement officials and a search warrant by a court to a communication common 

carrier, provider of an electronic communication service, or a remote computing service to 

compel the production of certain business records; (8) include a municipal law enforcement 



29 
 
 
 

agency among the few who may own, possess, install, operate or monitor an international mobile 

subscriber identity locator; (9) provide that a person commits an offense for the unauthorized or 

installation use of an international mobile subscriber identity locator; and (10) require annual 

reporting of certain warrants and orders to the Department of Public Safety by the courts and 

prosecutors. 

 

S.B. 1006 (Rodriguez) – Restraining Orders: would: (1) allow a court to issue a gun violence 

restraining order; (2) permit the issuance of a gun seizure warrant if there is probable cause to 

believe a person violated the terms of their gun violence restraining order; and (3) make the 

offense of violation of gun violence restraining order a Class A misdemeanor.  

 

S.B. 1035 (Rodriguez) – Border Security: would: (1) provide that the Border Security 

Advisory Council must consist of various individuals, including certain local governmental 

entities receiving local border security grant funding from the Department of Public Safety and at 

least three mayors (or their designees) of cities in which state appropriations for purposes related 

to security at the border are spent; and (2) provide that the Council in (1), above: (a) make 

recommendations to the Homeland Security Council (rather than the office of governor) and 

publish those recommendations on the governor’s website; and (b) report on certain information, 

including the assessment of the performance of, reporting requirements for, and allocation of 

state agency funding for state border security activities. (Companion bills are H.B. 1761 by 

Guillen and H.B. 2030 by Muñoz.) 

 

S.B. 1037 (Rodriguez) – Nonlethal Force: would: (1) require each police officer to: (a) use all 

reasonable means to avoid using deadly force against an unarmed suspect; and (b) use the least 

amount of force necessary to restrain an uncooperative suspect; (2) require a police department 

to adopt a use of force policy that contains: (a) guidance on the use of lethal force; (b) procedures 

for dealing with an armed or unarmed suspect; (c) specific restraint techniques that do not 

require the use of deadly force or cause bodily injury; (d) disciplinary sanctions  for violations of 

the policy; and (e) specific examples of situations police officers may encounter; (3) require each 

officer to complete a training program on nonlethal and nonviolent restraint as established by the 

Texas Commission on Law Enforcement by 2017 and every 36 months; and (4) require the 

Texas Commission on Law Enforcement to: (a)  create a statewide comprehensive education and 

training program on nonlethal and nonviolent force and restraint of at least 8 hours; and (b) add 

instruction in the use of nightsticks, batons, clubs, pepper spray and other weapons in its training 

on weapons proficiency.    

 

S.B. 1109 (Lucio) – Emergency Response Districts: would: (1) authorize a county to create an 

emergency response district if it receives a petition and calls for an election to do so; (2) provide 

that a district can provide fire protection, emergency medical services, and related services; and 

(3) grant to a district the authority to levy a property tax and issue bonds. 

 

Transportation 

 

H.B. 20 (Simmons) – Transportation Planning: would, among other things: (1) create the 

Texas Department of Transportation’s state infrastructure advisory committee; (2) require the 



30 
 
 
 

committee to prepare a report detailing  the department's collaboration with state elected 

officials, local governments, government trade associations, metropolitan planning organizations, 

regional mobility authorities, and other entities when adopting rules or formulating policies; (3) 

provide that the Texas Transportation Commission shall establish one or more stakeholder 

advisory committees to make recommendations to the commission or department before the 

adoption of a rule, policy, or procedure affecting the stakeholders; (4) mandate that the 

department work with all local transportation entities in the state to develop and adopt uniform 

guidelines governing the funding prioritization of the entities' transportation projects; and (5) 

direct the commission to establish a project selection stakeholders advisory, which would include 

municipal officials.  (Companion bill is H.B. 2685 by Simmons.)  (This bill is identical to H.B. 

2685.)   

 

H.B. 2440 (Paddie) – Transportation Network Companies (e.g., Uber, Lyft):  would:  (1) 

provide that transportation network companies (company) and transportation network drivers 

(driver) are not common carriers, contract carriers, or motor carriers and do not provide taxicab, 

for-hire, or street hail service; (2) provide that a company does not own, control, operate, or 

manage vehicles used by drivers and is not a taxicab company or for-hire vehicle owner; (3) 

prohibit a person from operating a company without obtaining a permit issued by the Texas 

Department of Motor Vehicles (department) and paying a $5,000 annual fee to maintain the 

permit; (4) give the department authority to suspend or revoke a permit; (5) require a company 

that charges a far for its service to:  (a) disclose to passengers the fare calculation method on the 

company’s website or within the software application service; and (b) provide the passenger with 

the applicable rates and the option to receive an estimated fare before the passenger enters the 

driver’s vehicle; (6) require the company’s software application or website to display, before the 

passenger enters the driver’s vehicle, a picture of the driver and the license plate of the vehicle; 

(7) require a company to transmit an electronic receipt to the passenger within a reasonable 

period of time following the completion of the trip listing certain items;  (9) provide that while a 

driver is logged into a company’s digital network, but not providing transportation network 

services, financial responsibility for the driver’ s vehicle must be established, and that the vehicle 

liability insurance policy must be an owner’s or operator’s policy that is issued by:  (a) an 

insurance company authorized to write vehicle liability insurance in this state (this may be a 

combination of insurance policies maintained by the company or driver); or (b) a surplus lines 

insurer; (10) provide that during the time a driver is providing transportation network services, 

the company must establish financial responsibility for the driver’s vehicle through a vehicle 

liability insurance policy that provides coverage of at least $1 million per accident for bodily 

injury and property damage (this may be a combination of insurance policies maintained by the 

company or driver); (11) require that a driver involved in an accident while providing 

transportation network services provide proof that the vehicle is insured, as required by law, and 

notify the company of the accident; (12) require a company to: (a) implement a zero-tolerance 

policy that prohibits a driver from using or being under the influence of drugs or alcohol while 

providing service or while logged into the company’s network; (b) post on its website the 

procedure for a passenger to report a related complaint about a driver; and (c) take certain action 

upon receipt of a complaint by a passenger that driver has not complied with the zero-tolerance 

policy; (13) impose on a company certain requirements related to drivers, including completion 

of a criminal background check and examination of the driver’s driving record; (14) prohibit a 



31 
 
 
 

company from using a driver: (a) with certain driving offenses, (b) with certain criminal 

violations, (c) without a valid driver’s license, (d) without proof of registration and financial 

responsibility for the vehicle used to provide services, and (e) that is younger than 19 years of 

age; (15) require a company to: (a) make sure each vehicle meets certain state safety and 

emissions requirements; (b) prohibit solicitation or acceptance of cash payments from 

passengers; (c) adopt a policy of nondiscrimination; and (d) keep certain trip records; (16) allow 

a driver to only accept rides booked through a company’s digital network or software application 

service (i.e., no street hails); (17) require a driver to comply with laws relating to accommodation 

of service animals, prohibit a company from imposing additional charges to services to the 

disabled, and require a company to direct a passenger to alternative providers if they are unable 

to arrange wheelchair-accessible transportation; (18) authorize the Department of Motor 

Vehicles to impose a fee, not to exceed $10,000 annually, on companies, taxicab companies, and 

limousine and other for-hire vehicle companies that do not provide wheel-chair-accessible 

service and deposit the fees into an account in the general revenue fund to provide grants to 

certain providers that do offer accessible service; (19) prohibit a company from disclosing a 

passenger’s personally identifiable information to a third party unless certain requirements are 

met; and (20) prohibit a city from: (a) imposing a tax on, or requiring a license for, a 

company or driver; or (b) subjecting a company or driver to the city’s rate, entry, 

operational, or other requirements.  

 

H.B. 2592 (Phillips) – Ready Mix Concrete Trucks: would increase the maximum legal 

weight of certain ready-mix concrete trucks.  
 

H.B. 2606 (K. King) – Overweight Vehicles: would: (1) create a new class of state overweight 

vehicle permit called a “special use vehicle;” and (2) provide that, unless otherwise provided by 

state or federal law: (a) a county or city may not require a permit, fee, or license for the operation 

of a special use vehicle in addition to a permit, fee, or license required by state law; and (b) a 

special use vehicle may operate on a state, county, or municipal road, including a load-zoned 

county road or a frontage road adjacent to a federal interstate highway, if the vehicle is permitted 

under the bill. 

 

H.B. 2685 (Simmons) – Transportation Planning: this bill is identical to H.B. 20, above.    

 

H.B. 2686 (Shaheen) – Transportation Funding: would: (1) allocate a portion of the state’s 

motor vehicle sales tax to the state highway fund; and (2) prohibit spending on toll roads, mass 

transit, or highway beautification projects. 

 

H.B. 2701 (Pickett) – Department of Motor Vehicles: would, among many other things, 

provide that a portion of certain overweight vehicle permit fees is allocated to the state highway 

fund. 

 

H.B. 2736 (Capriglione) – Highway Closure:  would require that a contract for an 

improvement to a segment of the state highway system must prohibit a contractor from 

temporarily closing the highway on the date that an event is scheduled to be held in a city in 

which the improvement is being proposed if proper notice is given. 



32 
 
 
 

 

H.B. 2737 (Capriglione) – Transportation Funding: would reallocate three-fourths of the 

state’s gas tax, and essentially all of the state’s liquid propane tax, to the state highway fund. 

 

H.J.R. 114 (Shaheen) – Transportation Funding: would amend the Texas Constitution to 

provide that the net revenue from motor vehicle registration fees and motor fuels tax shall be 

used for the sole purpose of constructing and maintaining public highways, provided that one-

fourth of that revenue remains allocated to public school funding. 

 

S.B. 1043 (Nichols) – Department of Motor Vehicles: would, among many other things, 

provide that: (1) an operator of a vehicle operating under an overweight or oversize state permit 

who is required by law or rule to carry the permit in the vehicle  shall, on request, provide the 

permit for the vehicle or a photocopy of the permit to a peace officer; and (2) if the Department 

of Motor Vehicles provides a permit electronically, the vehicle operator may provide a legible 

and accurate image of the permit displayed on a wireless communication device. 

 

S.B. 1048 (Hall) – Transportation Funding: would prohibit the Texas Department of 

Transportation, a local governmental entity, or another political subdivision of this state from 

using money provided by the Federal Transit Administration for a mass transit passenger rail 

project. 

 

S.J.R. 42 (Huffines) – Transportation Funding: would amend the Texas Constitution to 

provide that the net revenue from motor vehicle registration fees and motor fuels tax shall be 

used for the sole purpose of constructing and maintaining public highways, provided that one-

fourth of that revenue remains allocated to public school funding. 

 

Utilities and Environment 

 

H.B. 2289 (Parker) – Electric Grid: would provide that: (1) the Electric Grid Security Advisory 

Committee is created; (2) not later than December 1, 2016, the committee shall prepare a report 

of its findings, including any recommendations for legislation resulting from the findings, and 

shall submit the report to the governor, the lieutenant governor, and the speaker of the house of 

representatives; and (3) the Energy Reliability Council of Texas shall collect and compile 

information related to the security of the electric grid, that information being confidential and is 

not subject to disclosure under the Public Information Act.  

 

H.B. 2308 (Keffer) – Water Rights Applications: would require an applicant for a new or 

amended water right to submit an economic impact study that assesses how approval or denial of 

the new or amended water right will economically impact affected communities.  

 

H.B. 2327 (S. Thompson) – Electric Rates: would provide that: (1) the Public Utility 

Commission shall undertake a study and conduct a report analyzing any periodic rate adjustment 

established under current law, to be available for the legislature's review by January 31, 2019; 

and (2) the report shall contain, among several other things, an analysis of alternative ratemaking 



33 
 
 
 

mechanisms adopted by other states and recommendations regarding appropriate reforms to the 

ratemaking process in this state to provide efficient and adequate oversight of electric utilities. 

 

H.B. 2362 (Pena) – Draft Impact Analysis: would require the Texas Commission on 

Environmental Quality to incorporate a draft impact analysis describing the anticipated effects of 

a proposed rule into a fiscal note.  

 

H.B. 2425 (Rodriguez) – Texas Beverage Container Recycling: would: (1) create the Texas 

Beverage Container Recycling Consortium, composed of one representative of a city with a 

population less than 10,000 and one representative of a city with a population of at least 10,000; 

(2) require a beverage container for sale in this state contain a specified refund value and 

required labeling; (3) require a distributor to collect a deposit from a retail dealer, who in turn 

will collect a deposit from a consumer for each beverage container; and (4) allow the Consortium 

to provide grants to fund water quality, waste reduction, recycling, or curbside redemption 

programs.  

 

H.B. 2535 (Bell) – Excavation:  would: (1) make an operator (a person that operates an 

underground facility) liable for damages incurred by an excavator as a result of an excavation 

that encounters the operator’s underground facilities if:  (a) the excavator reasonably relied on 

the operator to mark the approximate location of the underground facility as required by the 

Underground Facility Damage Prevention and Safety Act; (b) the operator fails to mark the 

approximate location of the underground facility or does not accurately mark that location; or (c) 

the damages to the excavator would not have occurred if the excavation had not encountered the 

underground facility or if the approximate location of the underground facility had been 

accurately marked; and (2) entitle the prevailing party in a suit for damages against an excavator 

or operator that occurs in relation to certain excavations to recover reasonable attorney’s fees in 

addition to any award of damages. 

 

H.B. 2556 (White) – Outdoor Burning: would reduce the penalty for outdoor burning of tires, 

insulation on electrical wire or cable, treated lumber, plastics, non-wood construction or 

demolition materials, furniture, carpet, or items containing natural or synthetic rubber. 

 

H.B. 2570 (Johnson) – Climate Change: would require: (1) Texas Water Development Board 

to include consideration of the potential effects of climate and precipitation changes on the water 

supply in this state; (2) regional water planning groups to include potential effects of climate and 

precipitation changes in their regional water plans; and (3) the Texas state climatologist to 

periodically provide TWDB with climate and precipitation forecasts.  

 

H.B. 2571 (Johnson) – Climate Change: would require state agency’s strategic plans to include 

an analysis of expected changes in the services provided by the agency because of projected 

changes in weather, water availability, and climate variability, as determined by the state 

climatologist.  

 

H.B. 2647 (Ashby) – Groundwater Production: would prohibit a groundwater conservation 

district from reducing or curtailing production below the maximum rate authorized by a permit 



34 
 
 
 

recorded before September 1, 2014, from a well that produces groundwater directly or indirectly 

used to support the operation of a power generation facility or a mine. 

 

H.B. 2672 (Workman) – Public Utility Agencies: would expand the powers of a public utility 

agency to include, among other things, imposing impact fees, collecting other fees, and using 

eminent domain. 

 

H.B. 2758 (Martinez) – Excavating: would amend the state’s “call before you dig” statute to 

provide that, for a planned excavation activity that will extend to a location that is one-quarter 

mile or more from the beginning point of an excavation project, each one-quarter mile portion of 

the planned excavation project is considered a separate excavation and the excavator shall 

provide a separate notification for each excavation.  

 

S.B. 932 (Fraser) – Renewable Energy: would repeal the state’s goals for renewable energy. 

 

S.B. 941 (Creighton) – Contested Case Hearings: would permit a court to reverse and remand 

a determination of standing in a contested case hearing only if the court finds that the Texas 

Commission on Environmental Quality: (1) failed to consider a factor required by law to be 

considered, (2) considered an irrelevant factor, or (3) considered only relevant factors required 

by law to be considered but reached an unreasonable result. (Companion bill is H.B. 1113 by 

Clardy.)  

 

S.B. 991 (Rodriguez) – Brackish Groundwater: would require the General Land Office and 

the Texas Water Development Board to jointly conduct a study regarding the use of wine and 

solar power to develop and desalinate brackish groundwater.  

 

S.B. 1067 (Rodriguez) – Recyclable Materials: would require an advisory committee 

established by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality to conduct a study quantifying 

the amount of materials currently being recycled and the economic impacts from the materials 

that are not being recycled. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

TML member cities may use the material herein for any purpose. No 

other person or entity may reproduce, duplicate, or distribute any part of 

this document without the written authorization of the Texas Municipal 

League. 



1 
 
 
 

 
March 20, 2015 

Number 12 
 

 

 

 

Legislative Alert: 

Monday and Tuesday Hearings on Bills That Could Permit Oil 

and Gas Drilling Anywhere 
 

Two bills set for a hearing in a House committee next Monday could invalidate nearly all city 

regulation of oil and gas activity.  The identical companion bill to one of them is set for a hearing 

in a Senate committee on Tuesday. 

 

H.B. 40 by Rep. Drew Darby, the Chair of the House Committee on Energy Resources, would 

expressly preempt city regulation of oil and gas operations and declare that oil and gas 

operations are subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state.  Among other consequences could 

be the invalidation of city distance, or setback, requirements relative to homes, schools, 

churches, and daycares.   (The Senate companion to H.B. 40 is S.B. 1165 by Sen. Troy Fraser, 

the Chair of the Senate Natural Resources and Economic Development Committee.)  Chairman 

Darby has expressed an interest to work with the League on compromise language, but the as-

filed version of the bills would be disastrous.   

 

H.B. 539 by Rep. Phil King would have the similar effect of erasing city regulations by requiring 

cities to pay the state for any lost state tax revenue because of oil and gas ordinances.  Because 

setback requirements deny drilling in all locations within the setback distance, and because cities 

have no money to pay the state for “lost” severance taxes, the likely effect would be to force 

cities to repeal their oil and gas ordinances. 

 

Officials in cities with oil and gas activity ordinances should consider taking the following 

action:   

 

 Testify against the House bills on Monday, March 23
rd

, at 2:00 p.m. in front of the House 

Energy Resources Committee, Room E2.010.   



2 
 
 
 

 Testify against the Senate bill on Tuesday, March 24
th

, in front of the Senate Natural 

Resources and Economic Development Committee, time and place TBA.  (You can find 

out the exact information when it is officially posted on the committee’s web page.) 

 Speak to your state representative and senator immediately about the negative effects of 

these bills. 

 Visit with homeowner and neighborhood groups in your city about the negative effects of 

unregulated urban drilling on home values, and encourage them to testify and/or contact 

their state representatives and senators as well.   

 

Click here for talking points about H.B. 40 (S.B. 1165 is identical to H.B. 40 so those talking 

points apply to both bills) and H.B. 539.   

 

 

Bill Filing Deadline Comes and Goes 
 

In the final three days before the March 13 bill-filing deadline, Texas lawmakers went into their 

usual bill-filing frenzy.  The numbers were similar to the 2013 session.  This time, they 

introduced roughly 2,800 bills and joint resolutions in the final three days (compared to about 

2,300 in the same period in 2013).  That brings the 60-day total to an unofficial 6,411 (around 

300 more than the 2013 numbers). There will be more; legislators can still file bills if they can 

persuade their colleagues to suspend the rules on a bill-by-bill basis. 

 

 

Discharge of Firearms Ordinances in Jeopardy 
 

City ordinances that prohibit the discharge of firearms in city limits are in jeopardy because of a 

resolution that was voted from a Senate Committee this week.  

 

S.J.R. 22, by Senator Brandon Creighton, would amend the Texas Constitution to establish that 

Texas citizens have the “right to hunt, fish, and harvest wildlife,” subject only to laws relating to 

conservation.  Unfortunately, the bill does not allow exceptions for health and safety 

regulations.  Accordingly, city ordinances prohibiting the discharge of guns in city limits could 

be subject to constitutional challenge if the resolution passes.  

 

The League has offered a simple amendment that would clarify the health and safety authority of 

cities, so far without success.  

 

Concerned city officials should visit with their Senators now.  The message is this:  cities support 

the right to hunt, provided discharge of firearms ordinances are respected.    

 

                 

City Officials Testify 
 

http://www.senate.state.tx.us/75r/Senate/commit/c580/c580.htm
http://www.tml.org/legislative-messaging


3 
 
 
 

When the legislature is in session, nothing compares to the effectiveness of city officials 

testifying at the Capitol. City officials who take their time to travel to Austin to speak out on 

important city issues should be applauded by us all. The League extends its thanks to all those 

who have vigilantly represented cities during the legislative session. 
 

 Alan Hugley, Mayor, Red Oak 

 Anita Burgess, City Attorney, Denton 

 Avinash Rangra, Mayor, Alpine 

 Darron Leiker, City Manager, Wichita Falls 

 Donald McKinney, Assistant Police Chief, Houston 

 Glenn Barham, Mayor, Wichita Falls 

 Greg Noschese, Councilmember, Mesquite 

 Gregorio Casar, Councilmember, Austin 

 Heidi Hansing, Councilmember, League City 

 Jeff Coyle, Intergovernmental Relations Director, San Antonio 

 Leslie Pool, Councilmember, Austin  

 Liz Donegan, Police Sergeant, Austin  

 Randy Zamora, Division Chief, Houston 

 Rodney Miller, Police Sergeant, Austin  

 Wayne Davis, Police Chief, Castle Hills  

 

 

Significant Floor Action 
 

S.B. 313 (Hinojosa), Relating to the amount the Texas Military Preparedness Commission may 

grant to local governmental entities for certain purposes.  Passed the Senate. 

 

 

Significant Committee Actions 
 

H.B. 11 (D. Bonnen), Relating to the powers and duties of the Texas Department of Public 

Safety and the investigation, prosecution, punishment, and prevention of certain offenses.  

Reported from the House Committee on Homeland Security and Public Safety. 

 

H.B. 80 (Craddick), Relating to the use of a portable wireless communication device while 

operating a motor vehicle.  Reported from the House Committee on Transportation. 

 

H.B. 1179 (Geren), Relating to the duties of certain law enforcement officials under procedures 

regulating the making or transfer of firearms.  Reported from the House Committee on 

Homeland Security and Public Safety. 

 



4 
 
 
 

S.B. 273 (Campbell), Relating to certain offenses relating to carrying concealed handguns on 

property owned or leased by a governmental entity.  Reported from the Senate State Affairs 

Committee. 

 

S.B. 833 (Campbell), Relating to the continuation of a residence homestead exemption from ad 

valorem taxation while the owner is temporarily absent because of military service.  Reported 

from the Senate Veterans Affairs/Military Installations Committee. 

 

S.J.R. 22 (Creighton), Relating to the right to hunt, fish and harvest wildlife.  Reported from the 

Senate Agriculture, Water, and Rural Affairs Committee. 

 

 

City-Related Bills Filed This Week 
 

Each week, League staff summarizes in this section the city-related bills filed during the 

previous week.  For a cumulative list of all city-related bills filed to date, click here. 

 

Property Tax 

 

H.B. 2872 (S. King) – Property Tax Exemption: would exempt from property taxation 

property acquired by a charitable organization to provide low-income housing for up to 10 years 

after the organization acquires the property (current law exempts for five years after acquisition). 

(Companion bill is S.B. 282 by Watson.) 

 

H.B. 2914 (Alvarado) – Property Tax Exemption: would provide that a charitable organization 

improving property to provide housing for low-income veterans is entitled to a property tax 

exemption under certain circumstances. (See H.J.R. 117, below.) 

 

H.B. 3000 (Guillen) – Property Tax Appraisal: would prohibit a chief appraiser from posting 

on the appraisal district’s website a supporting document included with an application for a 

property tax exemption filed with the chief appraiser.  

 

H.B. 3012 (Parker) – Property Tax Appraisal: would, among other things: (1) prohibit an 

appraisal review board commissioner from serving as a member of the appraisal review board; 

(2) provide that a person who has served for all or part of three consecutive terms on the 

appraisal review board is ineligible to continue serving on the board; and (3) prohibit an 

appraisal review board from taking formal action at a meeting unless a quorum of board 

members is present.  

 

H.B. 3013 (Parker) – Property Tax Appraisal: would allow the governing body of a taxing 

unit that is a party to a certain type of property tax matter before a court to designate a 

representative to attend mediation offered by the court and negotiate a settlement of the matter 

on behalf of a taxing unit, so long as the settlement proposal is ultimately approved by the 

governing body.  

 

http://www.tml.org/p/CityRelatedBills3_20_2015.pdf


5 
 
 
 

H.B. 3242 (Walle) – Property Tax Appraisal: would: (1) provide that, in a property tax protest 

based on unequal appraisal, the appraisal ratio of the property in question in comparison to 

median level of appraisal of other properties is to be determined: (a) using comparable properties 

located in the same appraisal district; (b) based on the similarity of the properties with regard to 

specified statutory characteristics, including square footage, property age, and property 

condition, among other things; and (c) based on the calculation of the appraised value of each 

comparable property as shown in the appraisal records submitted to the appraisal review board 

by the chief appraiser; (2) require the comptroller to establish standards for the development and 

calibration of adjustments for industrial, petrochemical refining and processing, and utility 

properties and other unique properties; (3) require a district court to grant relief on the ground 

that a property is appraised unequally if the appraisal ratio of the property exceeds by ten percent 

the median level of appraisal of a reasonable number of comparable properties in the appraisal 

district based on the standards in (1), above; and (4) provide that an appraisal district, appraisal 

review board, or a chief appraiser that prevails in an appeal based on unequal appraisal may be 

awarded reasonable attorney’s fees not to exceed $15,000. 

 

H.B. 3280 (Bell) – Property Tax Exemption: would: (1) expand the property tax exemption for 

a residence homestead donated to a disabled veteran by a charitable organization to include 

homesteads purchased with a donation from a charitable organization; and (2) would provide that 

a charitable organization building residence homesteads for disabled veterans is entitled to a 

property tax exemption under certain circumstances. (See H.J.R. 127, below.) 

 

H.B. 3295 (Sheffield) – State Aid Due to Property Tax Exemption: would entitle a city 

bordered by or adjacent to a military installation that has lost a disproportionate share of property 

tax revenue as a result of disabled veteran property tax exemptions to receive a disabled veteran 

assistance payment from the state. (Companion bill is S.B. 1368 by Fraser.) 

 

H.B. 3420 (Canales) – Property Tax Exemption: would expand the property tax exemption for 

property used by certain nonprofit community business organizations to provide services to aid 

in the economic development of local communities.  

 

H.B. 3470 (D. Bonnen) – Property Taxes: would, among other things: (1) would allow a city or 

county to provide the required property tax rate notice not later than the later of September 1 or 

the 30th day after the date the certified appraisal roll is received by the taxing unit; (2) would 

provide a complete residence homestead property tax exemption for the surviving spouse of a 

100 percent or totally disabled veteran who died before the law authorizing a residence 

homestead exemption for such a veteran took effect, but only if the surviving spouse has not 

remarried since the death of the disabled veteran; and (3) require a chief appraiser to exclude 

from the market value of real property the value of a vent hood installed in a restaurant kitchen. 

(See H.J.R. 134, below.) 

 

H.B. 3486 (D. Bonnen) – Property Taxes and Sales Taxes: would, among other things: (1) 

allow a city or county to provide the required property tax rate notice not later than the later of 

September 1 or the 30th day after the date the certified appraisal roll is received by the taxing 

unit; (2) provide a complete residence homestead property tax exemption for the surviving 



6 
 
 
 

spouse of a 100 percent or totally disabled veteran who died before the law authorizing a 

residence homestead exemption for such a veteran took effect, but only if the surviving spouse 

has not remarried since the death of the disabled veteran; (3) add “ticket scalping” to the list of 

services subject to state and local sales taxes; and (4) lower the state’s sales tax rate from 6.25 

percent to 6.24 percent.  

 

H.B. 3601 (Burns) – Property Tax Exemption: would provide that, once a veteran’s 

organization or county fair association claims a property tax exemption as authorized by state 

law, the exemption need not be claimed in subsequent years. (Companion is S.B. 918 by 

Nichols.) 

 

H.B. 3609 (Guillen) – Property Tax Appraisal: would: (1) provide that, in a property tax 

protest based on unequal appraisal, the appraisal ratio of the property in question in comparison 

to median level of appraisal of other properties is to be determined: (a) using comparable 

properties located in the same appraisal district; (b) based on the similarity of the properties with 

regard to specified statutory characteristics, like square footage, property age, and property 

condition, among other things; (c) by calculating adjustments in accordance with generally 

accepted appraisal standards; and (d) based on the calculation of the appraised value of each 

comparable property as shown in the appraisal records submitted to the appraisal review board 

by the chief appraiser; (2) allow a chief appraiser to disclose confidential information for the 

purpose of meeting the appraisal district’s burden of proof so long as the information does not 

identify a specific property or a property owner; and (3) require a district court to grant relief on 

the ground that a property is appraised unequally if the appraised value of the property exceeds 

by at least ten percent the median level of appraisal of a reasonable number of comparable 

properties in the appraisal district based on the standards in (1), above. 

 

H.B. 3614 (Burns) – Property Tax Exemption: would provide that, once a veteran’s 

organization or county fair association claims a property tax exemption as authorized by state 

law, the exemption need not be claimed in subsequent years. (Companion is S.B. 918 by 

Nichols.) 

 

H.B. 3623 (Gonzales) – Property Tax Exemption: would provide that the National Hispanic 

Institute is entitled to an exemption from property taxes of the real and tangible personal 

property it owns so long as the organization is exempt from federal income taxation as a 

501(c)(3) organization.  

 

H.J.R. 116 (S. King) – Property Tax Exemption: would amend the Texas Constitution to 

authorize the governing body of a political subdivision to exempt from property taxation all or a 

part of the residence homestead of the surviving spouse of a peace officer or a firefighter, 

including a firefighter of an organized volunteer fire department, if: (1) the surviving spouse has 

not remarried since the death of the peace officer or firefighter; (2) the property was the 

residence homestead of the surviving spouse on the date of the peace officer or firefighter’s 

death or was acquired by the surviving spouse before the second anniversary of that date; and (3)  

the peace officer or firefighter was killed, or died as a result of an injury incurred, while in the 

performance of official duties as a peace officer or firefighter.  



7 
 
 
 

 

H.J.R. 117 (Alvarado) – Property Tax Exemption: would amend the Texas Constitution to 

provide that a charitable organization improving property to provide housing for low-income 

veterans is entitled to a property tax exemption under certain circumstances. (See H.B. 2914, 

above.) 

 

H.J.R. 127 (Bell) – Property Tax Exemption: would amend the Texas Constitution to expand 

the property tax exemption for a residence homestead donated to a disabled veteran by a 

charitable organization to include homesteads purchased with a donation from a charitable 

organization. (See H.B. 3280, above.)  

 

H.J.R. 134 (D. Bonnen) – Property Tax Exemption: would amend the Texas Constitution to: 

(1) permit the legislature to provide a complete residence homestead property tax exemption for 

the surviving spouse of a 100 percent or totally disabled veteran who died before the law 

authorizing a residence homestead exemption for such a veteran took effect, but only if the 

surviving spouse has not remarried since the death of the disabled veteran; and (2) allow the 

legislature to exempt from property taxation all or part of the market value of the tangible 

personal property a person owns that consists of inventory. (See H.B. 3470, above.)  

   
S.B. 1154 (Hall) – Property Tax Exemption: would, among other things: (1) require the chief 

appraiser to accept and approve or deny an application for a residence homestead exemption of a 

100 percent or totally disabled veteran after the filing deadline if the application is filed not later 

than one year after the date on which the United States Department of Veterans Affairs or its 

successor approves the veteran’s disability application; (2) provide that if a late application is 

approved after approval of the appraisal records for a year for which the exemption is granted, 

the collector for a taxing unit must deduct from the person’s tax bill the amount of tax imposed 

on the property for that year and any penalties and interest relating to the tax if the tax and 

related penalties and interest have not been paid; (3) provide that if a late application is approved 

after approval of the appraisal records for a year which the exemption is granted and the person 

already paid the tax and related penalties and interest, the person is eligible for a refund of the 

tax, penalties, and interest paid. (Companion bill is H.B. 2146 by Raymond.) 

 

S.B. 1285 (Hall) – Heavy Equipment Appraisal: would modify the method for appraising 

certain dealer’s heavy equipment inventory by minimizing the ability to tie the appraised value 

of the inventory to the lease or rental price. 

 

S.B. 1291 (V. Taylor) – Tax Collection: would, among other things: (1) authorize a taxpayer to 

file a lawsuit to contest the payment of any tax or fee collected by the comptroller, including a 

local tax collected by the comptroller; and (2) require the suit to be brought against the public 

officials charged with the duty of collecting the tax or fee, the comptroller, and the attorney 

general.   

 

S.B. 1368 (Fraser) – State Aid Due to Property Tax Exemption: this bill is identical to H.B. 

3295, above.   

 



8 
 
 
 

S.B. 1379 (Lucio) – Property Tax Exemption: would exempt from property taxation a structure 

used to store implements of husbandry that are used in the production of farm or ranch products. 

(See S.J.R. 50, below.) 

 

S.B. 1469 (Watson) – Property Tax Exemption: would provide that a person is entitled to a 

property tax exemption for pollution control property only for three years after the executive 

director of the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality issues a letter granting the 

exemption, unless the person files a new application for an exemption.  

 

S.B. 1581 (Zaffirini) – Property Tax Exemption: would relate to whether property can be 

considered as qualified open-space land for purposes of an appraisal, would, among other things: 

(1) require a chief appraiser to distinguish between the degree of intensity required for various 

agricultural production methods including uncommon production methods or systems; and (2) 

provide that the use of land for a nonprofit community garden is considered to be “agricultural 

use.” 

 

S.J.R. 50 (Lucio) – Property Tax Exemption: would amend the Texas Constitution to exempt 

from property taxation a structure used to store implements of husbandry that are used in the 

production of farm or ranch products. (See S.B. 1379, above.)  

 

Sales Tax 

 

H.B. 2844 (Raney) – Sales Tax Exemption: would characterize the lease or rental of reusable 

tangible personal property to a full service event business as a “sale for resale,” thereby 

exempting the property from sales taxes. 

 

H.B. 2910 (Murphy) – Sales Tax Exemption: would exempt from sales and use taxes drilling 

and fracturing equipment, including a blender, liquid, or acid pumping system, or custom trailer 

for fracturing equipment that is used for mineral exploration and production.   

 

H.B. 3049 (Darby) – Sales Tax Exemption: would exempt certain cleaning services in a 

licensed health care facility from sales and use taxes.  

 

H.B. 3174 (Button) – Sales Tax Exemption: would characterize the sale of a computer program 

to a provider of Internet hosting who acquires the computer program for the purpose of selling 

the right to use the computer program to an unrelated user of Internet hosting services as a “sale 

for resale,” thereby exempting the program from sales taxes. (Companion bill is S.B. 755 by V. 

Taylor.) 

 

H.B. 3229 (Cyrier) – Motor Vehicle Sales Tax Exemption: would exempt the purchase of an 

ambulance or emergency medical services chief or supervisor vehicle from the motor vehicle 

sales tax when purchased by an entity that has an agreement with a local governmental entity to 

provide emergency ambulance services. (Companion bill is H.B. 4067 by J. White.) 

 



9 
 
 
 

H.B. 3287 (Paddie) – Sales Tax Exemption: would: (1) provide that, for sales and use tax 

purposes, there is not presumption that an aircraft was purchased from a retailer for storage or 

use in this state if the person bringing the aircraft into the state acquired the aircraft other than by 

purchase; and (2) would characterize the lease or rental of an aircraft as a “sale for resale” under 

certain circumstances, thereby exempting the aircraft rental or lease from sales and use taxes.  

 

H.B. 3304 (Darby) – Sales Tax Exemption: would exempt the tangible personal property sold 

to or used by a state data center services provider from sales and use taxes under certain 

circumstances.  

 

H.B. 3484 (D. Bonnen) – Sales Tax: would: (1) add “ticket scalping” to the list of services 

subject to state and local sales taxes; (2) lower the state’s sales tax rate from 6.25 percent to 6.24 

percent; and (3) exempt property used in data centers from local sales and use taxes.  

 

H.B. 3542 (Raymond) – Sales Tax Exemption: would exempt certain data processing services 

from sales taxes. 

 

S.B. 1226 (Seliger) – Sales Tax Exemption: would exempt certain equipment used for digital 

audio broadcasting from sales and use taxes. (Companion bill is H.B. 2507 by Kacal.) 

 

S.B 1249 (West) – Sales Tax Exemption: would exempt ink cartridges from sales and use tax 

during limited periods of time. 

 

S.B. 1275 (West) – Sales Tax Exemption: would exempt from sales and use taxes certain home 

improvement items that are sold, leased, or rented to a disabled veteran.  

 

S.B. 1356 (Hinojosa) – Sales Tax Exemption: would exempt the sale of a WaterSense product 

from sales and use taxes if the sale taxes place on Memorial Day weekend. (Companion bill is 

H.B. 2492 by Darby.) 

 

S.B. 1391 (Estes) – Sales Tax Exemption: would exempt certain health care supply items from 

sales and use taxes if purchased by an entity that has an agreement with a local governmental 

entity to provide emergency ambulance services.  

 

S.B. 1396 (West) – Aircraft Sales Tax: would: (1) impose a tax on the sale and use of aircraft, 

set at a rate of 6.25 percent of the total consideration; and (2) provide that city sales and use taxes 

apply to the sale and use of an aircraft. 

 

S.B. 1527 (L. Taylor) – Sales Tax Allocation: would: (1) require the comptroller to send 

additional information to a city when a city reports that a person has collected or reported taxes 

incorrectly, including a description of the action the comptroller is taking to collect the 

delinquent tax, and either: (a) the date and periods covered by the most recent audit of the person 

by the comptroller or a statement that the comptroller has not conducted an audit of the person; 

(b) a certification that the person is obligated for the municipal tax, the periods for which the 

person is obligated, the amount of the tax due, and a statement as to whether the tax due has been 



10 
 
 
 

credited to the city’s account; or (c) a statement authorizing a person employed by or designated 

by the city to perform the duties assigned to the comptroller regarding investigations and audits; 

(2) authorize a city that disagrees with a determination made by the comptroller to petition the 

comptroller for a redetermination; (3) authorize the comptroller to set and collect from the city or 

other governmental entity reasonable fees to cover the expense of compiling and providing 

information or providing access to the administrative appeals process; and (4) provide that a city 

that submits a report to the comptroller preserves the right to receive from the comptroller any 

tax due to the city and collected by the comptroller from the person that is the subject of the 

report for the four years preceding the date the comptroller receives the report from the city and 

for each subsequent reporting period until the comptroller has fulfilled the comptroller’s duties. 

(Companion bill is H.B. 1871 by G. Bonnen.) 

 

Purchasing 

 

H.B. 3010 (Simmons) – Economically Disadvantaged Person: would add a person with any 

disability covered by the federal Americans with Disabilities Act to the list of historically 

underutilized businesses.  (Companion bill is S.B. 1052 by Zaffirini.)   

 

H.B. 3019 (Kuempel) – Alternative Procurement: would provide that: (1) the governing body 

of a governmental entity that considers a construction contract using an alternative procurement 

method may not unreasonably restrict or eliminate the consideration of construction materials 

used in the contracting and delivery of a construction project; and (2) no construction documents 

or any other information associated with the preparation of a request for bids shall prohibit the 

consideration of construction materials, including piping materials, that meet current and 

recognized standards as issued by the American Society for Testing and Materials, the American 

Water Works Association, or their successor organizations. 

 

H.B. 3193 (Bernal) – Local Preference: would provide that, in purchasing any personal 

property that is not affixed to real property or services other than professional services, if a city 

that solicits requests for proposals receives one or more proposals from an offeror whose 

principal place of business is in the city, the city may consider, as a percentage of the evaluation 

factors, an offeror’s principal place of business if the contract is for services in an amount of less 

than $100,000 or a contract for other purchases in an amount of less than $500,000.  (Companion 

bill is S.B. 1998 by Menendez.) 

 

H.B. 3528 (Naishtat) – Change Orders:  would provide that, in relation to projects finances 

with certificates of obligation: (1) a governing body may grant authority to an official or 

employee responsible for purchasing or for administering a contract to approve a change order 

that involves an increase or decrease of $50,000 or less, except that the original contract price 

may not be increased by the official or employee by more than 25 percent unless the change 

order is necessary to comply with a federal or state statute, rule, regulation, or judicial decision 

enacted, adopted, or rendered after the contract was made; and (2) the original contract price may 

not be decreased by the official or employee by 18 percent or more without the consent of the 

contractor. 

 



11 
 
 
 

H.B. 3620 (Isaac) – Real Property:  would provide that a city authorized by other law to 

acquire, by purchase or exercising the power of eminent domain, real property located outside 

the corporate boundaries and extraterritorial jurisdiction may not do so unless:  (1) if the property 

is located within the corporate boundaries or extraterritorial jurisdiction of another city, the 

purchasing city obtains written consent for the acquisition from city in which the property is 

located; waives its right to exempt the property from ad valorem taxes; or agrees to make a 

payment in lieu of taxes in accordance with the bill; or (2) if the property is located in the 

unincorporated area of the county and not in the extraterritorial jurisdiction of a city, the 

purchasing city, the purchasing city obtains written consent for the acquisition from county; 

waives its right to exempt the property from ad valorem taxes; or agrees to make a payment in 

lieu of taxes in accordance with the bill. 

 

S.B. 1266 (Estes) – Public Facility Corporations: would expand certain authority of a public 

facility corporation and provide that the corporation may: (1) exercise any powers that a 

nonprofit corporation may exercise, to the extent necessary or convenient to accomplish the 

purpose of the corporation; and (2) can grant a leasehold or other possessory interest in a public 

facility owned by the corporation.  (Companion bill is H.B. 2679 by Flynn.) 

 

S.B. 1281 (Zaffirini) – Cooperative Purchasing:  would provide t h a t  a local government may 

participate in a cooperative purchasing program with another local government of this state or 

another state or with a local cooperative organization of this state or another state. 

 

S.B. 1460 (Bettencourt) – Alternative Procurement:  would provide that, in relation to a 

construction-related project: (1) an offeror who submits a bid, proposal, or request for 

qualification may request the governmental entity to explain the evaluation and ranking of a 

submission that was not selected and that: (a) is ranked differently than a similar submission of a 

bid, proposal, or request for qualification by the offeror to the governmental entity during the 

preceding year; (b) uses the same data that was used to develop the previous submission; and 

(c) is based on the same selection criteria that was used to evaluate and rank the previous 

submission; (2) a request made under the bill must be in writing; and (3) not later than the 30th 

day after the date a request is made, the governmental entity shall deliver to the offeror a written 

explanation  of  the  basis  of  the  evaluation  and  ranking  of  the  submission, including an 

explanation of why the submission was ranked differently than the previous submission.  

(Companion bill is H.B. 932 by Murphy.) 

 

Elections 

 

H.B. 2762 (Laubenberg) – Initiative and Referendum Petition:  would:  (1) invalidate certain 

city charter provisions regarding validity or verification of petitions; (2) require a petition be 

filed within the later of:  (a) 90 days after final passage of an order, ordinance, or resolution; or 

(b) 90 days after its publication; (2) require a city secretary (or other authority that verifies 

petition signatures) who determines a petition contains an insufficient number of signatures to 

state all the specific grounds invaliding a signature; (3) provide that, if a petition is invalidated 

and subsequently refiled, the city secretary (or other authority that verifies signatures) may not 

invalidate a subsequent petition on grounds that existed but were not raised during  an earlier 



12 
 
 
 

determination of validity of the petition; (4) require a city to make available on its website a 

petition form that complies with state law and the city’s requirements for petitions; and (5) 

prohibit a city secretary (or other authority responsible for verifying signatures) from 

invalidating a petition because it fails to contain information that the city’s petition form itself 

does not contain. 

 

H.B. 2775 (E. Rodriguez) – Candidate Applications:  would:  (1)  allow a registered voter of 

the territory from which a candidate seeks to be elected to challenge, in district court, a 

candidate’s petition filed in connection with an application for a place on the ballot; (2) provide 

that a single notarized affidavit by any person who obtains signatures for a candidate petition is 

valid for all signatures gathered by the person, if the date of notarization is after the date of the 

last signature obtained by the person; and (3) allow a candidate petition to be corrected and 

additional signatures presented after the petition has been initially filed, but not after the deadline 

for filing the petition. 

 

H.B. 2778 (Elkins) – Email Ballots:  would allow balloting materials to be sent by email for any 

election in which a voter who registers is eligible to vote.  

 

H.B. 2840 (Cyrier) – Elections: would: (1) provide that a person who indicates on a federal 

postcard application that the person is a United States citizen residing outside the United States 

indefinitely is entitled to vote a full ballot if the person is otherwise eligible to vote and is a 

registered voter at the address contained on the application; and (2) require the early voting clerk 

to provide notice to a person who indicates on a federal postcard application that the person is a 

United States citizen residing outside the United States indefinitely, other than a voter described 

by (1), that as a result of the person’s indication, the person is only eligible to vote a ballot 

restricted to federal offices only. 

 

H.B. 2845 (Capriglione) – Candidates: would prohibit a person from being a candidate for 

public office if they are required to be registered as a lobbyist. (Companion bill is S.B. 555 by V. 

Taylor.) 

 

H.B. 2856 (Nevarez) – Elections: would provide that a student identification card issued by a 

high school located in this state or an institution of higher education is an acceptable form of 

photo identification for voting if it contains the person’s photograph and is accompanied by 

proof of current enrollment issued by the high school or institution. 

 

H.B. 2862 (Bernal) – Elections: would authorize the secretary of state to select any county to 

participate in the countywide polling place program. (Companion bill is H.B. 3269 by Herrero.)  

 

H.B. 2888 (Lozano) – Elections: would provide that certain political subdivisions holding 

elections in November may not designate as an early voting polling place a location other than an 

eligible county polling place unless each eligible county polling place located in the political 

subdivision is designated as an early voting polling place for the election. 

 



13 
 
 
 

H.B. 2930 (Schofield) – Elections: would provide that a person 70 years of age or older may use 

a form of photo identification that has expired for the purposes of voting if the identification is 

otherwise valid.  

 

H.B. 2937 (Schofield) – Elections: would require the voter registrar to cancel a voter’s 

registration immediately upon the receipt of: (1) a list of persons excused or disqualified from 

jury service because of citizenship status that includes the voter; or (2) notice from any 

governmental agency that the voter has acknowledged that the voter is not a citizen of the United 

States.  

 

H.B. 2944 (Schofield) – Elections: would provide that a marked ballot voted by mail is on time 

if it arrive at the address on the carrier envelope not later than noon on the day after election day, 

if the carrier envelope was placed for delivery before election day.  

 

H.B. 2953 (Schofield) – Elections: would: (1) provide that a person is ineligible to serve as a 

poll watcher in an election if the person has been finally convicted of a felony; and (2) allow a 

poll watcher to use a wireless communication device at a polling place for the purpose of 

reporting an irregularity or violation of law relating to the election.  

 

H.B. 2980 (J. Rodriguez) – Elections: would: (1) provide that a voter may submit to an early 

voting clerk an electronic transmission of a scanned application for voting by mail containing an 

original signature; and (2) require the early voting clerk to designate an e-mail address for receipt 

of an application. 

 

H.B. 2986 (Israel) – Canvassing:  would require the presiding officer of the canvassing 

authority to note the completion of the canvass in written minutes or a recording required by the 

Open Meetings Act.  

 

H.B. 3005 (Laubenberg) – Election Deadlines and Procedures:  would, among other things:  

(1) provide that the deadline for an application for a place on the ballot and the order of election 

(for an election on uniform date) is the 78th day before the election; (2) define “national holiday” 

to include a day taken in lieu of an actual national holiday when there is no regular U.S. mail 

delivery, and define “state holiday” to mean the same as set out in current state law; (3) allow a 

runoff election following a May election held in even-numbered years to be held within 30 days 

before or after the date of the general election for state and county officers, general primary 

election, or runoff primary election; (4) require the early voting ballot board to verify and count 

provisional ballots and count ballots voted by mail not later than the 9th day after the date of an 

election, except that in an election held on the date of the general election for state and county 

officers, ballots voted by mail must be counted no later than the 13th day after the election; (5) 

change certain vote by mail deadlines; (6) change some of the deadlines for candidate 

withdrawal and related requirements to place their name on the ballot; (7) provide that for an 

election to be held on a uniform election, the filing deadline for a write-in candidate is the 74th 

day before the election; (8) prohibit a write-in candidate from withdrawing after the 71st day 

before the election; and (9) require a special election to fill a vacancy to be held on the first 

authorized uniform date on or after the 46th day after the election is ordered (except as otherwise 



14 
 
 
 

provided by law) and change related deadlines for candidate’s application for a place on the 

ballot.  (Companion bill is S.B. 1703 by Huffman.) 

 

H.B. 3056 (Reynolds) – Elections: would, among other things: (1) provide that if an application 

for a ballot to be voted by mail for the main election and any resulting runoff is not timely for the 

main election, it will be considered timely for any resulting runoff if received in time; and (2) 

provide that a person commits an offense if the person signs an application for a ballot to be 

voted by mail as a witness for more than one applicant in the same election or the person signs 

an annual application for a ballot to be voted by mail as a witness for more than one applicant in 

the same calendar year. 

 

H.B. 3059 (Reynolds) – Elections: would, among other things, provide that a voter must only 

present a voter registration certificate in order to vote, and not a form of photo identification.  

 

H.B. 3083 (Blanco) – Elections:  would provide that the secretary of state shall prescribe rules 

requiring each entity that designates a polling place to submit information to the secretary of the 

state to place on its website including: (1) the location of the polling place; (2) building name; 

(3) street address; and (4) zip code.  

 

H.B. 3120 (Faircloth) – Election Workers:  would provide that an election judge, early voting 

clerk, or deputy early voting clerk is entitled to compensation for attending training at an hourly 

rate fixed by the appropriate authority (current law provides $7/hour). 

 

H.B. 3122 (Faircloth) – Early Voting Ballot Board:  would:  (1) require the early voting ballot 

board to verify and count provisional ballots not later than the 13th day after the date of an 

election; (2) require the canvass to occur not later than the 14th day after election day; and (3) 

allow a county election officer who determines a ballot was incorrectly rejected by the early 

voting ballot board before the time set for convening the canvassing authority to petition a 

district court for relief. 

 

H.B. 3178 (Schofield) – Elections: would: (1) require a person providing assistance to a voter to 

be a registered voter of the county in which the election is being held; (2) require a person 

providing assistance to voter to provide photo identification to an election officer; and (3) make 

it a Class A misdemeanor for a person, other than an election officer, to solicit voters to provide 

voting assistance, including assistance provided during early voting  

 

H.B. 3119 (Faircloth) – Elections: would require early voting by personal appearance at the 

main early voting polling place in a runoff election to be conducted for at least 12 hours on at 

least two weekdays.  

 

H.B. 3124 (Schofield) – Elections: would, among other things: (1) amend the state statute 

dealing with electronic voting machines to reflect a recodification of federal law; and (2) expand 

the time frame that a county or political subdivision may make a showing that the electronic 

voting machine requirement creates an undue burden.  

 



15 
 
 
 

H.B. 3269 (Herrero) – Elections: would authorize the secretary of state to select any county to 

participate in the countywide polling place program. (Companion bill is H.B. 2862 by Bernal.) 

 

H.B. 3352 (Schofield) – Elections: would provide that if the date that ballots to be voted by mail 

become available is earlier than the 45
th

 day before election day, the balloting materials shall be 

mailed to a voter not later than the 30
th

 day before election day.   

 

H.B. 3379 (Fallon) – Elections: would: (1) shorten the period for early voting by personal 

appearance on the November uniform election date to the 10
th

 day before election day through 

the fourth day before election day, except as otherwise provided by state law; (2) for an election 

ordered by a city, reduce the time that early voting by personal appearance at the main early 

voting place must be conducted to at least 12 hours on only one weekday (instead of 12 hours on 

two weekdays under certain circumstances); and (2) provide that the authority ordering an 

election may order early voting by personal appearance at the main early voting polling place to 

be conducted on a Saturday or Sunday during the early voting period.  

 

H.B. 3441 (Riddle) – Elections: would: (1) repeal the requirement that a school district hold its 

election on the same date as the city council election; and (2) require the governing body of a 

political subdivision other than a county that holds its elections on the May uniform election date 

to move all elections to the November uniform date or the date of the general primary election 

not later than December 31, 2016.   

 

H.B. 3586 (Reynolds) – Elections: would provide that a ballot voted by mail, whether cast from 

an address outside the United States or not, may be counted if it arrives after the deadline if: (1) 

the carrier envelope was placed for delivery before the time the ballot is required to arrive; and 

(2) the ballot arrives at the address on the carrier envelope not later than the fifth day after the 

date of the election. 

 

S.B. 1378 (Lucio) – Candidate Qualifications:  would: (1) require a mandatory drug test each 

time a person runs for a public elective office; (2) require the authority running the election, 

including a city, to: (a) administer the drug test; (b) obtain a waiver of confidentiality to release 

the results of the drug test; and (c) submit the results to the Texas Ethics Commission; (3) require 

the Texas Ethics Commission to release the results of the drug tests; and (4) require the Secretary 

of State to adopt rules in accordance with this requirement. (See S.J.R. 49, below.) 

 

S.B. 1489 (Garcia) – Elections: would require an election officer to ensure that a declination of 

a provisional ballot form is executed for each person who is informed of the person’s right to 

cast a provisional ballot.  

 

S.B. 1490 (Garcia) – Elections: would, among other things, provide that a voter who doesn’t 

appear on the list of registered voters for the precinct and presents a receipt for a voter 

registration application issued by a deputy voter registrar shall be noted on the affidavit signed 

by the election judge to attest that the voter presented the receipt and that the information on the 

affidavit matches the receipt. 

 



16 
 
 
 

S.B. 1491 (Garcia) – Elections: would allow a person who is occupying a voting station to use a 

mobile phone to access information that was downloaded, recorded, or created on the phone 

before the person entered the polling place. (Companion bill is H.B. 675 by G. Bonnen.) 

 

S.B. 1525 (Garcia) – Elections: would authorize a voter use a wireless communication device at 

a voting statute solely to reference a sample ballot or information regarding a ballot initiative 

stored on the device.  

 

S.J.R. 49 (Lucio) – Candidate Qualifications:  proposes a constitutional amendment which 

would require the legislature to pass a law making a drug test mandatory for each public elective 

office in the state. (See S.B. 1378, above.)      

 

Open Government 

 

H.B. 2766 (Burkett) – Birthdate:  would:  (1) make a person’s date of birth confidential; (2) 

authorize a city to redact a person’s date of birth without requesting a decision from the attorney 

general; and (3) allow a county or district clerk to disclose a date of birth in the ordinary course 

of business without violating the law or facing liability.  

 

H.B. 2839 (Capriglione) – Production of Public Information:  would:  (1) allow an officer for 

public information (PIO) to refer a requestor to a website maintained by the governmental body 

and accessible to the public as a method of responding to a request for information; (2) provide 

that: (a) a PIO complies with the requirement to produce information promptly by allowing a 

person to inspect copyrighted information; and (b) a PIO does not have to furnish copies of 

copyrighted material and may refuse to do so without requesting a decision from the attorney 

general; and (3) authorize a governmental body to withhold confidential utility customer 

information without requesting a decision from the attorney general. 

 

H.B. 3199 (Springer) – Marketing:  would prohibit the use of information received in response 

to a request under the Public Information Act for marketing purposes and provide a civil penalty 

for a violation of the prohibition. 

 

H.B. 3210 (P. King) – Production of Public Information:  would:  (1) allow an officer for 

public information to comply with a request for information by referring the requestor to an 

exact Internet location or uniform resource locator address on a website that is accessible to the 

public, if the requested information is identifiable and readily available on that website; and (2) 

provide that if the requestor states in writing that the person prefers access in a manner other than 

a website, the governmental body must supply the information in another manner required by the 

Public Information Act. 

 

H.B. 3224 (Murr) – Motor Vehicle Accident Information:  would require that motor vehicle 

accident information be released to a person who provides the date of the accident and the name 

of the person involved in the accident. 

 



17 
 
 
 

H.B. 3234 (Galindo) – Public Information: would, among other things: (1) provide that a 

municipal officer has a right of access to information that is, for purposes of the Public 

Information Act (PIA), public information of the municipal governmental body that the 

municipal officer oversees; (2) provide that a municipal governmental body on request by a 

municipal officer who oversees the governmental body shall provide public information, 

including confidential information or information otherwise excepted from disclosure, to the 

municipal officer in accordance with the PIA; (3) provide that a municipal governmental body 

that provides confidential information or information otherwise excepted from required 

disclosure under (2), above, does not waive or affect the confidentiality of the information for 

purposes of state or federal law or waive the right of the body to assert exceptions to required 

disclosure of the information in the future; (4) authorize a municipal governmental body to 

require a requesting municipal officer or the employees of the requesting municipal officer who 

will view or handle information that is confidential or otherwise excepted from disclosure to sign 

a confidentiality agreement that requires that: (a) the information not be disclosed outside the 

office of the requesting municipal officer, or within that office for purposes other than the 

purpose for which it was received; (b) the information be labeled as confidential; (c) the 

information be kept securely; or (d) the number of copies or notes taken from the information 

that implicate its confidential nature be controlled, with all copies or notes that are not destroyed 

or returned to the municipal governmental body remaining confidential and subject to the 

confidentiality agreement; (5) allow an individual required to sign a confidentiality agreement as 

described in (4), above, to seek a decision from the attorney general about whether the 

information is actually confidential or excepted from disclosure, and void any such agreement 

that is determined by the attorney general to cover information that is not confidential or 

otherwise excepted from disclosure; and (6) provide for the appeal of a decision of the attorney 

general described in (5), above, to a district court in a county in which the municipality is located 

if a person claims a proprietary interest in the information affected by the decision or a privacy 

interest in the information that a confidentiality law or judicial decision is designed to protect.  

(Companion bill is S.B. 336 by V. Taylor.) 

 

S.B. 1192 (Zaffirini) – Candidate Reports: would make confidential certain electronic 

candidate report data stored with the city for later retrieval and editing (i.e., data related to a 

report that has not yet been filed with the city). 

 

S.B. 1254 (Birdwell) – Economic Development Negotiations:  would repeal:  (1) the provision 

of the Public Information Act that makes certain information related to economic development 

negotiations between a governmental body and a business prospect confidential; and (2) the 

provision of the Open Meetings Act allowing certain economic development negotiations to be 

discussed in a closed meeting. 

 

Other Finance and Administration 

 

H.B. 22 (S. Davis) – Financial Statements:  would, among other things:  (1) provide that the 

Texas Ethics Commission (TEC) shall administer and enforce Chapter 145, Local Government 

Code, which requires certain officials and candidates in cities with a population of 100,000 or 

greater to file financial statements; (2) provide that the TEC shall administer and enforce state 



18 
 
 
 

law that requires certain municipal court judges to file a financial statement; (3) require the TEC 

to prepare a written opinion to answer a request of a person regarding Chapter 145, Local 

Government Code, or certain state law that governs municipal court judges; and (4) allow the 

TEC to disclose certain confidential information to a law enforcement agency to the extent 

necessary for the recipient of the information to perform a duty or function that is in addition to 

the TEC’s duties and functions.  (This bill is identical to H.B. 3448, below.)   

 

H.B. 23 (S. Davis) – Disclosure of Vendor Relationships: would amend Chapter 176, Local 

Government Code (which requires officials to disclose certain relationships they have with city 

vendors) to provide, among other things, that:  (1) it applies to a “local government officer” 

including an agent of a local government entity who is involved in the planning, advertising, 

selecting, or contracting of vendor; (2) it applies to a “vendor” who enters or seeks to enter into 

or influence a contract award, including the agent of a vendor, but generally excluding an officer 

or employee of a state agency; (3) disclosure is triggered upon the receipt of one or more gifts 

that have an aggregate value of more than $100 (current law is $250); (4) it applies to a vendor 

that has a “family relationship” with a government officer, defined to mean a relationship within 

the third degree by blood and second degree by marriage; (5) the receipt of gifts by family 

members and the receipt of lodging, transportation or entertainment may trigger the requirement 

to file a conflicts disclosure; (6) a vendor must complete a conflict of interest questionnaire if the 

vendor has a business relationship with a local governmental entity and the contract exceeds $1 

million; (7) failure by a local government officer or vendor to comply with the requirements of 

Chapter 176 is a criminal offense ranging from a Class C to a Class A misdemeanor, depending 

on the amount of the contract at issue; and (8) the city council could declare a contract void if 

they determine a violation of Chapter 176 has occurred. 

 

H.B. 300 (L. Gonzales) – Sporting Goods Sales Tax:  would: (1) remove the current 74 percent 

cap on the sporting goods sales tax that is transferred to the State Parks Account; (2) limit the 

transfer to an amount not to exceed what is appropriated by the legislature during the biennium; 

(3) limit the amount of money transferred to the Texas Parks and Wildlife Conservation and 

Capital Account to an amount not to exceed the amount appropriated by the legislature during 

the biennium; (4) remove the current 15 percent cap on the amount of sporting goods sales tax 

that is transferred to the Texas Recreation and Parks Account, (5) limit the transfer to an amount 

not to exceed what is appropriated by the legislature during the biennium; (6) remove the current 

10 percent cap on the sporting goods sales tax that is transferred to the Large County and 

Municipality Recreation and Parks Account, and (7) limit the transfer to an amount not to exceed 

what is appropriated by the legislature during the biennium. 

 

H.B. 2802 (Pena) – Bathrooms: would: (1) create a criminal offense for individuals over the 

age of 5 who use a bathroom designated for use by the opposite sex; and (2) create a cause of 

action for other individuals in the bathroom when the person of the opposite sex enters. 

 

H.B. 2854 (Martinez) – Disease Presumption: would, in relation to a presumption that a person 

is infected with disease at work for purposes of workers’ compensation coverage: (1) allow a fire 

fighter’s disease presumption to be determined by: (a) whether the cancer is known to associated 

with fire fighting by the International Agency for Research on Cancer; or (b) a physician’s 



19 
 
 
 

finding that the cancer is not the result of other known causes; and (2) allow a disease 

presumption related to a fire fighter’s death from certain diseases to be used to determine a 

survivor’s eligibility for benefits.  

 

H.B. 2961 (Sanford) – Local Debt: would require a city to include in a proposition seeking 

voter approval of the issuance of bonds: (1) the most recent rating, if any, given by Standard and 

Poor’s or another industry-recognized bond rating service to bonds issued by the city; and (2) a 

plain-language description of the applicable bond rating system, if a bond rating is required to be 

stated under (1), above. 

 

H.B. 3057 (Murr) – Rodents and Predatory Animals:  would require the Texas Parks and 

Wildlife Department, in conjunction with the Texas A&M AgriLife Extension Service, to create 

and administer a grant program for political subdivisions and some nonprofits for the control of 

rodents and predatory animals. 

 

H.B. 3079 (Raymond) – Statutes of Limitation:  would provide that the residual statute of 

limitations (of 4 years) does not apply to an action to enforce a right or remedy provided in the 

Texas Constitution.  In other words, such an action would not be time barred. 

 

H.B. 3131 (S. Thompson) – Abandoned Vehicles:  would provide, among other things, that if a 

law enforcement agency refuses to accept notice and custody of an abandoned vehicle from a 

vehicle storage facility the vehicle storage facility must assume responsibility for giving notice 

of abandonment. 

 

H.B. 3132 (Parker) – Municipal Advisors: would authorize a city to hire a financial advisor or 

investment advisor who is registered as a municipal advisor with the United States Securities and 

Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Section 15B.  

 

H.B. 3141 (Lozano) – Windstorm Insurance Association:  would modify the rules under 

which the Texas Department of Insurance issues a certificate of compliance under the Texas 

Windstorm Insurance Association Act.   

 

H.B. 3148 (E. Rodriguez) – Construction Contractors:  would require: (1) a construction 

contractor to register with the Texas Department of Licensing and Regulation; and (2) the 

department to prepare a publicly available list of registered contractors. 

 

H.B. 3166 (Collier) – Workers’ Compensation:  would waive a city’s immunity for workers’ 

compensation claims up to the liability limits in the Tort Claims Act. 

 

H.B. 3204 (Sheets) – Windstorm Insurance Association:  would provide that the Texas 

Windstorm Insurance Association shall administer, subject to Insurance Commissioner approval, 

a “depopulation program” that encourages the transfer of association policies to insurers through 

the voluntary market or assumption reinsurance. 

 



20 
 
 
 

H.B. 3265 (Guillen) – Towing, Booting, and Storing:  would make various changes to the 

licensing and regulation of towing, storing, and booting motor vehicles, including that:  (1) 

members of the Towing, Storage, and Booting Advisory Board must include one peace officer 

employed by a subdivision on the state in a county with a population of less than one million and 

one officer from a subdivision with a population of one million or more; (2) an incident 

management towing permit is required for any nonconsent tow (not just those initiated by a 

peace officer); (3) booting no longer requires a state license, but cities may regulate booting 

companies, including permit, sign, and charge requirements; (4) a towing company may take a 

nonconsent tow vehicle to certain facilities, including a facility owned by a government entity; 

(5) a tow truck operator and company acts as an agent of law enforcement when performing a 

nonconsent tow initiated by a peace officer; and (6) justice courts have exclusive jurisdiction 

over certain towing hearings. 

 

H.B. 3275 (Dutton) – Contested Case Hearings: would prohibit a state agency or 

administrative law judge from denying a request for a stay of proceedings in a contested case for 

which an interlocutory appeal has been filed. 

 

H.B. 3300 (Fallon) – General Law Term Limits:  would authorize the governing body of a 

general law city to order an election to impose, amend, or repeal municipal term limits. 

 

H.B. 3380 (Y. Davis) – Removal of Elected Officer:  would:  (1) prohibit the city council of a 

home rule city from removing an elected officer based solely on an administrative violation of 

the city’s charter; (2) require any process by which the city council removes an elected officer of 

the city to include written notice of the grounds of removal and an opportunity for a public 

hearing; (3) provide that: (a) the removal of an officer that doesn’t comply with (1) and (2), 

above, is not effective; and (b) these requirements do not affect the right of voters of the city to 

remove an elected officer; and (4) require a city that does not have a process like that described 

in (2), above, to adopt such a process by October 1, 2015. 

 

H.B. 3385 (Y. Davis) – Businesses that Relocate Overseas: would, among other things:  (1) 

require a city to give preference to a vendor, bidder, or contractor that does not appear on a 

certain list identifying businesses that relocate customer service employees positions overseas; 

(2) prohibit a city (with some exceptions) from awarding or providing a public subsidy to a 

business that appears on a certain list identifying businesses that relocate customer service 

employees positions overseas; and (3) require certain businesses that relocate customer service 

employees positions overseas to repay any public subsidies awarded after the business is placed 

on a certain list. 

 

H.B. 3344 (Schofield) – Local Debt: would prohibit a city from issuing a public security to 

purchase or lease tangible personal property if the expected useful life of the property ends 

before the maturity date of the public security. (Companion bill is S.B. 794 by Hancock.) 

 

H.B. 3408 (Stephenson) – Annual Financial Report: would require a city that maintains a 

website to post a comprehensive annual financial report on the website as soon as it becomes 



21 
 
 
 

available and to maintain the posting until at least the third anniversary of the date it is first 

posted.  

 

H.B. 3439 (Riddle) – Property Donation:  would allow the Texas Facilities Commission and 

state agencies to donate property to a local governmental entity in certain circumstances and 

authorize the state to charge the local governmental entity up to 10 percent of the item’s market 

value to cover the costs associated with the donation. 

 

H.B. 3448 (S. Davis) – Financial Statements:  this bill is identical to H.B. 22, above. 

 

H.B. 3478 (Elkins) – Credit Card Information:  would: (1) require that a business, including a 

city: (a) keep confidential retained credit card information; (b) secure the information from a 

breach of system security; (c ) if there is a breach where credit card information is compromised, 

give notice to the attorney general and the financial institution which  issued the card; and (2) 

create a civil penalty of up to $50 for a business to pay for each credit card or debit card whose 

information is compromised due to an unsecured computer system.  

 

H.B. 3537 (Y. Davis) – Credit Card Information:  would: (1) require that a business, including 

a city: (a) keep confidential retained credit card information; (b) secure the information from a 

breach of system security; (c ) if there is a breach where credit card information is compromised, 

give notice to the attorney general and the financial institution which  issued the card; and (2) 

create a civil penalty of up to $50 for a business to pay for each credit card or debit card whose 

information is compromised due to an unsecured computer system. 

 

H.B. 3543 (Schofield) – Public Integrity Prosecutions:  would:  (1) require the chief justice of 

the supreme court to appoint a Public Integrity Prosecutions Committee (committee) in a manner 

that ensures each administrative judicial region is represented; (2) require the committee to 

appoint a subcommittee to recommend candidates for public integrity prosecutor (prosecutor), 

from which the committee will appoint the prosecutor; (3) require the prosecutor to serve a six-

year term and oversee the Office of Public Integrity (office); (4) authorize the office to prosecute 

certain offenses against public administration, offenses involving insurance fraud, and offenses 

involving motor fuels tax; and (5) require a local law enforcement agency (to the extent allowed 

by law) to cooperate with the office by providing any necessary information. 

 

H.B. 3558 (Schubert) – State Flag:  would allow a flag on a municipal historic monument to be 

flown, from the perspective of the observer, to the left of the state flag.  (Note:  Current law 

prohibits any flag that is flown at the same height of the state flag from being on its left side.) 

 

H.B. 3567 (Sanford) – Gay Marriage:  would: (1) allow a church or other organization the 

right to refuse to perform certain services including marriages if doing so would violate a 

sincerely held belief; and (2) prohibit the state or city from: (a)  filing a criminal or civil action 

against an organization or individual exercising this right; or (b) otherwise penalizing an 

organization or individual exercising this right including in the provision of tax exemptions, 

governmental contracts, grants, or licenses.   

 



22 
 
 
 

H.B. 3602 (Bell) – Religious Freedom/Gay Marriage:  would provide that: 

 

1. a conscientious objector may freely act or refuse to act in accordance with a sincerely 

held religious belief that marriage is or should be recognized as only the union of one 

man and one woman, sexual relations should be exclusively reserved to a marriage of 

only one man and one woman, or gender or gender identity is or should be determined by 

the predominant chromosomal sex;  

2. a person or government agency may not take any adverse action against any 

conscientious objector wholly or partly on the basis that the conscientious objector acts or 

refuses to act based on the beliefs in (1), above; 

3. the bill does not apply to: (a) an action by a government agency that burdens a 

conscientious objector's right to act or fail only if the government agency action is in 

furtherance of a compelling governmental interest and is the least restrictive means of 

furthering that interest; or (b)actions taken solely for purposes of harassment; 

4. a conscientious objector may assert an actual or threatened violation of this chapter as a 

claim or defense in a judicial or administrative proceeding and obtain compensatory 

damages, injunctive relief, declaratory relief, or any other appropriate relief; 

5. a conscientious objector who successfully asserts a claim or defense under the bill is 

entitled to recover:(a) declaratory relief; (b) injunctive relief to prevent the threatened or 

continued adverse action against the conscientious objector; (c) compensatory damages 

for pecuniary and nonpecuniary losses; (d) punitive damages; and (e) reasonable 

attorney's fees, court costs, and other reasonable expenses; 

6. a cause of action under the bill has a two year statute of limitations; 

7. sovereign, government, and qualified immunities to suit and from liability are waived and 

abolished to the extent of liability created by the bill, and a claimant may sue a 

government agency or official for damages allowed by the bill. 

 

H.B. 3606 (Krause) – Federal Funds:  would:  (1) require a city to report to the Legislative 

Budget Board, the comptroller, and the governor before accepting or expending a federal grant or 

other funds that have not been appropriated by the legislature:  (a) the total amount of the funds; 

(b) the proposed use of the funds; and (c) the potential impact of the funds on the state budget; 

and (2) prohibit a city from accepting or expending federal funds if, on or before the 10th 

business day after the date the report in (1), above, is made the city receives a written 

disapproval. 

 

H.B. 3613 (Isaac) – Event Trust Funds: would: (1) transfer administration of the Pan American 

Games Trust Fund, Olympic Games Trust Fund, Major Events Trust Fund, Motor Sports Racing 

Trust Fund, and Events Trust Fund for sporting and non-sporting events from the comptroller to 

the office of the governor; and (2) eliminate the Special Events Trust Fund. 

 

H.B. 3630 (C. Turner) – Hotel Occupancy Tax: would: (1) apply state and local hotel 

occupancy taxes to short-term rentals; and (2) authorize a city to spend up to two percent of its 

hotel occupancy tax revenue for the creation, maintenance, operation, and administration of an 

electronic tax administration system.  

 



23 
 
 
 

H.B. 3650 (Guerra):  Tax Collection: would, among other things: (1) authorize a taxpayer to 

file a lawsuit to contest the payment of any tax or fee collected by the comptroller, including a 

local tax collected by the comptroller; and (2) require the suit to be brought against the public 

officials charged with the duty of collecting the tax or fee, the comptroller, and the attorney 

general.   

 

S.B. 1155 (Hall) – Discrimination Ordinances: would: (1) prohibit a city, and other political 

subdivisions, from adopting or enforcing an ordinance or regulation that prohibits discrimination 

against individuals not already protected by state law; and (2) invalidates any ordinance or 

regulation that was adopted before the section becomes law.   (Companion bill is H.B. 1556 by 

R. Miller.) 

 

S.B. 1194 (West) – Metal Recycling:  would:  (1) require a metal recycling entity to report to 

the Texas Department of Licensing and Regulation (TDLR) each sale or attempted sale of an 

explosive weapon or explosive component; (2) require the TDLR to use the statewide electronic 

reporting system that tracks the sale of regulated metal to also track the sale or attempted sale of 

an explosive weapon or an explosive component; (3) make it a criminal offense for: (a) a person 

to sell to a metal recycling entity or a metal recycling entity to buy an explosive component or 

explosive weapon; and (b) a metal recycling entity to store an explosive component or explosive 

weapon on its premises; (4) authorize a court to order restitution to a city for certain costs related 

to responding to an offense in (3), above; and (5) authorize TDLR to impose certain 

administrative penalties in relation to the metal recycling laws.  (Companion bill is H.B. 4090 by 

Johnson.) 

 

S.B. 1267 (Estes) – Contested Case Hearings: would: (1) allow a state agency to suspend a 

license if the agency determines imminent peril to the public health, safety, or welfare requires 

emergency action, which includes suspending the license holder’s license pending proceedings 

for revocation; (2) permit a state agency to notify each party to a contested case of any decision 

or order of the agency by electronic means; (3) provide that if an adversely affected party or the 

party’s attorney of record does not receive required notice from a state agency or acquire actual 

knowledge of a signed order before the 15
th

 day after the date the order is signed, then the 

deadline for a motion for rehearing begins when the party receives the notice or acquires actual 

knowledge of the signed order; and (4) require an adversely affected party to prove that the date 

the party received notice or acquired actual knowledge of an order was after the 14
th

 day after the 

date the order was signed. (Companion bill is H.B. 1419 by Clardy.)  

 

S.B. 1283 (Eltife) – Disasters and Emergencies: would: (1) provide that an out-of-state 

business entity whose transaction of business in Texas is limited to the performance of 

disaster- or emergency-related work during a disaster response period is not required to: (a) 

register with the secretary of state; (b) file a tax report with or pay taxes or fees to the state 

or a political subdivision of the state; (c) pay ad valorem or use tax on equipment used only 

during the disaster response period and that is removed from the state following the response 

period; (d) comply with any state or local business licensing or registration requirements; or 

(e) comply with any state or local occupational licensing requirements or related fees; (2) 

provide that an out-of-state employee whose only employment in the state is for the 



24 
 
 
 

performance of disaster- or emergency- related work during a disaster response period is not 

required to: (a) file a tax report with or pay taxes or fees to the state or a political 

subdivision; or (b) comply with any state or local occupational licensing requirements or 

related fees; (3) provide that an entity or employee described in (1) and (2), above, is 

(unless otherwise exempt) subject to a transaction tax or fee, including motor fuels tax, sales 

or use tax, hotel occupancy tax, and motor vehicle rental tax; (4) require an entity or employee 

described in (1) and (2), above, to provide certain information to the secretary of state upon 

request by the secretary of state; (5) exclude an entity or employee from the exemptions in 

(1) and (2), above, if the entity or employee remain in Texas after the disaster response 

period; (6) provide that an entity or employee described in (1) and (2), above, is not engaged in 

business in this state for purposes of the Limited Sales, Excise, and Use Tax Act; and (7) 

provide that an entity or employee described in (1) and (2), above, is not a “taxable 

entity” for purposes of certain franchise tax.  (Companion bill is H.B. 2358 by Lucio.) 

 

S.B. 1347 (Huffines) – Parks Funding: would limit: (1) the use of sporting goods sales tax 

revenue to acquiring, operating, maintaining, and making capital improvements to parks; (2) the 

transfer to the Texas recreation and Parks Account to seven percent of credits made of the 

sporting goods sales tax; and (3) the transfer to the large county and municipality recreation and 

parks account to five percent of the credits made of the sporting goods sales tax. 

 

S.B. 1437 (Zaffirini) – Financial Statements and Other Reports:  would allow certain 

documents, including a financial statement filed by some officials in cities with a population of 

100,000 or more, to be filed electronically using software developed by the Texas Ethics 

Commission if the city secretary or authority with whom the document is filed adopts rules and 

procedures to provide for such filing.  

 

S.B. 1444 (L. Taylor) – Electric Utility Liability:  would expand the protection from premises 

liability for recreational uses to any electric utility that has an agreement with a city to allow 

individuals on its premises for recreational purposes. (Companion bill is H.B. 2184 by R. 

Miller.) 

 

S.B. 1593 (Lucio) – Fireworks: would eliminate the authority of a home rule city to prohibit 

fireworks in the area that extends 5,000 feet beyond the city limits. (Companion bill is H.B. 2529 

by Lucio.) 

 

S.B. 1600 (Kolkhorst) – Attorney’s Fees: would authorize a court to award attorney’s fees 

against the state or an agency of the state in an amount not to exceed $250,000 in a proceeding 

under the Uniform Declaratory Judgments Act. 

 

S.B. 1608 (Huffines) – Code Enforcement Certification:  would, among other things, repeal 

the state certification process and training for code enforcement officers.   

 

S.J.R. 47 (Huffines) – Sales Tax: would amend the Texas Constitution to provide that, for each 

state fiscal year, the net revenue received from the collection of any state taxes imposed on the 

sale, storage, or use of sporting goods is automatically appropriated when received to the Parks 



25 
 
 
 

and Wildlife Department and the Texas Historical Commission, or their successors in function, 

and is allocated between those agencies as provided by general law.  

 

Municipal Courts 

 

H.B. 2821 (Clardy) – Truancy: would: (1) repeal the offense of failure to attend school; (2) 

continue to allow a school district to file a complaint against a parent in municipal court for 

parent contributing to nonattendance; (3) designate a municipal court as a juvenile court for the 

purpose of making a determination of truancy; and (4) provide a list of requirements that a court 

may order an individual who is found to be truant to complete. 

  

H.B. 2822 (Smithee) – Delivery of Court Notice: would authorize a court or court clerk to send 

any notice or document using mail or electronic mail. (Companion bill is S.B. 1116 by West.) 

  

H.B. 2885 (Giddings) – Juvenile Complaint Reporting: would: (1) require a school district to 

report the number of complaints filed in municipal court or citations issued to students each year; 

and (2) prohibit the report from including information that identifies the peace officer who issued 

a citation. 

  

H.B. 3252 (Landgraf) – Teen Court: would allow a defendant to enter the teen court program if 

the defendant: (1) has not completed a teen court program in the preceding 12 months before the 

offense occurred; and (2) was referred to the program by a designated school official as a 

diversionary program. 

  

H.B. 3338 (Alonzo) – Appointed Counsel: would entitle an indigent defendant being 

prosecuted for a Class C assault to court appointed counsel. 

  

H.B. 3388 (Faircloth) – Court Cost: would raise the fee paid by a defendant for services 

performed in the case by a peace officer for commitment or release from $5 to $90. (Companion 

bill is S.B. 696 by Taylor.) 

  

H.B. 3579 (Alonzo) – Expunction of Records: would reduce the elapsed time after the date of 

an arrest and dismissal that a person must wait to request an expunction for a Class C 

misdemeanor from 180 days to 30 days. 

  

H.B. 3627 (Guerra) – Community Service: would require a municipal court to allow a person 

under 18 years of age convicted of using a wireless communication device while driving to 

discharge all of part of the fine or court costs associated with the offense by performing 

community service.  

  
S.B. 1265 (Taylor) – Juvenile Court Records: would require the custodian of a juvenile record 

or file to redact any personally identifiable information about a victim of the child’s delinquent 

conduct or conduct indicating a need for supervision who was under 18 on the date the conduct 

occurred. 

 



26 
 
 
 

S.B. 1292 (Zaffirini) – Disabled Parking:  would:  (1) authorize a municipal court judge to 

require a defendant who pleads guilty or no contest to an offense for illegally parking in a 

disabled parking space to complete a disabled parking course approved by the city in which the 

alleged offense occurred if the defendant hasn’t completed such a class within the previous year 

and the defendant requests to take the course; (2) require a judge to enter a plea as described in 

(1), above, but defer judgment, and allow the defendant 90 days to take a disabled parking 

course; (3) authorize the court to impose an administrative fee of not more than $10 on a 

defendant requesting to take a course described in (1), above; (4) require the court to remove the 

judgment and dismiss the charge if the defendant completes the class as described in (2), above; 

(5) allow non peace officer individuals who enforce parking laws in a city to file charges 

manually or electronically, and require that the training for such an individual include 

information on laws governing  parking for people with disabilities; and (6) provide that a city 

that collects fines for disabled parking violations may use no more than 40 percent of the fine 

revenue to provide awareness programs and establish an advisory board regarding disabled 

parking and other needs of the disabled.  (Companion bill is H.B. 2857 by M. Martinez.) 

 

S.B. 1310 (Menendez) – Court Cost: would impose a $2 court cost on conviction of any 

misdemeanor to benefit the veterans court program. 

  
S.B. 1505 (Garcia) – Expunction: would provide that records of a person under 17 years of age 

related to a complaint in municipal court may be expunged if the complaint was dismissed under 

specific provisions of the Code of Criminal Procedure or the person was not convicted of another 

offense arising out of the same criminal episode. 

  

S.B. 1506 (Lucio) – Court Cost: would authorize a $75 fee to be assessed upon conviction of 

any offense to pay for the services of a peace officer who has executed or processed an arrest 

warrant, capias, or capias pro fine. (Companion bill is H.B. 1425 by Fletcher.) 

 

Community and Economic Development 

 

H.B. 2772 (Martinez) – Economic Development Corporation: would provide that an 

authorized project for a Type A or Type B economic development corporation includes the 

promotion of new or expanded business enterprises through transportation facilities including 

airports, hangars, railports, rail switching facilities, maintenance and repair facilities, cargo 

facilities, marine ports, inland ports, mass commuting facilities, parking facilities, and related 

infrastructure located on or adjacent to an airport or railport facility.  

 

H.B. 2803 (Pena) – Payday and Auto Title Lending: would: (1) require a payday or auto title 

lender to prominently and conspicuously post at the lender’s place of business a sign containing 

a specific statement regarding how to contact the Office of Consumer Credit Commissioner with 

any concerns or complaints about the lender;  

 

H.B. 2808 (J. White) – Payday and Auto Title Lending: would, among other things: (1) 

provide that a municipal ordinance regulating credit access businesses is not preempted by state 

law; (2) provide that, if a municipal ordinance conflicts with a provision of state law, the more 



27 
 
 
 

stringent regulation controls; (3) require the contract and other documents provided by a credit 

access business to be written wholly in the language in which the contract is negotiated and read 

in their entirety in the language in which the contract is negotiated to any consumer who cannot 

read; (4) prohibit a credit services organization from assisting a consumer in obtaining an 

extension of consumer credit in any form other than in the form of a single-payment payday 

loan, multiple-payment payday loan, single payment auto title loan, or multiple-payment auto 

title loan; (5) require a credit access business to require certain types of documentation to 

establish a consumer’s income for purposes of extending credit; (6) provide that a single-

payment payday loan: (a) may not exceed 20 percent of the consumer’s gross annual income; (b) 

may not be refinanced more than three times, with the amount of each refinanced payment used 

to repay at least 25 percent of the principal amount of the original debt (7) provide that a 

multiple-payment payday loan: (a) may not exceed 20 percent of the consumer’s gross monthly 

income; and (b) may not be payable in more than four installments, with the amount of each 

installment used to repay at least 25 percent of the principal amount of the debt; (8) provide that 

a single-payment auto title loan: (a) may not exceed the lesser of 70 percent of the retail value of 

the motor vehicle securing the debt, or three percent of the consumer’s gross annual income; and 

(b) may not be refinanced more than three times, with the amount of each refinanced payment 

used to repay at least 25 percent of the principal amount of the original debt; (9) provide that a 

multiple-payment auto title loan: (a) may not exceed the lesser 70 percent of the retail value of 

the motor vehicle securing the debt, or three percent of the consumer’s gross annual income; and 

(b) may not be payable in more than four installments, with the amount of each installment used 

to repay at least 25 percent of the principal amount of the debt;  (10) require any refinance of a 

payday or auto title loan to: (a) be authorized by state law; (b) be in the same form as the original 

loan; and (c) meet all requirements applicable to the original loan; and (11) require a credit 

access business to maintain a complete set of records of all loans, and retain the records until the 

third anniversary of the date of the loan.  

 

H.B. 2834 (King) – Economic Development:  would: (1) require a business that is a  

recipient of economic development funds to repay all of the value of any subsidy or incentive if 

the business has a federal immigration conviction for unlawful employment of undocumented 

workers unless the business reasonably relied on an E-Verify program; and (2) prohibit a 

governmental entity, including a city, from awarding an economic development incentive to a 

business that has been convicted and had to repay an incentive for two years after any repayment 

is made. (Companion bill is S.B. 484 by Kolkhorst.) 

 

H.B. 2857 (Martinez) – Disabled Parking Violations:  would:  (1) authorize a municipal court 

judge to require a defendant that pleads guilty or no contest to an offense for illegally parking in 

a disabled parking space to require the defendant to complete disabled parking course approved 

by the city in which the alleged offense occurred if the defendant hasn’t completed such a class 

within the previous year and the defendant requests to take the course; (2) require a judge to 

enter a plea as described in (1), above, but defer judgment, and allow the defendant 90 days to 

take a disabled parking course; (3) authorize the court to impose an administrative fee of not 

more than $10 on a defendant requesting to take a course described in (1), above; (4) provide 

procedures if a defendant does not comply with (2), above, and/or fails to appear to address such 

noncompliance; (5) require the court to remove the judgment and dismiss the charge if the 



28 
 
 
 

defendant completes the class as described in (2), above; (6) allow non peace officer individuals 

in a city that enforce parking laws to file a charge manually or electronically, and require that the 

training for such an individual include information on laws governing  parking for people with 

disabilities; (7) provide that a city that collections fines for disabled parking violations may use 

no more than 40% of the fine revenue to provide awareness programs and establish an advisory 

board regarding disabled parking and other needs of the disabled. (Companion bill is S.B. 1292 

by Zaffirini.) 

 

H.B. 2860 (Bernal) – Fair Housing:  would:  (1) prohibit, under the Texas Fair Housing Act, 

certain actions (such as refusing to sell or rent a dwelling) because of a person’s sexual 

orientation or gender identity or expression; (2) provide that the Texas Fair Housing Act does not 

prohibit: (a) a religious organization from giving preference to persons of the same religion, 

unless membership is restricted because of sex, disability, familial status, sexual orientation, or 

gender identity or expression; or (b) a real property appraiser from considering in an appraisal a 

person’s sexual orientation, or gender identity or expression; and (3) prohibit the Texas 

Workforce Commission from deferring proceedings and referring a complaint under the Texas 

Fair Housing Act  to a city in which alleged discrimination occurred if the complaint alleges 

discrimination based on sexual orientation or gender identity or expression and the city does not 

have laws prohibiting the alleged discrimination.   

 

H.B. 2878 (Márquez) – Rental Assistance Projects:  would authorize an applicant to combine 

residential rental projects into a single project as part of a housing authority’s participation in the 

U.S. Housing and Urban Development’s Rental Assistance Demonstration program if the project 

is related to the conversion of the housing authority’s public housing units and if the applicant 

was created by a city housing authority located in a city that borders Mexico and is situated in a 

county that borders Mexico with a population greater than 800,000.  (Companion bill is S.B. 976 

by J. Rodriguez.) 

 

H.B. 2883 (Simmons) – Special Districts:  would provide that a city that has created a crime 

control and prevention district or a fire control, prevention, and emergency medical services 

district may add territory to the district pursuant to an election called for that purpose. 

 

H.B. 2909 (Springer) – Rental Housing:  would provide that neither a city nor a county 

may not adopt or enforce an ordinance or regulation that prohibits an owner, lessee, sublessee, 

assignee, managing agent, or other person having the right to lease, sublease, or rent a 

housing accommodation from refusing to lease or rent the housing accommodation to a person 

because of the person’s lawful source of income to pay rent, including a federal housing choice 

voucher.  (Companion bill is S.B. 267 by Perry.) 

 

H.B. 2977 (Coleman) – Incorporation:  would, among other things:  (1) require that before a 

community may incorporate as a city, a comprehensive inventory of police, fire, and emergency 

medical services must be prepared and filed with the county clerk before the 60th day before the 

date of the incorporation election; and (2) provide special county and city subdivision regulations 

in:  (a) a county that includes territory located within 50 miles of an international border; or (b) a 

city located in that county if the county doesn’t exercise subdivision authority in the city’s 



29 
 
 
 

extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ) and the county authorizes the city to exercise subdivision 

authority in the city’s ETJ. 

 

H.B. 2991 (Paddie) – Mineral Exploration Regulation:  would:  (1) define “identified marker” 

as a school, regular place of worship, residence, residential neighborhood, public park or other 

specified land use identified by a city from which mineral exploration and development must 

maintain a maximum proximity; (2) require a maximum proximity allowance established by a 

city between mineral exploration and identified markers to be applied uniformly to subsequent 

development of identified markers in relation to all existing mineral exploration activity 

locations; and (3) authorize a property owner or lessee desiring to build or use property within 

the area created by a proximity allowance to petition the city for a waiver which, if granted, must 

be recorded in the county records so as to provide notice to a potential purchaser.  

 

H.B. 2993 (Paddie) – Oil and Gas Development:  would provide that: (1) a setback 

requirement established by a city between mineral exploration and development activities and a 

school, regular place of religious worship, residence, residential neighborhood, public park, or 

similar use must be applied uniformly to subsequent development; (2) a property owner or lessee 

desiring to build or otherwise utilize property within the setback may petition the city for a 

waiver; and (3) approval of a waiver shall essentially change the future setback to be the waiver 

distance. 

 

H.B. 3040 (Martinez) – Economic Development Corporations: would: (1) authorize 

municipal development districts located in certain border cities to fund projects the board finds 

suitable for the development or promotion of new or expanded business enterprises through 

various types of transportation facilities; and (2) authorize Type A and Type B economic 

development corporations to fund projects the board finds suitable for the development or 

promotion of new or expanded business enterprises through various types of transportation 

facilities.  

 

H.B. 3047 (Craddick) – Payday and Auto Title Lending: would, among other things: (1) 

require the consumer credit commissioner to establish and implement a database for the 

compilation of information relating to payday loans; (2) provide that a municipal ordinance 

regulating credit access businesses is not preempted by state law; (3) provide that, if a municipal 

ordinance conflicts with a provision of state law, the more stringent regulation controls; (4) 

require the contract and other documents provided by a credit access business to be written 

wholly in English or the language in which the contract is negotiated, and read in their entirety in 

the language in which the contract is negotiated to any consumer who cannot read; (5) prohibit a 

credit services organization from assisting a consumer in obtaining an extension of consumer 

credit in any form other than in the form of a single-payment payday loan, multiple-payment 

payday loan, single payment auto title loan, or multiple-payment auto title loan; (6) provide that 

the general limitations on payday and auto title loans in the bill apply to any consumer physically 

located in this state at the time the loan is made, regardless of whether the loan was made in 

person in this state; (7) require a credit access business to require certain types of documentation 

to establish a consumer’s income for purposes of extending credit; (8) provide that a single-

payment payday loan: (a) may not exceed 20 percent of the consumer’s gross annual income; (b) 



30 
 
 
 

may not be refinanced more than three times, with the amount of each refinanced payment used 

to repay at least 25 percent of the principal amount of the original debt (9) provide that a 

multiple-payment payday loan: (a) may not exceed 20 percent of the consumer’s gross monthly 

income; and (b) may not be payable in more than four installments, with the amount of each 

installment used to repay at least 25 percent of the principal amount of the debt; (10) provide that 

a single-payment auto title loan: (a) may not exceed the lesser of 70 percent of the retail value of 

the motor vehicle securing the debt, or three percent of the consumer’s gross annual income; and 

(b) may not be refinanced more than three times, with the amount of each refinanced payment 

used to repay at least 25 percent of the principal amount of the original debt; (11) provide that a 

multiple-payment auto title loan: (a) may not exceed the lesser 70 percent of the retail value of 

the motor vehicle securing the debt, or three percent of the consumer’s gross annual income; and 

(b) may not be payable in more than four installments, with the amount of each installment used 

to repay at least 25 percent of the principal amount of the debt; (12) require any refinance of a 

payday or auto title loan to: (a) be authorized by state law; (b) be in the same form as the original 

loan; and (c) meet all requirements applicable to the original loan; and (13) require a credit 

access business to maintain a complete set of records of all loans, and retain the records until the 

third anniversary of the date of the loan.  

 

H.B. 3058 (Giddings) – Payday and Auto Title Lending: would limit the instances in which a 

payday or auto title lender could file or threaten to file a criminal complaint against a consumer.  

 

H.B. 3060 (Anchia) – Building and Standards Commissions:  would provide that, in addition 

to the authority in current law, a panel of a building and standards commission may order action 

to be taken as necessary to remedy, alleviate, remove, or abate, violations of ordinances relating 

to animal care and control or water conservation measures, including water restrictions.  

(Companion bill is S.B. 1552 by West.)   

 

H.B. 3089 (Galindo) – Sprinkler Systems:  would: (1) require a residential high-rise building to 

be equipped with a complete fire protection sprinkler system; (2) require a city to adopt a 

standard for the installation of the system described in (1), above, that complies with the 

National Fire Protection Association 13 Standard for the Installation of Sprinkler Systems 

(NFPA Standard); (3) provide that until the city adopts a standard as required in (2), above, the 

standard is the NFPA Standard; (3) require the owner of a residential high-rise building built 

before September 1, 2015, to:  (a) provide notice to the city of the owner’s intent to comply; and 

(b) comply with the requirement in (2), above, in phases; and (4) provide for enforcement of the 

requirement in (2), above, by injunction and criminal penalty.    

 
H.B. 3065 (Fallon) – Eminent Domain: would provide that, if the amount of damages 
awarded by the special commissioners is at least 10 percent greater than the amount the 
condemnor offered to pay before the proceedings began or if the commissioners’ award is 
appealed and a court awards damages in an amount that is at least 10 percent greater than the 
amount the condemnor offered to pay before the proceedings began, the condemnor shall pay: 
(1) all costs; and (2) any reasonable attorney’s fees and other professional fees incurred by the 
property owner in connection with the eminent domain proceeding. 
 



31 
 
 
 

H.B. 3244 (Burkett) – Sale of Real Property:  would provide that a home-rule city may 

contract with a broker to sell a tract of real property the city owns or holds in trust and has the 

authority to sell. 

 

H.B. 3263 (Guillen) – State Licenses: would provide that: (1) notwithstanding any other state 

law, and unless expressly authorized by state law, the governing body of a city may not adopt or 

enforce any ordinance, rule, or regulation that establishes requirements for, imposes restrictions 

on, or otherwise regulates the business activities of a state licensee within the city or the city’s 

extraterritorial jurisdiction; and (2) a city ordinance, rule, or regulation that violates the bill is 

void and unenforceable. 

 

H.B. 3266 (Guillen) – RV Parks:  would provide that: (1) the Legislature adopts by reference 

NFPA 1194, Standard for Recreational Vehicle Parks and Campgrounds, 2014 Edition in full, 

except for sections 1.1.1 and 1.2; (2) a regulation, charter, or ordinance promulgated by a 

governmental entity of this state may not impose stricter standards on the construction of 

recreational vehicle parks and campgrounds or on the expansion of existing parks; (3) it is the 

intent of the legislature that this bill shall exclusively govern the safety standards imposed on the 

construction or expansion of recreational vehicle parks and campgrounds of this state and shall 

preempt all contrary local ordinances, executive orders, legislation, rules, or regulations adopted 

by the state or any other governmental entity of this State; and (4) any contrary local ordinances, 

executive orders, legislation, rules, or regulations adopted by the state or any other governmental 

entity of this State are void. 

 

H.B. 3299 (D. Miller) – Limited Purpose Annexation:  would provide that a city may not 

enforce an ordinance or rule that limits the number of people who may assemble on property 

located in an area annexed for limited purposes if the ordinance or rule would restrict the number 

of people authorized to assemble on the property to less than what the fire prevention authority 

with jurisdiction over the property has authorized by permit. 

 
H.B. 3339 (Burkett) – Eminent Domain: would provide that, if the amount of damages 
awarded by the special commissioners is at least 10 percent greater than the amount the 
condemnor offered to pay before the proceedings began or if the commissioners’ award is 
appealed and a court awards damages in an amount that is at least 10 percent greater than the 
amount the condemnor offered to pay before the proceedings began, the condemnor shall pay: 
(1) all costs; and (2) any reasonable attorney’s fees and other professional fees incurred by the 
property owner in connection with the eminent domain proceeding. (Companion bill is S.B. 474 
by Kolkhorst.) 
 

H.B. 3340 (Bohac) – Floodplain Administrators:  would:  (1) require a city to designate a 

floodplain administrator; (2) require that a floodplain administrator be accredited by the Texas 

Water Development Board (TWDB) according to standards established by the TWDB; and (3) 

require TWDB to establish mandatory continuing education or training of no less than 6 hours 

per year for accredited floodplain administrators.   

 
H.B. 3598 (Hughes) – Regulatory Takings/Oil and Gas: would make a city regulation that 
takes, damages, destroys, impairs, or prohibits development of mineral interests subject to the 



32 
 
 
 

Private Real Property Rights Preservation Act, which would: (1) waive sovereign immunity to 
suit and liability for a regulatory taking; (2) authorize a private real property owner to bring suit 
to determine whether the governmental action of a city results in a taking; (3) require a city to 
prepare a “takings impact assessment” prior to imposing certain regulations; and (4) require a 
city to post 30-day’s notice of the adoption of most regulation prior to adoption. 
 

H.B. 3599 (C. Turner) – Auto Title Lenders:  would provide that a credit access business (e.g., 

an auto title lender) shall pay to the consumer the amount received by the business from the sale 

of any property securing the extension of consumer credit that exceeds the sum of the 

outstanding indebtedness and unpaid fees owed by the consumer not later than the 14th day after 

the date of the sale. 

 

H.B. 3638 (C. Turner) – Payday Lenders:  would provide that: (1) a credit access business 

(e.g. a payday or auto title lender) shall file an annual report with the Office of Consumer Credit 

Commissioner for each licensed location on a form prescribed by the commissioner that provides 

detailed information relating to the number, type, etc., of extensions of consumer credit during 

the preceding year; (2) all information submitted by a credit access business to the commissioner 

for inclusion in a report under this section is confidential; and (3) the commissioner shall publish 

a statewide consolidated analysis and recapitulation of reports filed under this section that 

includes an analysis of: (a) the 15 largest metropolitan statistical areas (MSA) of this state; 

(b) the five largest counties of this state; and (c) the 10 largest municipalities of this state (Note:  

previous reports included only MSA data). 

 

H.J.R. 113 (Stickland) – Private Schools:  would prohibit an agency of the state government, 

including the legislature, or a political subdivision of this state from regulating the educational 

program of a private school in this state. 

 

H.J.R. 125 (Krause) – Religious Freedom:  would amend the Texas constitution to provide that 

government may not “burden in any way” a person’s free exercise of religion, unless the burden 

is: (1) necessary to further a compelling governmental interest; and (2) the least restrictive means 

of furthering that interest. (Companion bill is H.J.R. 55 by Villalba.) 

 

S.B. 1156 (Hall) – Event Trust Funds: would abolish the Pan American Games Trust Fund, the 

Olympic Games Trust Fund, the Major Events Trust Fund, the Motor Sports Racing Trust Fund, 

and the Events Trust Fund.  

 

S.B. 1220 (Bettencourt) – Tax Increment Financing: would: (1) provide that a city ordinance 

designating a reinvestment zone must provide that the reinvestment zone terminates not later 

than the tenth anniversary of the date on which the ordinance is adopted; (2) provide that the 

term of all or any portion of a reinvestment zone may not be extended beyond the tenth 

anniversary of the date on which the ordinance designating the zone is adopted; (3) prohibit a 

city from designating a reinvestment zone if more than ten percent of the property in the 

proposed zone is used for residential purposes or the total appraised value of taxable real 

property in the proposed zone and in existing reinvestment zones exceeds ten percent of the total 

appraised value of taxable real property in the city and in the industrial districts created by the 

city; (4) prohibit the board of directors of a reinvestment zone from adopting, and a city council 



33 
 
 
 

from approving, and amendment to the project plan if the median appraised value of real 

property located in the zone equals or exceeds the median appraised value of taxable real 

property located outside the boundaries of the zone that is within the designating city’s corporate 

boundaries and extraterritorial jurisdiction; and (5) a city may not authorize tax increment bonds 

and notes unless approved by a majority of voters at an election. 

 

S.B. 1264 (Eltife) – Industrialized  Housing/Buildings: would provide that: (1) industrialized 

housing does not include a residential structure that exceeds four stories or 60 feet in height; 

and (2) an industrialized building includes a permanent commercial structure and a 

commercial structure designed to be transported from one commercial site to another commercial 

site but does not include a commercial structure that exceeds four stories or 60 feet in height. 

(Companion bill is H.B. 1990 by Kuempel.) 

 

S.B. 1320 (Menendez) – Alcohol Permits: would create a new “public consumption” alcoholic 

beverage permit to be administered by the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission and authorize 

various regulations for an establishment holding such a permit.  (Companion bill is H.B. 148 by 

Menendez.) 

 

S.B. 1323 (Menendez) – Payday and Auto Title Lenders:  would provide that the amount of a 

fee paid or to be paid to a credit services organization (e.g., a payday or auto title lender) to assist 

a consumer in transacting, arranging, guaranteeing, or negotiating an extension of credit or to 

obtain for a consumer an extension of credit is considered interest for usury purposes under state 

law. 

 

S.B. 1325 (Menendez) – Texas Military Preparedness Commission:  would, among other 

things: (1) transfer the authority from the Office of the Governor to the Texas Military 

Preparedness Commission to determine projects that enhance military value; (2) increase the 

amount of grant money to eligible local governmental entities from $2 to $5 million; and (3) add 

affordable single family, multifamily, and veteran’s supportive housing as an eligible project to 

an eligible local governmental entity in an amount not to exceed 10 percent of the total 

construction cost of the project or $5 million.    

 

S.B. 1358 (Campbell) – Texas Military Preparedness Commission:  would, among other 

things: (1) transfer the authority from the Office of the Governor to the Texas Military 

Preparedness Commission to determine projects that enhance military value; and (2) increase the 

amount of grant money to eligible local governmental entities from $2 to $5 million. 

 

S.B. 1376 (Lucio) – Natural Disaster Housing Recovery:  would: (1) require the governor to 

designate a state agency to receive and administer federal and state funds appropriated for long-

term natural disaster recovery; (2) authorize a local government, including a city, to develop and 

adopt a local housing recovery plan to provide for the rapid and efficient construction of 

permanent replacement housing following a natural disaster; (3) provide that a local plan may be 

submitted to the Hazard Reduction and Recovery Center at Texas A&M University  for 

certification; (4) require the center to submit a certified local plan to the agency and, if accepted, 

require the agency to submit the local plan to the governor; and (5) allow a plan that is approved 



34 
 
 
 

by the governor to be implemented over a four-year period without further approval should a 

natural disaster occur. 

 

S.B. 1389  (Lucio) – Border Commerce: would, among other things, create the Texas Good 

Neighbor Committee consisting of the mayor from every city bordering Mexico tasked with 

advising the border commerce coordinator on security, trade, and transportation related issues.   

 

S.B. 1408 (Lucio) – Community Development Grant Program:  would:  (1) require the Texas 

Department of Agriculture to, subject to the availability of funds, create a community 

development matching grant to assist in financing various activities including trade-related 

initiatives, renewable energy projects, water or wastewater infrastructure projects, and economic 

development projects; and (2) provide that a city would be eligible for a matching grant 

described in (1), above, if the city is in a nonentitlement area as defined under the federal 

community development block grant nonentitlement program and in good standing with the 

department and HUD. 

 

S.B. 1552 (West) – Building and Standards Commissions:  this bill is identical to H.B. 3060, 

above.   

 

Personnel 

 

H.B. 12 (Bonnen) – Peace Officer Applicants: would: (1) require that a police department, 

before hiring a police officer, review the person’s previous law enforcement records; (2) allow 

an administrative penalty if review is not done pursuant to this section; and (3) make the 

requirement that each department review records of law enforcement applicants supersede the 

civil service law prohibiting a city to release the confidential personnel files of police officers.  

 

H.B. 2771 (Martinez) – Workers’ Compensation: would expand the definition of course and 

scope of employment for workers’ compensation purposes to include the time a firefighter or 

emergency medical personnel is traveling to and from an emergency. 

 

H.B. 2955 (Klick) – Pension Systems: would, among other things: (1) repeal various city fire, 

police, and employee pensions; and (2) require that each city affected by the repeal to renegotiate 

its pension system benefits, policies, and procedures with its employees and retirees. 

 

H.B. 3037 (Longoria) – Peace Officer Applicants: Identical to H.B. 12, above.   

 

H.B. 3053 (Fletcher) – Public Safety Complaints:  would: (1) require written complaints 

against fire and police officers to include the alleged acts of misconduct; (2) require internal 

written complaints to identify the policy, rule, or law allegedly violated; (3) prohibit a city from 

requiring a written or oral statement from the employee about whom the complaint is about until 

at least 24 hours after the employee receives the complaint; (4) prohibit a city from acting on a 

written complaint until the employee has had a chance to respond to the allegations; (5) waive 

governmental immunity for actions under these provisions; (6) give an employee the right to 

appeal a termination based on a written complaint to: (a) the governing body of the city; or (b) an 



35 
 
 
 

arbitrator if the city has adopted a procedure for appealing to an arbitrator; (7) require that a city 

allow an employee to have an attorney at a termination appeal hearing; and (8) require the city to 

reinstate the employee if the procedures of this chapter are not followed.   

 

H.B. 3100 (Lozano) – TMRS:  would, in relation to an employee returning to work with a Texas 

Municipal Retirement City, add accumulated interest to the monthly payment of a suspended 

annuity to be paid upon termination with the reemploying city. 

 

H.B. 3182 (Fallon) – Public Retirement Benefits: would limit the amount of retirement 

benefits any member of a public retirement system may receive, including from TMRS, to an 

amount no larger than certain military salaries, regardless of the amount in the account or the 

years of service of the public official.   

 

H.B. 3211 (P. King) – Peace Officer Training:  would shorten the amount of time an officer 

appointed to a supervisory position, or who will be appointed to a supervisory position, has to 

complete supervisor training.  

 

H.B. 3212 (P. King) – ID Cards: would require a city to provide an identification card to certain 

retired peace officers.  

 

H.B. 3226 (Coleman) – Employment Discrimination: would: (1) make it an unlawful 

employment practice to engage in or allow an employee to engage in conduct considered abusive 

in the workplace; (2) make an employer vicariously liable for the abusive conduct of its 

employees; (3) make each employee liable for his or her own abusive conduct; (4) provide a 

defense to a claim of abusive conduct for an employer who took reasonable care to prevent and 

correct abusive conduct; and (5) create a private cause of action for abusive conduct. 

 

H.B. 3317 (Sanford) – Peace Officer Training:  would require each peace officer to take a 

training and education program on autism awareness every two years.  

 

H.B. 3370 (Gutierrez) – Minimum Wage:  would: (1) raise the minimum wage to $10 or the 

federal minimum wage, whichever is higher; and (2) repeal the provision that prohibits a city 

from creating a higher minimum wage.  

 

H.B. 3496 (Schofield) – Concealed Handguns:  would provide that: (1) a first responder 

includes commission law enforcement personnel, paid and volunteer firefighters, and paid and 

volunteer emergency services personnel; (2) a first responder is eligible for an on-duty first 

responder designation on the first responder’s license to carry a concealed handgun if the first 

responder: (a) submits certain information to the Department of Public Safety; and (b) completes 

a training course, including field demonstrations, about handling and using handguns while on 

duty and in stressful situations; (3) a governmental entity that employs or otherwise supervises 

first responders may not adopt a rule or regulation that prohibits a first responder who holds a 

license bearing an on-duty  first responder designation from carrying a concealed handgun while 

on duty; (4) except in cases of gross negligence, a governmental entity that employs or otherwise 

supervises first responders is not liable in a civil action for personal injury, death, property 



36 
 
 
 

damage, or any other damages resulting from or arising out of an occurrence involving a 

handgun that the entity is required to allow a first responder to carry; and (5) a first responder 

with an on-duty first responder designation can carry his concealed handgun virtually anywhere 

while on duty. 

 

H.B. 4080 (Smithee):  TMRS:  would: (1) allow a participating Texas Municipal Retirement 

System (TMRS) city to adopt a non-retroactive flat rate cost of living adjustment (COLA); (2) to 

comply with federal law applicable to qualified plans, provide that any increased payment to an 

annuitant resulting from such a COLA adopted by a city would be limited to the cumulative 

increase the annuitant would have been entitled to receive if the 70 percent of CPI limit under 

TMRS’s existing law had been applied to the annuity; and (3) require that, if a city adopts an 

ordinance to either discontinue an annually repeating COLA or to reduce an annually repeating 

COLA, the city must give written notice to members and annuitants at least 60 days prior to the 

effective date of the change adopted in the ordinance. (Companion bill is S.B. 1381 by Estes.) 

 

S.B. 1151 (Hall) – Unions:  would: (1) prohibit a city from entering into a consultation 

agreement where one or more groups are designated as agents for purpose of consulting with or 

representing city employees on employment issues; and (2) prohibit a city from prohibiting an 

employee or group of employees from seeking advice or counsel on employment matters.   

 

S.B. 1153 (Hall) – Unions: would prohibit an employer, including a city, from releasing the 

name, job classification, salary, telephone number, and certain other information to a labor 

union, other than to a labor union that is the exclusive representative of the employee.  

 

S.B. 1273 (West) – Employee Leave: would: (1) require an employer, including a city, to allow 

an employee to take up to three days unpaid leave for each domestic violence incident; (2) 

require that the employee provide certain notices to the employer for the leave; and (3) allow the 

city to require the employee to use earned paid leave time when taking this leave.  

 

S.B. 1381 (Estes):  Texas Municipal Retirement System:  this bill is identical to H.B. 4080, 

above 

 

Public Safety 

 

H.B. 2770 (Martinez) – Infection Control:  would: (1) require each entity with first responders, 

including a city, to designate an infection control officer and an alternate infection control 

officer; (2) require each infection control officer to: (a) receive notification of potential 

exposures to infectious diseases; (b) notify appropriate health care providers and first responders 

about potential exposures; (c) act as liaison between the potentially exposed first responders and 

the city; (d) investigate and evaluate exposure incidents; and (e) monitor follow-up treatment of 

affected first responders; (3) require hospitals to inform designated infection control officers of 

possible infectious disease exposures. (Companion bill is S.B. 1574 by Uresti.) 

 

H.B. 2793 (Huberty) – Juvenile Offenses: would limit the times and places an peace officer 

can take a juvenile if the juvenile’s only offense is running away from home.  



37 
 
 
 

 

H.B. 2827 (Phillips) – Homeland Security:  would expand the definition of homeland security 

activity for emergency management purposes to include fire or medical emergencies that are 

beyond a local jurisdiction’s capabilities.  

 

H.B. 2828 (Phillips) – Employment Background Checks: would allow a city to obtain the 

Texas Department of Public Safety criminal history record information for: (1) applicants for 

employment; (2) employees; (3) city vendor’s applicants for employment or employees; (4) city 

volunteers; and (5) city volunteer applicants.   

 

H.B. 2867 (Rinaldi) – Automatic License Plate Readers: would allow a law enforcement 

agency to use images produced from an automatic license plate reader for investigating a 

criminal offense or a report of a missing person. 

 

H.B. 2870 (Alonzo) – Wildland Firefighting: would prohibit a city employee from engaging in 

a wildland firefighting duty, including a prescribed burn, unless the person is: (1) a permanent 

full-time fire department employee; or (2) is acting as a member of a volunteer fire department at 

the time.  

 

H.B. 2907 (Canales) – Intoxication Offenses: would: (1) require the use of an ignition interlock 

device on conviction or placement on deferred adjudication for certain intoxication offenses; and 

(2) authorize ethyl alcohol monitoring as a condition of community supervision for certain 

intoxication offenses. 

 

H.B. 2911 (Stephenson) – Emergency Services: would provide for the creation of a dedicated 

9-1-1 services fee account in the state treasuring to which existing fees are to be deposited, and 

would create a grant program to assist with emergency services that would be available to 

councils of governments and other entities. 

 

H.B 2918 (Villalba) – Interference with Peace Officer:  would:  (1) define an interruption, 

disruption, impediment, or interference that occurs while a peace officer is performing a duty or 

exercising authority to include a person filming, recording, photographing, or documenting the 

officer within 25 feet, or 100 feet if the person is carrying a handgun (as authorized by law); and 

(2) provide a defense to prosecution for a violation of (1), above, if the person is a news media 

employee or employed by an organization or entity engaged in law enforcement activities.  

(Companion bill is S.B. 1137 by Creighton.) 

 

H.B. 2945 (Alonzo) – Juvenile Case Manager Fund: would allow the juvenile case manager to 

direct funds leftover after the juvenile case manager’s salary and expenses are paid to be used for 

educational programs, including juvenile alcohol and substance abuse programs. 

 

H.B. 3020 (Guerra) – Passing a School Bus: would: (1) increase the minimum penalty for 

passing a school bus from $500 to $750; and (2) require a judge to suspend the driver’s license of 

a person convicted of a second or subsequent offense. 

 



38 
 
 
 

H.B. 3165 (Bohac) – Warrants:  would: (1) allow a district judge to issue a warrant for the use 

of a cell site simulator device to obtain cell site information from a cell phone or other wireless 

communications device upon application of a peace officer; (2) provide certain circumstances in 

which a peace officer may obtain the information described in (2), above, without a warrant; (3) 

prohibit a peace officer from obtaining or using cell site information to assist in an investigation 

by another state or the federal government without: (a) the consent of the owner or possessor of 

the phone or device; or (b) a warrant, unless the law otherwise allows it; (4) prohibit the state 

from withholding any document, item, or information that was obtained as a result of a warrant 

for cell site information on a claim of confidentiality arising from a contract with any party; (5) 

add to the list of “super public” information in the Public Information Act any information 

regarding the purchase, sale, receipt, possession, or use of investigatory equipment by local law 

enforcement agency, regardless of whether the information is included in a contract in which one 

of the parties is the state or a political subdivision of the state; and (6) provide a criminal penalty 

and certain defenses for use of a cell site simulator device. 

 

H.B. 3171 (Simpson) – Asset Forfeiture:  would repeal civil asset forfeiture provisions and 

establish criminal asset forfeiture in this state.  In addition, the bill would, among other things:  

(1) authorize a convicting court to order a person convicted of violating a law subject to 

forfeiture to forfeit certain property, but only after the state establishes by clear and convincing 

evidence that the requirements for forfeiture are met or enters into a court-approved plea 

agreement for the forfeiture of the property; (2) provide that contraband is not subject to 

forfeiture, but must be disposed in accordance with state law; (3) establish procedures for the 

seizure of real and personal property and for the defendant to challenge the seizure; (4) provide 

that a forfeiture proceeding must be held following the trial of the related alleged offense; (5)  

require that the comptroller dispose of all forfeited and abandoned property and deposit the 

money in the general revenue fund, except that the court may order a portion of the proceeds to 

be used to pay for the expenses for the seizure, storage and maintenance or custody of the items; 

(6) prohibit a law enforcement agency from: (a) retaining any forfeited or abandoned property; or 

(b) selling any forfeited or abandoned property directly or indirectly to an employee, a person 

related to an employee, or another law enforcement agency; (7) require law enforcement 

agencies to report certain forfeiture information to the Department of Public Safety; (8) require a 

law enforcement agency to return property under certain circumstances and make the agency 

responsible for any damage, storage fees, and related costs applicable to the property; and (9) 

prohibit the transfer of seized property to the federal government, with some exceptions.  

(Companion bill is S.B. 1863 by Burton.) 

 

H.B. 3184 (McClendon) – Victim-Offender Mediation Program: would: (1) allow a city 

council to establish a pretrial victim-offender mediation program for persons charged with a 

misdemeanor or state jail felony offense against property; (2) allow a city council that establishes 

a program to adopt administrative and local rules of procedure for the program; and (3) authorize 

a $500 fee for the program and $15 court cost paid to the municipal treasury for the purpose of 

funding the program. 

 



39 
 
 
 

H.B. 3273 (E. Rodriguez) – EMS Tuition: would exempt from payment of tuition any student 

who is: (1) enrolled in certain medical classes related to emergency medical services; and (2) is 

currently an active member of a city EMS provider.   

 

H.B. 3294 (Burkett) – Texas Workforce Commission: would, among other things, repeal the 

Texas Workforce Commission’s authorization to review fire department exams for 

discrimination. 

 

H.B. 3312 (Geren) – Intoxication Offenses:  would establish various criteria regarding a 

person’s request for an additional specimen of the person’s blood to be taken on arrest for certain 

intoxication offenses, including that – if a peace officer or another person acting on behalf of the 

state interferes with a person’s request for an independent blood test – any evidence relating to 

the analysis of a specimen taken at the request of the peace officer is not admissible as evidence 

in a trial of the offense for which the specimen was taken. 

 

H.B. 3326 (S. Thompson) – Offense Punishments:  would decrease the punishment for certain 

misdemeanor and felony offenses, including:  possession of one ounce or less of marihuana, 

possession of less than one gram of a substance in Penalty Group 1, criminal mischief, graffiti, 

burglary, theft, theft of service, forgery, credit or debit card abuse, fraudulent use or possession 

of identifying information, prostitution, and use of a customer’s debit or credit card number 

without the customer’s consent. 

 

H.B. 3358 (Lucio) – Passenger Transportation Services: would permit a city by ordinance to 

license, control, and otherwise regulate each private passenger vehicle that provides passenger 

transportation services for compensation. (Companion bill is S.B. 1617 by Lucio.) 

 

H.B. 3415 (Canales) – Asset Forfeiture:  would require a law enforcement agency that seizes 

property to reimburse the owner or interest holder for court costs, storage fees, and reasonable 

attorney’s fees if a court determines the property is not subject to forfeiture, and require the 

agency to use certain funds received from forfeited property to pay the owner or interest holder. 

 

H.B. 3557 (S. Turner) – Asset Forfeiture:  would require that the audit form prepared by the 

attorney general regarding asset forfeiture solicit a detailed report that itemizes each seizure of 

proceeds or property, including the value and description of the property. 

 
H.B. 3559 (Fallon) – Open Carry: would provide that a concealed handgun licensee may carry 
a concealed handgun into a meeting of a governmental body pursuant to written regulations or 
authorization of the body. 
 

H.B. 3582 (S. Turner) – Genetic Material:  would:  (1) establish a person’s property right in 

certain genetic information and limit the collection, use, retention, and disclosure of genetic 

information; (2) except from the limitations described in (1), above, genetic information gathered 

for certain purposes including a law enforcement or emergency medical treatment purpose, but 

still requiring the information be kept confidential; and (3) prohibit an employer from obtaining 

an individuals’ genetic information without the individual’s informed consent.  



40 
 
 
 

 

S.B. 1129 (Zaffirini) – Mental Illness:  would provide that, when transporting a committed 

patient or a patient detained at a designated mental health facility, the patient may be restrained 

only during the apprehension, detention, or transportation of the patient, and the method of 

restraint must permit the patient to sit in an upright position without undue difficulty (unless the 

patient is being transported by ambulance).  

 

S.B. 1173 (Nichols) – Commercial Driver’s Licenses: would: (1) enact provisions related to a 

commercial learner’s permit and non-domiciled commercial learner’s permit; (2) provide a 

defense to the offense of driving a commercial motor vehicle without a license if the person 

charged can produce in court a commercial learner’s permit or driver’s license; (3) allow a court 

to assess a defendant an administrative fee of $10 if a charge is dismissed because of the defense; 

and (4) create the Class C misdemeanor of generating, sending, or reading a text message while 

driving a commercial motor vehicle. (Companion bill is H.B. 2714 by Phillips.) 

 

S.B. 1197 (Eltife) – Fire Investigation:  would expand the authority of the state fire marshal to 

investigate fires and inspect property where damaging or injurious fires have occurred.  

 

S.B. 1223 (Bettencourt) – Communication Interception:  would:  (1) define “interception” to 

mean the acquisition of the contents of a communication without the consent of all parties 

(current law requires the consent of one party); (2) provide that it is an affirmative defense to 

prosecution for an offense of unlawful communication interception that:  (a) a person alleges that 

the communication is of an emergency nature; conveys a threat or makes other unlawful requests 

or demands; (b) the person is an employee of a communication common carrier requested to 

intercept for the sole purpose of tracing the origin of the communication, and the recipient 

alleges the communication is obscene, harassing, threatening, occurs anonymously, repeatedly, 

or at an inconvenient hour; or (c) all parties consent to the communication; and (3) require that a 

person intercepting a communication under (2)(b), above, notify local police within 48 hours 

after the interception. 

 

S.B. 1242 (Rodriguez) – Scrap Tires: would: (1) require a retail seller to contract for the 

transportation of scrap tires only with a licensed scrap tire transporter; (2) require an individual 

who stores scrap tires to store the scrap tires in a fully enclosed area or container that must be 

made secure by locking; (3) provide a civil penalty for a retail seller who fails to properly 

dispose of scrap tires; and (4) create a criminal offense for a person that recklessly fails to 

properly dispose of scrap tires. (Companion bill is H.B. 3795 by Raymond.) 

  

S.B. 1252 (Hall) – Border Security Compact: would create an interstate border security 

compact, which would: (1) prosecute illegal activity of undocumented individuals regardless of 

regulations prohibiting or limiting such conduct issued by the federal government; (2) create a 

dedicated border security force; and (3) create enforceable laws that: (a) have the same status as 

a state statute; and (b) preempt other state and federal law, but not the Texas Constitution.  

 

S.B. 1286 (Hall) – License Plate Readers:  would:  (1) authorize a law enforcement agency to 

use an automatic license plate reader; (2) allow images captured from an automatic license plate 



41 
 
 
 

reader to be used only for investigating a criminal offense and investigating a report of a missing 

person; and (3) require images and data produced from an automatic license plate reader to be 

destroyed no later than the 7th day after collection, unless used as evidence in a criminal 

investigation or prosecution.  (Companion bills are H.B. 2744 by Capriglione and H.B. 2867 by 

Rinaldi.) 

 

S.B. 1287 (Hinojosa) – Forensic Analyst Licenses: would: (1) require forensic analysts that 

perform forensic analysis on behalf of crime labs be licensed by the Texas Forensic Science 

Commission; and (2) create an advisory committee to the Texas Forensic Science Commission, 

consisting of representation from municipal crime laboratories. 

 

S.B. 1340 (Huffines) – Photographic Traffic Enforcement:  would prohibit a local authority 

from enforcing a traffic law only by photographic means or pursuing civil enforcement based 

only on evidence obtained through photographic means.  (Companion bill is H.B. 3817 by 

Elkins.) 

 

S.B. 1398 (Hall) – Electromagnetic Threats:  would create a technological hazards unit of the 

Division of Emergency Management which would: (1) plan, prepare, and educate others for the 

purposes of emergencies related to electromagnetic, geomagnetic, terrorist, and cyber-attack 

threats; and (2) implement the emergency plan created in order to protect critical infrastructure 

and utility facilities.    

 

S.B. 1416 (Ellis) – Unprotected Road Users: would: (1) require the operator of a motor vehicle 

passing an unprotected road user (e.g., pedestrian, utility worker, bicyclist, or motorcyclist) to 

vacate the lane in which the user is located if the highway has two or more marked lanes or to 

pass the user at a safe distance; (2) require the operator of a motor vehicle that is making a turn at 

an intersection to yield the right-of-way to an unprotected roader user; (3) prohibit the operator 

of a motor vehicle from overtaking an unprotected road user and turning in front of the user 

unless the operator is clear of the user; (4) prohibit the operator of a motor vehicle from 

maneuvering the vehicle in a manner that intimidates, harasses, or threatens an unprotected road 

user; (5) provide that a violation of (1)-(4), above, is a misdemeanor offense; and (6) provide that 

it is a defense to prosecution for (1)-(4), above, that the unprotected road user was acting in 

violation of the law. (Companion bill is H.B. 2459 by M. Martinez.) 

 

S.B. 1417 (Ellis) – Marijuana: would make possession of less than one ounce of marijuana a 

civil offense; and would also make the identity of a person cited or found liable for a civil 

marijuana penalty confidential under the Public Information Act.  (Companion bill is H.B. 507 

by Moody.) 

 

S.B. 1464 (Lucio) – Organized Crime: would require the office of the attorney general to 

establish an organized crime and criminal activity division to assist local law enforcement 

agencies in investigating and prosecuting trafficking of persons and related crimes. 

  



42 
 
 
 

S.B. 1465 (Watson) – Disaster Declaration: would allow the governor to declare a limited-

purpose disaster invoking only the authority to suspend deadlines and state regulations on an 

affected city including budget or tax deadlines.   

 

S.B. 1498 (Lucio) – Civil Service: would provide that a co-worker of a civil service fire fighter 

or peace officer may work in place of that person any time such a fire fighter or peace officer is 

using the temporary disability provisions of the state civil service act, rather than solely when the 

officer or fire fighter meets the definition of “injured.” (Companion bill is H.B. 1790 by 

Marquez.) 

 

S.B. 1529 (Burton) – Police Departments:  would: (1) require a city to receive a law 

enforcement agency number from the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement before it may 

begin a police department; and (2) allow the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement to suspend 

the operations of a police department if the city or police department: (a) cannot show an 

ongoing need for the department; (b)  does not maintain adequate funding for department; (c) 

does not maintain or provide adequate physical resources for officers of the department; (d) does 

not maintain or provide adequate physical facilities for the police department, including an 

adequate evidence room, dispatch area, and public area; (e) does not maintain or enforce 

adequate law    enforcement policies for the police department, including policies on: (i) use of 

force; (ii) vehicle pursuit; (iii) professional conduct of officers; (iv) domestic abuse protocols; (v)  

response to missing persons; (vi)  supervision of part-time officers; and (vi)  impartial policing; 

(f) does not have an effective administrative structure for the police department; (g) does not 

maintain adequate liability insurance for the police department; or (h) does not meet another 

standard or requirement the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement implements by rule. 

 

S.B. 1537 (Burton) – Smoking Bans: would prohibit a city from enforcing an ordinance 

prohibiting smoking on the premises of a business that allows smoking and derives 20 percent of 

its revenue from the sale of cigars or tobacco products. 

  
S.B. 1555 (Eltife) – Transportation Network Companies: would require a person operating a 

transportation network company to obtain and maintain a license issued by the Texas 

Department of Licensing and Regulation. 

 

S.B. 1565 (Burton) – Asset Forfeiture Hearings:  would:  (1) provide that, on final conviction 

of an offense giving rise to a forfeiture, a court may order the forfeiture of the property, such 

order to be executed on the date the conviction is final and all appeals are exhausted or the date a 

guilty plea is entered, as applicable; (2) require a court to dismiss a forfeiture proceeding on 

proof of a dismissal or acquittal of an underlying offense giving rise to the forfeiture; and (3) 

repeal various provisions regarding a forfeiture hearing, including:  (a) the requirement that all 

parties comply with the rules of pleading as required in civil suits; (b) the requirement that all 

cases proceed to trial in the same manner as in other civil cases; (c) that the state has the burden 

of proving by a preponderance of the evidence that property is subject to forfeiture; (d) that the 

clerk of the court is entitled to court costs in certain forfeiture proceedings; and (e) the location 

of a forfeiture proceeding when property is seized at a federal checkpoint. 

 



43 
 
 
 

S.B. 1574 (Uresti) – Infection Control:  this bill is identical to H.B. 2770, above. 

 

S.B. 1583 (V. Taylor) – Synthetic Drugs:  would classify synthetic cannabinoid or cathinone as 

a Schedule I controlled substance under the Texas Controlled Substances Act. 

 

S.B. 1617 (Lucio) – Passenger Transportation Services: this bill is identical to H.B. 3358, 

above. 

 

Transportation 

 

H.B. 2779 (Elkins) – Red Light Cameras: would prohibit a city that is using a red light camera 

from imposing a civil penalty on the owner of a motor vehicle who runs a red light to turn right 

at an intersection. 

 

H.B. 2781 (Elkins) – Red Light Cameras: would: (1) prohibit the issuance of criminal or civil 

charges or fines based on an image captured using a red light camera; (2) require the city to pay  

all the costs incurred by a motor vehicle owner, including attorneys fees, if a person is 

incorrectly charged with running a red light based on red light camera evidence; (3) repeal the 

trauma account associated with red light camera fees; (4) repeal the statutes allowing red light 

camera traffic enforcement; and (5) allow a city to continue to use red light cameras if the city 

has a contract with a vendor until the expiration of the contract.  

 

H.B. 2975 (Martinez) – Speed Limits: would: (1) transfer authority over the setting of speed 

limits from the Texas Transportation Commission to the Texas Department of Transportation; 

(2) repeal the provision that requires a city or other governmental entity to hold a hearing 

regarding speed limits in front of schools; and (3) lower the speed limits for school busses.  

 

H.B. 3103 (Murphy) – Commercial Utility Vehicles: would allow a commercial utility vehicle 

with certain equipment to drive on any street that has a posted speed limit of 35 miles per hour or 

less. 

 

S.B. 1167 (Ellis) – Self-Driven Vehicles:  would allow autonomous, self-driven motor vehicles 

on state highways where: (1) the vehicles have certain systems and equipment; (2) the operator: 

(a) has an antonomous motor vehicle designation on her drivers license; and (b) is an employee, 

contractor, or designee of certain state agencies or an employee of the manufacturer; and (3) the 

vehicle is insured as required by state law.   

 

S.B. 1318 (Menéndez) – Bus Stops:  would authorize a city to: (1) enact regulations prohibiting 

the possession of an open container or consumption of an alcoholic beverage on a public street, 

alley, or sidewalk within 300 feet of the property line of the entry or exit from a public 

transportation passenger vehicle (e.g., bus stop); and (2) suspend regulations adopted under (1), 

above, for a special event in the city.  (Companion bill is H.B. 143 by Menéndez.) 

 

Utilities and Environment 

 



44 
 
 
 

H.B. 40 (Darby) – Oil and Gas Preemption:  would completely eliminate city authority to 

regulate oil and gas development by providing that: (1) an oil and gas operation is subject to the 

exclusive jurisdiction of the state; (2) the authority of a city or other political subdivision to 

regulate an oil and gas operation is expressly preempted, except that a city is authorized to enact, 

amend, or enforce an ordinance or other measure that regulates only surface activity that is 

incident to an oil and gas operation, is commercially reasonable, does not effectively prohibit an 

oil and gas operation, and is not otherwise preempted by state or federal law; and (3) except as to 

the authority recognized in (2), above, a city or other political subdivision may not enact or 

enforce an ordinance or other measure, or an amendment or revision of an existing ordinance or 

other measure, that bans, limits, or otherwise regulates an oil and gas operation within its 

boundaries or extraterritorial jurisdiction.  (Note:  make no mistake, and contrary to industry 

claims, the provisions of this bill would give an oil and gas developer carte blanche to engage in 

exploration and drilling essentially anywhere in a city.)(Companion bill is S.B. 1165 by Fraser.) 

 

H.B. 200 (Keffer) – Groundwater Conservation Districts: would: (1) allow an affected person 

to file a petition with the Texas Water Development Board requesting that the board contract 

with the State Office of Administrative Hearings to conduct a contested case hearing on a 

groundwater conservation district’s approval of a desired future condition; and (2) allow an 

applicant for a permit that was denied to file a petition with the board to request an appeal of the 

action by the groundwater conservation district. 

 

H.B. 1939 (Rinaldi) – Plastic Bags:  would provide that: (1) a business that sells an item to a 

customer may provide to the customer at the point of sale a bag or other container made from 

any material; (2) an ordinance or regulation adopted by a city purporting to restrict or prohibit a 

business from, require a business to charge a customer for, or tax or impose penalties on a 

business for providing to, a customer at the point of sale a bag or other container made from any 

material is invalid and has no effect; (3) a city may neither prohibit or restrict, for solid waste 

management purposes, the sale or use of a container or package, including a bag provided by a 

business to a customer, in a manner not authorized by state law nor assess a fee or deposit on the 

sale or use of a container or package, including a bag provided by a business to a customer; (4) a 

city may enact a zoning ordinance, except that the ordinance may not prohibit, restrict, or assess 

a fee or deposit on the use or provision by a business of a bag to a customer at the point of sale; 

and (5) beginning September 1, 2015, a city may not enforce any ordinance or regulation 

adopted before that date that prohibits or restricts a business from providing to a customer at the 

point of sale a bag or other container made from any material.  (Companion bill is S.B. 1550 by 

Hall.) 

 

H.B. 2767 (Keffer) – Groundwater Conservation Districts: would: (1) subject directors of 

groundwater conservation districts to chapter 176 of the Local Government Code (conflicts 

disclosure); and (2) provide a procedure for an affected person to file a petition requesting an 

inquiry of a groundwater conservation district with the Texas Commission on Environmental 

Quality. 

  

H.B. 2852 (Nevarez) – Water Rates: would: (1) require that a city utility that provides water or 

sewer service to a public school district charge the district the lowest rates the utility charges 



45 
 
 
 

commercial businesses or nonprofit organizations that receive water or sewer service; (2) allow a 

public school district to appeal the water rates charged to the district by a city by filing a petition 

with the Public Utility Commission; (3) place the burden of proof on the city to establish that the 

rates are just and reasonable; and (4) require a city to refund the public school district money 

collected from a rate in excess of the rate the Public Utility Commission establishes at a hearing 

on the petition. 

 

H.B. 2855 (Darby) – Oil and Gas Preemption:  would provide that :  (1) a political 

subdivision may not adopt or enforce an order, ordinance, or similar measure that prohibits or 

has the effect of prohibiting an operation under the jurisdiction of the Railroad Commission; (2) 

the commission has exclusive jurisdiction to determine whether the adoption or enforcement by a 

political subdivision of an order, ordinance, or similar measure prohibits or has the effect of 

prohibiting an operation under its jurisdiction; (3) a person affected by the adoption or 

enforcement by a political subdivision of an order, ordinance, or similar measure may submit to 

the commission a request that the commission make a determination described by (1), above; (4) 

the person and the political subdivision shall share equally the costs incurred by the commission 

in connection with making the determination; and (5) a commission determination is not 

appealable. 

 

H.B. 2871 (Allen) – Solid Waste Permits: would require a solid waste facility permit 

application to contain a certification from the applicant that the applicant mailed an explanation 

of the site’s proposed operations and a questionnaire seeking community comments to each 

resident living one mile or less from the site and each community organization, nonprofit 

organization, or civic club located two miles or less from the site. 

 

H.B. 2988 (Keffer) – Gas Rate Cases:  would provide that a rule adopted by the Railroad 

Commission on or after January 1, 2014, and before September 1, 2015, that relates to the 

commission’s ratemaking proceedings, including a rule relating to discovery limitations, 

alignment of parties, reimbursement of a city’s reasonable cost of participating in ratemaking 

proceedings, or collection of rate case expenses from ratepayers of gas utilities, is null and void.  

(Note:  this bill would overrule recent Railroad Commission rules that would erode municipal 

participation in gas rate cases.) 

 

H.B. 2892 (Murr) – Navigable Streams: would allow the Texas Commission on Environmental 

Quality, on its own or at the request of another governmental entity, to designate a water course 

as a navigable stream. 

  

H.B. 2989 (Elkins) – Materials Database: would require the Texas Commission on 

Environmental Quality to create and maintain on a publicly accessible internet website, a 

database of information about the testing and validation of materials and products used in the 

construction of wastewater projects. 

 

H.B. 3001 (Guillen) – Hydraulic Fracturing:  would require an operator of a well on which a 

hydraulic fracturing treatment is performed to, in addition to numerous items under current law, 

disclose the source, volume, specific composition, and disposition of all water associated with 



46 
 
 
 

the well, including the following information with respect to the water used as a base fluid for 

the well: (1) a statement of whether the water was produced from a well, was acquired from a 

water supplier, or was diverted from a surface water body; and (2) the composition of the water, 

including the total dissolved solids and a description of any major or minor cations and anions 

contained in the water. 

 

H.B. 3044 (Dale) – Pipeline Preemption:  would provide that: (1) the rules and standards 

promulgated and adopted by the Railroad Commission pursuant to its jurisdiction under any 

statute or law preempt and supersede any ordinance, order, or rule adopted by a political 

subdivision of this state relating to any aspect, facility or phase of the  pipeline industry; and (2) 

a political subdivision may petition the commission for permission to promulgate more 

restrictive rules and standards related to conditions for mapping, inventorying, locating, or 

relocating pipelines over, under, along or across a public street, alley or other public property in 

the boundaries of the city. 

 

H.B. 3069 (E. Rodriguez) – Clean Power Plant Rule:  would, among other things, provide 

that: (1) the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) is the primary authority 

responsible for ensuring that this state complies with and implements any federal Clean Power 

Plant rule; (2) the TCEQ shall, as necessary, submit to the United State Environmental Protection 

Agency a state plan or a federal plan implemented that the TCEQ has accepted; and (3) the 

TCEQ and the Public Utility Commission shall develop and adopt a memorandum of 

understanding as necessary to clarify or provide for their respective duties, responsibilities, or 

functions on any matter that relates to the Clean Power Plant rule and is not expressly assigned to 

one or the other.  (Companion bill is S.B. 1954 by Hinojosa.) 

 

H.B. 3084 (Capriglione) – Electric Rate Cases:  would provide that an electric utility that 

recovers its reasonable costs of reimbursing a city’s expenses may recover the costs only on a 

uniform, system-wide basis.  (Companion bill is S.B. 1271 by West.) 

 

H.B. 3088 (Alvarado) – Environmental Justice Communities: would: (1) require a person 

applying for a permit for a new affecting facility or the expansion of an affecting facility to 

submit to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality a report stating whether the facility 

is to be located in an environmental justice community; (2) require a facility in an environmental 

justice community to consult with the mayor in the city in which the facility is to be located; (3) 

require a permit applicant to publish notice of and hold a public hearing to provide information 

on the potential environmental impacts of the facility; and (4) allow a city and an owner or 

developer of an affecting facility to enter into a community environmental benefit agreement. 

(Companion bill is S.B. 253 by Ellis.)    

 

H.B. 3161 (Cyrier) – Groundwater Conservation District Permits: would: (1) require a 

person to obtain a permit from a groundwater conservation district prior to exporting 

groundwater out of the district; (2) require the groundwater conservation district to consider the 

terms of the contract if an export is based on a contractual sale; and (3) provide that any 

operating permit associated with an export permit is junior in priority to any other operating 

permit issued. 



47 
 
 
 

  

H.B. 3172 (Schaefer) – Emergency Orders: would: (1) provide definitions of drought and 

emergency shortage of water; (2) require the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality to 

determine that each county in the basin of a river that would be subject to emergency suspension 

of water rights has been in a drought for at least 30 consecutive days; and (3) require that each 

senior water right holder that would benefit from the emergency order demonstrate that (a) 

reasonable diligence has been used to conserve water, (b) surface water is required for a 

beneficial use, and (c) sufficient surface water for beneficial use is unavailable. 

  

H.B. 3187 (Keffer) – Water and Energy Improvements: would: (1) clarify that establishing a 

program to decrease water or energy consumption or demand is a governmental function; and (2) 

allow a city to designate an authorized representative to enter into contracts to implement a water 

or energy consumption improvements assessment program. 

  

H.B. 3217 (Dale) – Oil and Gas/Pipeline Preemption:  would, among other things, provide 

that: (1) the Railroad Commission (relating to oil and gas development) and the Public Utility 

Commission (relating to gas pipelines) have exclusive jurisdiction to determine whether the 

adoption or enforcement by a political subdivision of an order, ordinance, or similar measure 

applies to a person or operation over whom or which either of the commissions has jurisdiction; 

(2) a political subdivision shall petition the appropriate commission for permission before 

adopting or enforcing an ordinance, order, or similar measure under a commission’s jurisdiction 

and (3) a commission may grant a petition only if the political subdivision offers proof 

satisfactory to the commission that the ordinance, order, or similar measure is reasonable and 

enhances public safety. 

 

H.B. 3264 (Guillen) – Wastewater Treatment Facilities: would allow the Texas Commission 

on Environmental Quality to issue an emergency order suspending the operations of a 

wastewater treatment facility operating without a required permit. 

  

H.B. 3324 (Larson) – Interbasin Transfers: would provide that a public meeting and notice are 

not required when a proposed interbasin transfer consists of recycled or desalinated water or 

treated wastewater. 

 

H.B. 3356 (Lucio) – Well Production: would prohibit a groundwater conservation district from 

considering the tract size or acreage of a well site not located in the district when determining the 

production amount for a retail public utility providing service inside the district. 

 

H.B. 3363 (Keffer) – Water and Energy Improvement Assessments: would allow a city 

council to establish a program authorizing assessments imposed to repay the financing of 

projects on residential real property designed to decrease water or energy consumption or 

demand. 

 

H.B. 3411 (Parker) – Solid Waste Facilities: would provide that the Texas Commission on 

Environmental Quality: (1) shall mail a copy of a permit application for a solid waste facility to 

each city in whose city limits or extraterritorial jurisdiction the solid waste facility is located or 



48 
 
 
 

with a boundary located nor more than one mile from the facility; and (2) may deny or amend an 

application based on the comments and recommendations from these cities. (Companion bills are 

H.B. 1284 by Simmons and S.B. 879 by Nelson.) 

 

H.B. 3413 (Frank) – Bed and Banks Permits: would authorize the Texas Commission on 

Environmental Quality to issue a general permit to authorize a person to use a natural stream 

channel to convey developed water. 

  

H.B. 3428 (Parker) –  Utility Service: would: (1) require a municipally owned utility to provide 

temporary utility service to the real property of the decedent of an individual that sends a request 

accompanied by a death certificate; (2) require the utility to suspend imposition and collection of 

penalties or fees associated with nonpayment; and (3) provide that the costs associated with the 

service are a liability of the decedent’s estate, and the next of kin who requests the service is not 

personally liable. 

 

H.B. 3518 (Landgraf) – Alternative Fuel Fleets:  would provide that: (1) it is the intent of this 

state that the vehicle fleet of a state agency, county, or city that operates a fleet of more than 15 

motor vehicles be converted into or replaced with motor vehicles that use compressed natural 

gas, liquefied natural gas, liquefied petroleum gas, hydrogen fuel cells, or electricity, including 

fully electric vehicles and plug-in hybrid motor vehicles; (2) a county or city may comply with 

the intent of  the legislature as described in (1), above; and (3) the comptroller shall establish and 

administer a governmental alternative fuel fleet grant program to assist an eligible state agency, 

county, or city in  complying with the bill. 

 

H.B. 3520 (Munoz) – Local Transportation Funding:  would provide that certain regional 

mobility authorities that collect certain overweight vehicle permit fees on certain roads shall give 

25 percent of those fees to cities responsible for the maintenance of the roads.   

 

H.B. 3590 (Krause) – Clean Air Act: would prohibit state agencies from adopting rules or 

submitting state implementations plans that comply with the federal rules under the Clean Air 

Act, if the federal rules give the Environmental Protection Agency the authority to regulate a 

person, entity, or activity that it did not regulate on January 1, 2015. 

  

H.B. 3597 (Keffer) – Export of Groundwater: would prohibit a groundwater conservation 

district from denying a permit based on the fact that the applicant seeks to export groundwater. 

 

H.B. 3634 (Reynolds) – Local Transportation Funding:  would provide that: (1) a city, by 

ordinance adopted by the governing body, may impose a tax of up to five cents on the sale of 

motor fuel sold in the city if imposition of the tax is approved at an election called for that 

purpose; (2) the comptroller shall collect and send to the city an amount equal to three-fourths of 

the taxes collected during that calendar quarter and deposit one-fourth of the taxes collected to 

the credit of the available school fund; and (3) a city may use net tax revenue received only for: 

(a) the construction, maintenance, repair, and rehabilitation of streets, roads, intersections, 

thoroughfares, and bridges located in the city; and (b) the purchase, installation, maintenance, 



49 
 
 
 

and operation of traffic improvements, including signs, signals, and other mechanical, digital, or 

electronic traffic control devices, located in the city. 

 
H.J.R. 118 (E. Rodriguez) – Rail Funding:  would allocate a certain amount of state 
severance tax revenue to the Texas rail relocation and improvement fund. 
 

S.B. 12 (Uresti) – Alternative Fuel Fleets: would: (1) encourage cities to convert vehicle fleets 

into motor vehicles that use alternative fuel sources; and (2) create a grant program to assist 

cities in the purchase or lease of new motor vehicles that operate primarily on alternative fuel. 

 

S.B. 1121 (Zaffirini) – Public Utility Agencies: would expand the powers of a public utility 

agency to include, among other things, the construction of sewer facilities. 

 

S.B. 1122 (Ashby) – Groundwater Production: would prohibit a groundwater conservation 

district from reducing or curtailing production below the maximum rate authorized by a permit 

or recorded before September 1, 2014, from a well that produces groundwater directly or 

indirectly used to support the operation of a power generation facility or a mine. (Companion bill 

is H.B. 2647 by Ashby.) 

 

S.B. 1148 (Watson) – Municipally Owned Utilities: would: (1) require a municipally owned 

utility to disclose the number of ratepayers who reside outside the city limits to any person that 

requests the information; (2) require a municipally owned utility to provide a list of the names 

and addresses of the ratepayers who reside outside the city limits to any person that requests the 

information; (3) permit the State Office of Administrative Hearings, instead of the Public Utility 

Commission, to give notice of a hearing to a city; and (4) provide procedures for obtaining an 

emergency order. 

 

S.B. 1165 (Fraser) – Oil and Gas Preemption:  would this bill is identical to H.B. 40, above.   

 

S.B. 1182 (Huffines) – Toll Roads:  would prohibit the use of any state transportation money for 

toll projects. 

 

S.B. 1234 (Ellis) – State Water Plan: would require the state water plan to include an 

assessment of the sustainability of groundwater production from the state’s major and minor 

aquifers. 

 

S.B. 1271 (West) – Electric Rate Cases:  this bill is identical to H.B. 3084, above.   

 

S.B. 1288 (Estes) – Solid Waste: would prohibit a city from adopting a rule or ordinance that 

conflicts with or is inconsistent with the requirement for solid waste management facilities as 

specified by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality’s rules or permit issued. 

 

S.B. 1337 (Perry) – Texas Water Development Board Financial Assistance: would clarify 

state law to reflect the fact that the Texas Water Development Board has no authority to provide 

financial assistance for water supply projects in regional water plans, from the following 



50 
 
 
 

programs: (1) water bond insurance program; (2) research and planning program; (3) water 

pollution control; and (4) program for water and wastewater financial assistance for 

disadvantaged rural communities. (Companion bill is H.B. 1222 by Lucio.) 

 

S.B. 1380 (Zaffirini) – Gas Tax:  would exempt cities and rapid transit authorities from the state 

gas tax. 

 

S.B. 1411 (Estes) – Interbasin Transfers: would provide that a public meeting and notice are 

not required when a proposed interbasin transfer is from a basin to an adjoining basin. 

  
S.B. 1413 (Estes) – Groundwater Conservation Districts: this bill is identical to H.B. 2767, 

above. 

  
S.B. 1419 (Kolkhorst) – Rainwater Harvesting: would provide that a person is not required to 

have a plumbing license to install, service, or repair of plumbing used for rainwater harvesting, if 

the plumbing is not connected to a public water supply. 

  

S.B. 1421 (Lucio) – Texas Groundwater Protection Committee: would: (1) require the Texas 

Groundwater Protection Committee to develop and adopt a groundwater classification system 

based on salinity; and (2) require state agencies to consider the classification system when 

adopting rules. (Companion bill is H.B. 1635 by Guillen.) 

  
S.B. 1432 (Hall) – Greenhouse Gas Emissions: would any state agency from implementing or 

adopting rules that would implement a greenhouse gas emissions regulatory program required by 

federal statute or rule. 

  

S.B. 1450 (Ellis) – Texas Beverage Container Recycling: would: (1) create the Texas Beverage 

Container Recycling Consortium, composed of one representative of a city with a population less 

than 10,000 and one representative of a city with a population of at least 10,000; (2) require a 

beverage container for sale in this state contain a specified refund value and required labeling; 

(3) require a distributor to collect a deposit from a retail dealer, who in turn will collect a deposit 

from a consumer for each beverage container; and (4) allow the Consortium to provide grants to 

fund water quality, waste reduction, recycling, or curbside redemption programs. (Companion 

bill is H.B. 2425 by Rodriguez.) 

 

S.B. 1509 (Hancock) – Environmental Enforcement:  would, with regard to the current 

authority of a city to seek civil penalties against an environmental polluter, provide that: 

 

1. to recover a civil penalty, a city must prove that a person knowingly or intentionally 

committed a violation of state law relating to air or water quality; 

2. when determining the amount of a civil penalty to be assessed, the court or jury shall 

consider the same factors that the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) 

must consider under current law; 

3. the maximum civil penalty for each violation is $25,000 for each day of each violation, 

up to a maximum of 120 days; 



51 
 
 
 

4. if a person is found to have committed a violation and that violation is a continuing 

violation that exceeds the 120-day duration, the person may be assessed for each 

violation an additional civil penalty of up to $1,000 for each day of each violation beyond 

the 120-day period; 

5. a city is limited to recovering civil penalties from a person for continuing daily violations 

at a single site in an amount not to exceed $4.34 million; 

6. a city may not recover civil penalties for the time period from the date on which a person 

initiates written notification and performs any necessary assessment or remediation under 

a program administered by the TCEQ; 

7. a suit for civil penalties must be brought not later than five years from the earlier of: (a) 

the date a person initiates written notification to TCEQ and complies with the 

requirements in (6), above; or (b) the date the person received a notice of enforcement 

from the TCEQ with respect to the alleged violation; and 

8. a suit for injunctive relief remains as an enforcement remedy. 

 

S.B. 1550 (Hall) – Plastic Bags:  this bill is identical to H.B. 1939, above. 

 

S.B. 1558 (Estes) – Management of Water Resource: would: (1) allow a city to acquire, 

purchase, construct, improve enlarge, equip, operate, or maintain any property related to water 

conservation infrastructure; (2) declare a city providing funding for water conservation 

infrastructure to be: (a) in furtherance of the development and diversification of the economy of 

the city, (b) in furtherance of the conservation, preservation, or treatment of water resources of 

the city, and (c) beneficial to the operation of its utility system to be a public purpose under 

Section 52-a, Article III of the Texas Constitution; (3) permit a city council to pledge the revenue 

of water conservation infrastructure to the payment of any public securities issued; (4) allow a 

city to grant a purchaser a franchise to operate encumbered water conservation infrastructure; (5) 

prohibit a city from selling city-owned water conservation infrastructure without a majority vote 

of the qualified voters of the city; (6) require the mayor of the city to establish and maintain a 

complete system of records for the water conservation infrastructure that has encumbered 

revenue; (7) require the manager of the water conservation infrastructure to file an annual report 

on the operation of the water conservation infrastructure with the mayor and council; (8) provide 

that the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality may not require a permit for domestic use 

of graywater used for toilet flushing; and (8) provide a procedure for an affected person to file a 

petition requesting an inquiry of a groundwater conservation district with the Texas Commission 

on Environmental Quality. 

  

S.B. 1605 (Huffines) – Expedited Permits: would require the Texas Commission on 

Environmental Quality to create a program for expedited issuance and renewal of all permits 

issued by the commission. 

  

S.B. 1619 (Watson) – Texas Emissions Reduction Plan: would: (1) extend the expiration of 

Texas Emissions Reduction Plan programs; and (2) increase the amount and number of grants 

that can be obtained from the programs. 

  



52 
 
 
 

S.B. 1627 (Lucio) – Drought Contingency Plans: would: (1) require retail public water 

suppliers that provide potable water service to 3,300 or more connections to include, in each 

drought contingency plan submitted to the TCEQ, an evaluation of the effectiveness of strategies 

in the plan that were implemented during any period of significant drought that occurred in the 

preceding five years; (2) require a public water supplier to notify TCEQ not later than the fifth 

business day after the date the supplier implements, changes the manner of implementing, or 

ceases to implement a mandatory provision of the supplier’s drought contingency plan; and (3) 

task the Water Conservation Advisory Council with recommending methodologies for 

conducting drought contingency plan evaluations. (Companion bills are H.B. 928 by Guillen and 

S.B. 329 by Hinojosa.)  

 

S.B. 1954 (Hinojosa) – Clean Power Plant Rule:  this bill is identical to H.B. 3069, above. 

 

  

 

TML member cities may use the material herein for any purpose. No 

other person or entity may reproduce, duplicate, or distribute any part of 

this document without the written authorization of the Texas Municipal 

League. 



 

 

 

COUCIL MEETING 

3-26-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #3 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 15-754 

 

ABANDONING RIGHT-OF-WAY EASEMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF HUMBLE 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 15-754 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS, PROVIDING 

FOR THE VACATING, ABANDONMENT, AND CLOSING OF A 

PORTION OF A TWENTY FOOT (20’) RIGHT-OF-WAY EASEMENT 

LYING WEST OF NORTH HOUSTON AVENUE OUT OF THE C. 

BENDER SR. NORTH ADDITION AND SITUATED IN THE WHERRY B. 

ADAMS SURVEY, A-95. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Humble (the “City”) is a Texas home-rule municipality organized 

under the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, located in Harris County, Texas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City’s Charter provides that it may exercise all powers of local self-

government and powers granted to home rule cities by State Law; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Texas Transportation Code provides that a home-rule municipality may 

vacate, abandon, or close a street or alley; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Humble, Texas finds that the unnamed twenty foot 

(20’) right-of-way easement lying west of North Houston Avenue, which is situated between lots 27 

and 10; and lots 26 and 11, depicted in Exhibit A, of the C. Bender Sr. North Addition according to the 

map or plat thereof recorded in Volume 1, Page 101 of the Map Records of Harris County and situated 

in the Wherry B. Adams Survey, A-95, Harris County, Texas was never opened or improved as a 

public road; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City does not intend to pave or other wise use the said portion of the unnamed 

twenty foot (20’) right-of-way easement lying between lots 27 and 10; and lots 26 and 11; and 

  

 WHEREAS, Phil Bates and/or their Assignee is an individual; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Phil Bates and/or their Assignee has requested that the City abandon a portion of 

the unnamed twenty foot (20’) right-of-way; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Phil Bates owns lots27, 10, 26 and 11, and abuts all of the unnamed twenty foot 

(20’) right-of-way that the City Council is requested to abandon; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that abandoning parts of the said unnamed twenty foot 

(20’) right-of-way will cause no detriment to the rights of the citizens of Humble, Texas; and  

 

 WHEREAS the City Council finds and declares that it is in the best interest of all of the citizens 

of Humble, Texas that the part of the said unnamed twenty foot (20’) right-of-way be vacated, closed 

and abandoned; and 

 

 WEHEREAS, the City intends to terminate its interests only, if any, in the part of the said 

unnamed twenty foot (20’) right-of-way  and does not intend to convey or terminate any property 



 2 

interest of any person owning property abutting the twenty foot (20’) right-of-way or any other 

property in the C. Bender Sr. North Addition, Vol. 1, Pg. 101, H.C.M.R. and situated in the Wherry B. 

Adams Survey, A-95, Harris County, Texas; now therefore, 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

 

Section 1.  The facts set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance are hereby found to be true  

  and correct.  

 

Section 2. The City’s interest, if any, of the part of unnamed twenty foot (20’) right-of-way 

easement lying west of North Houston Avenue, which is situated between  Lots 27 

and 10; and lots 26 and 11 of the C. Bender Sr. North Addition, Vol. 1 Pg. 101 

H.C.M.R. and situated in the Wherry B. Adams Survey, A-95, Harris County, Texas. is 

hereby vacated, abandoned and closed to be conveyed to Phil Bates, their Assignee and 

all successors for and in consideration of $10.00 and other good and valuable 

consideration.   A survey of the property to be abandoned is attached as Exhibit “A.” 

 

Section 3. This Ordinance any ordinances of the City to the extent that said ordinance are   

  inconsistent or in conflict with this Ordinance, but not otherwise. 

 

Section 4. In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this ordinance or the  

  application of same to any person or circumstance shall for any reason be adjudged  

  invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect,  

  impair, or invalidate this ordinance as a whole or any part of provision hereof other  

  than the part declared to be invalid, unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of 

  Humble, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and every part of the same  

  notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or   

  unconstitutional, whether there be one or more parts. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 26
th

 day of March 2015. 

 

              

       Donald G. McMannes  

       Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

       

Jason Stuebe 

City Secretary 





 

 

 

COUCIL MEETING 

3-26-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #4 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-745 

 

APPOINTING ELECTION OFFICIALS 

 

 

 



CITY OF HUMBLE 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-745 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS APPOINTING 

ELECTION OFFICIALS FOR THE MAY 9, 2015 HUMBLE ISD AND CITY OF 

HUMBLE GENERAL AND SPECIAL ELECTION. 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE TEXAS: 

 

Section 1:  That the following registered voters of Harris County shall be and are hereby 

appointed to serve in said elections: 

 

 Early Voting Clerk:   Stan Stanart 

  

Section 2: That the Harris County Administration Building, 1001 Preston, 4
th
 Floor is hereby 

established as the Central Counting Station to receive ballots for said election.  The 

ballots shall be tabulated and returned to the office of the City Secretary for the required 

retention period.  The following persons are hereby authorized and appointed as persons 

employed and designated to handle the ballots, operate the tabulating equipment and 

count the ballots. 

 

 Central Counting Presiding Judge:  Stan Stanart 

 Counting Station Manager:   Mark Antill 

 Tabulation Supervisor:    Jason Bruce 

 Clerks:      To be appointed by the Presiding Judge 

 

Section 3. That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage.. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this the 26th day of March 2015. 

 

      APPROVED: 

 

 

            

      D.G. McMannes 

      Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

Jason Stuebe 

City Secretary 



CUIDAD DE HUMBLE 

RESOLUCION NO. 15-745 

 

LA RESOLUCION DE LA CUIDAD DE HUMBLE, TEXAS APROVANDO EL CONTRATO DE LOS 

SERVICIOS ELECTORALES PARA MAYO 9, 2015 HUMBLE ISD Y LA ELECCION GENERAL Y 

ESPECIAL DE LA CUIDAD DE HUMBLE 

 

HA SIDO RESUELTO, POR EL CONSEJO MUNICIPAL DE LA CUIDAD DE HUMBLE: 

 

Seccion 1: Los siguientes votantes registrados del Condado de Harris debera y sera nombrado server en 

nombrado eleccion: 

 

 Empleado de Eleccion Anticipada:   Stan Stanart 

 

Seccion 2: El Edificio de la Administracion de la Cuidad de Humble, 1001 Preston, Piso 4 es establecido 

como la Estacion de Conteo Central para recibir las votaciones para dicha eleccion. Las votaciones 

seran tabuladas y devueltas a al oficina de la Secretaria de la Cuidad por el periodo de retencion. 

Las siguientes personas se les autoriza y se les nombra como empleados para manejar las 

papeletas, operar el equipo de la tabulacion y el conteo de las papeletas. 

  

 Juez de Conteo Central:    Stan Stuart 

 Gerente de Conteo de la Estacion:   Mark Antill 

 Supervisor de Tabulacion:    Jason Bruce 

 Empleados:     Seran asignados por el Juez 

 

Seccion 3: Esta resolucion se tomara en efecto inmediatamente el dia y hasta que se termine. 

 APROVADO y RESUELTO este el 26 de Marzo 2015 

        

 

       APROVADO: 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

            

      D.G. McManess 

       Alcalde 

ATESTIGUARE: 

 

 

 

 

 

Jason Stuebe 

Secretario de La Cuidad 


